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How many public charter schools received a letter grade, and
under which model?

2018 A-F RESULTS
October 2018| 12439 N. 32nd St. | Phoenix, AZ 85032

70%

Of Public Charter Schools received
a Letter Grade for 2017-18

Compared to 64% of public charter schools in 2016-17

Which CHARTER SCHOOLS did NOT receive a
FY18 Letter Grade?
115 Alternative
Schools
(not included in the
FY18 release)
8
Online

35 Traditional
Schools
(not included in the
FY18 release)

107
“Brick and Mortar”

11
Online
18 Traditional
Schools received
“Not Rated” in the
FY18 release

N = 168

5 Small
13 New*
6
Non-Tested
Grades (K-2)

*The Oct. 5 A-F release included letter grades for new schools; however, the Department of
Education removed these schools and posted an updated file on Oct. 9

A-F Models
•
•
•

Majority of public charter
schools are evaluated using
K-8 model, 71%.
Fewer 9-12 public charter
schools, compared to district
schools
Significantly more “Hybrid”
public charter schools
(grade spans are non-typical
configurations)

WHY IS THIS IMPORTANT?
1 out of 6 charter schools
serves students in a unique and
innovative way.

FY18 Charter N = 385
FY18 District N = 1,273

A-F Model Changes
•
•

Use of the hybrid model
increased in 2018.
Majority of the shift to the
Hybrid model occurred
between the 9-12 model from
2017, fewer K-8 model schools
shifted.

WHY IS THIS IMPORTANT?
The 2018 accountability results
more accurately reflect the grade
level composition of public charter
schools.

FY18 Charter N = 385
FY18 District N = 1,273

How did public charter schools, that received a grade, perform?

2018 A-F RESULTS

Public Charter School
Performance: All Schools
•
•
•

68% of public charter schools, that
receive a grade, received an “A” or
“B” rating.
“A” ratings increased by 12
percentage points, compared to
2017 results.
86% of public charter schools
“Meet” on the Charter Board’s
academic performance framework.
WHY IS THIS IMPORTANT?
These data show that the
overwhelming majority of public
charter schools are meeting the high
bar that has been set for academic
accountability.

FY18 Charter N = 385
FY17 Charter N = 356

Public Charter School
Performance: High
Poverty Schools
•

•

39% of high poverty public charter
schools, that received a letter grade,
received an “A” or “B” rating.
73% of high poverty public charter
schools “Meet” on the Charter Board’s
academic performance framework.
Why is this important?
These data show that the public charter
schools that serve a high percentage of
students living in poverty can and are
meeting the high bar that has been set
for academic accountability.

FY18 Charter N = 138
FY17 Charter N = 123

Public Charter School
Improvements
•

•

•

Year-over-year comparisons show
that 35% of public charter
schools improved their letter
grade, e.g., “C” in 2017 to an “A”
in 2018.
Of those that received a 2018
letter grade, 100% of the 2017
“F” rated public charter schools
improved their grade in 2018.
48% maintained their letter
grade, with the majority of those
schools maintaining a “A” or “B”
rating.

N = 347; any charter school who received two letter grades in two years

Impact of public charter schools on Arizona’s students

2018 A-F RESULTS

Student Enrollment: All
Public Charter Schools
•

For public charter schools that received a
grade:
• Over 50% of public charter students are
enrolled in an “A” rated school.
• 77% of public charter students are
enrolled in an “A” or “B” rated school.
• 94% of public charter students are
enrolled in a school that “Meets” the
Charter Board’s academic performance
framework.

Why is this important?
These data clearly demonstrate that public charter
schools are positively impacting the learning
outcomes for the students they serve.

N = 134,794 ; Enrollment in public charter schools that received letter grade

Student Enrollment:
High Poverty Schools
•

For public charter schools attending a
school that received a grade, and serve
60%+ NSLP population:
• 39% of public charter students are
enrolled in an “A” or “B” rated
school.
• 83% of public charter students are
enrolled in a school that “Meets” the
Charter Board’s academic
performance framework.
Why is this important?
Public charter schools are positively impacting
the learning outcomes for Arizona’s students.

N = 40,769 ; Public charter school students who attend a school
that received a letter grade and served a population of 60%+ NSLP

QUESTIONS?
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AEC Presentation
to ASBCS
Online/Blended
Alternative Education
October 15, 2018

CAS Solar Go-Kart Racing Team

Blazing Eagles
2016, 2017 & 2018 State Champions!

2019 Team Members
• In our first year (2015), we had 7
students form a team …
Now, the 2019 CAS Team has 25
students (or 16% of our school
population)
Split into three competing teams –
including an all-girls team!

Coaches:
Jeff Ofstedahl
Dave Dolifka

Mechanical Elements (2018 Maker Kart)
The Chassis is 1-inch square steel tubing with fixed suspension, with a mesh
seat and belly pan.
Our wheels are 26-inch bicycle wheels with two front disc brakes

Steering is
“tank style”
with a
motorcyclestyle throttle.

Mechanical Elements
We started with a gear ratio of
9.75.
During Test Day, we realized this
wasn’t competitive enough nor did
it have enough torque at start on
an uphill.
We changed our drive train for a
total gear ratio of 4.76 (using a
jackshaft) with an internal 3-gear
hub for increasing the gear ratio
during the race by shifting gears.

Electrical Elements
Our maker kart has four 6-volt
batteries in a series to create a
24-volt system.

The 24-V solar panel is putting out
42-V in open circuit
Additional electronic features
include a charge controller and a
motor controller and watt meters.

Budgeting
We received various sponsorships: in cash and in-kind.
Total cash donations/income:
$2,125
(CAS Aftercare 21st Century grant paid for the
team entrance fee of $2,000)

Sold Team Shirts as fundraiser
Did Cars in the Park fundraiser
Total expenses to date: $1358
Excess $$s raised to upgrade
tools for next year.

Time Trials!

Major Challenges
• The team meets on Fridays – and Saturdays as
needed
• Our School doesn’t have an auto shop or
welding shop
• Our kart wasn’t as competitive as we needed it
to be. In the month prior to Race Day, we
disassembled, redesigned, and refabricated
the chassis to have a lower center of mass – all
in one month!
• We changed our gearing system and drive train
to be able to shift gears during the race to get
more torque at the starting line and more
speed throughout the race.

What we learned…
“I learned how to be a better
welder and different
techniques, and how to
communicate with people
better”-Cody Roehsler
“I learned how important
leadership and
communication skills are
to the team.”
-Makenzi Cushman

• We learned about gear ratios,
and circuitry, and used that to
our advantage with our kart.
We were able to see what we
were learning, it opened our
eyes to how engineering
works.
We were able to
work together to
power the kart
to the best of its
ability. We
realized that
together, we can
accomplish
anything.

Our Adventures!

Additional CAS STEM Opportunities
Underwater Robotics

Robotics

3D Printing Makerspace

CAS STEM Course Offerings
• Engineering Design
• Principles of Engineering
(applied physics)
• Environmental Engineering
• Civil Engineering and
Architecture
• Aerospace Engineering
• Digital Electronics

• Intro to Computer Science
• IT Technologies
• Cyber Security
• Cyber Patriots
• App Creators
• CS Innovators and Makers
Middle School: Automation & Robotics, Electrons and Electronics,
Environmental Engineering, Design & Modeling

Arizona State Board for Charter Schools

Last Updated October 1, 2018

On‐going Board Actions
Charters Under a Notice of Intent to Revoke
Charter Holder Name
Pointe Educational
Services

Date of
Board Action

Alleged Violation

9/10/18



Failure to administer AIMS
Science in fiscal year 2018

Date of Revocation
Hearing/Orders
Hearing before an OAH
administrative law judge set
for December 12‐14, 2018

Status
Informal Settlement Conference set October 2,
2018.
Prehearing Conference set November 8, 2018.

Legal Matters
Case Number
and Parties

Date of
Initial Filing

Issue

Status

CV2016‐051845
Legacy Education Group
et al vs. Arizona State
Board for Charter Schools

Complaint for
Declaratory
Judgment filed
March 22,
2016



Whether the Board’s
Performance Frameworks
must be promulgated as
rules under the
Administrative Procedures
Act

On November 14, 2016, the Superior Court granted the Board’s Motion to
Dismiss.

1 CA‐CV 17‐0023

Notice of
Appeal filed
December 13,
2016



Whether the superior court
correctly determined that
the Administrative
Procedures Act does not
apply to the Performance
Frameworks adopted by
charter school sponsors
under A.R.S. § 15‐183(R)

The Court of Appeals vacated the Superior Court’s judgment dismissing the case
and remanded the case for further proceedings consistent with its May 8, 2018
decision. A telephonic status conference is set November 26, 2018.
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ENROLLMENT
DOCUMENTATION
REVIEW UPDATE
October 15, 2018

Status Update
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May 2018
 Initial

report presented to the Board
 45% of the Board’s portfolio was reviewed


September 2018
 Remaining

55% of the Board’s portfolio reviewed
 Total of 544 schools
 Second review in process

Common Issues
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Of the charters sent a letter by the ACLU, the
majority have revised their enrollment documents
 Upon





re-review, other issues have been found

Initial review focus: Special Ed caps, behavioral and
discipline requirements, and parental requirements
(volunteer hours and fees)
Second review focus: attendance, pre-enrollment
requirements, kindergarten policies
 Birth

Certificate options
 Home language survey

Process Update
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Creation of Resources:
 Compilation

of related Arizona Revised Statute,
Arizona Administrative Code, Federal and State
Guidance
 Newsletters and Guidance


Online Complaint Process
 Asbcs.AZ.Gov

 Parents & Public  Addressing
Complaints & Concerns  Submit Complaint  Find
School



Enrollment training for staff

Next Steps
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Enrollment, attendance, and discipline connection
 Release

guidance on attendance and discipline policies
based on Arizona Revised Statute, Administrative Code,
and existing Federal/State Guidance




Continue reviewing at site visits
Provide informed answers and customer service
 Charters



have been active throughout the process

Enrollment issues identified by Board Staff will be
marked on a charter’s operational dashboard

Questions?
5

 602.364.3086
 Serena.campas@asbcs.az.gov
 Special

Projects & Programs Manager

AGENDA ITEM: Surrender Agreement – Innovative Humanities Education Corporation
Issue
Innovative Humanities Education Corporation has submitted a Voluntary Surrender and Charter
Termination Agreement (“Surrender Agreement”).
Background
Innovative Humanities Education Corporation operates Copper Point High School serving grades 6
through 12. On August 23, 2018, the Charter Operator notified the Board of its intent to close the school
on August 31, 2018 due to low enrollment. For fiscal year 2019, Innovative Humanities Education
reported an estimated count of 69 students.
The Arizona Department of Education (“Department”) determined Innovative Humanities Education
Corporation had been overpaid $33,462.06. Innovative Humanities Education Corporation repaid the
Department on September 17, 2018 thus complying with the Surrender Agreement’s requirement.
On September 5, 2018, the Board became the custodian of Copper Point High School’s student records.
A copy of the proposed terms of the Surrender Agreement is included in Appendix A.

October 15, 2018 Board Meeting
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Appendix A

October 15, 2018 Board Meeting
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AGENDA ITEM: Surrender Agreement – SySTEM Schools
Issue
SySTEM Schools has submitted a Voluntary Surrender and Charter Termination Agreement (“Surrender
Agreement”).
Background
SySTEM Schools operates SySTEM Phoenix serving grades 6 through 8. On August 7, 2018, the Charter
Operator notified the Board of its intent to close the school on August 10, 2018 due to low enrollment.
For fiscal year 2019, SySTEM Schools reported an estimated count of 39 students.
The Arizona Department of Education (“Department”) determined SySTEM Schools had been overpaid
$13,988.48. SySTEM Schools repaid the Department on or about September 24, 2018.
On August 16, 2018, the Board became the custodian of SySTEM Phoenix’s student records.
A copy of the proposed terms of the Surrender Agreement is included in Appendix A.

October 15, 2018 Board Meeting
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Appendix A

October 15, 2018 Board Meeting
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VOLUNTARY SURRENDER AND CHARTER TERMINATION AGREEMENT
This Voluntary Surrender and Charter Termination Agreement (“Agreement”) is made
by and between SySTEM Schools (“Charter Operator”), a nonprofit corporation organized
under the laws of the state of Arizona, and the Arizona State Board for Charter Schools
(“Board”), collectively referred to herein as the “Parties”.
RECITALS
1.

The Charter Operator operates SySTEM Phoenix (“School”), a charter school

established pursuant to A.R.S. § 15-181 et seq.
2.

The School operates pursuant to a charter contract (“Charter”) executed on May

13, 2014 between the Charter Operator and the Board.
3.

Cathy Freericks is the President of the Charter Operator governing board and the

person authorized to execute documents on behalf of the Charter Operator.
4.

On August 1, 2018, the Charter Operator received a state equalization payment for

the instruction of students in the amount of $23,651.18.
5.

On August 7, 2018, the Charter Operator notified the Board of its intent to close the

School on August 10, 2018 due to low enrollment and to surrender its Charter.
6.

The Arizona Department of Education (“Department”) determined that the Charter

Operator provided 8 days of instruction during the 2018-2019 school year.
7.

On August 10, 2018, the Charter Operator’s Board of Directors passed a motion at a

public meeting to voluntarily surrender the Charter.
8.

On August 10, 2018, on behalf of the Charter Operator, Cathy Freericks signed a

Voluntary Surrender and Charter Termination Agreement in which she agreed that if the Department

1

determined that the Charter Operator had been overpaid, the Charter Operator would repay the
amount owed to the Department; the Charter Operator agreed that its failure to repay the full amount
identified by the Department within three days of receipt of notice from the Department or to fully
resolve the overpayment by August 27, 2018 would result in the Charter Operator being placed on a
subsequent Board agenda for consideration of a notice of intent to revoke the Charter.
9.

The Board’s acceptance of the Voluntary Surrender and Charter Termination

Agreement was conditioned upon the Charter Operator having fully satisfied the terms stated in
paragraph 8 of this Agreement.
10.

On September 14, 2018, the Department notified the Charter Operator of its

determination that the Charter Operator had been overpaid state equalization assistance for the 20182019 school year in the amount of $13,988.48.
11.

The Charter Operator failed to meet the terms stated in paragraph 8 of this

Agreement; the Department advised the Board that it received the Charter Operator’s repayment in
the amount of $13,988.48 on or about September 24, 2018.
AGREEMENT
The Parties agree as follows:
1.

The Charter Operator voluntarily tenders and surrenders the Charter to its sponsor,

the Board, with the intent to voluntarily terminate its Charter effective 11:59 p.m. on September 24,
2018.
2.

The Board accepts the surrender of the Charter for the operation of the School.

3.

The Charter between the Charter Operator and the Board for the operation of the

School is terminated effective 11:59 p.m. on September 24, 2018.
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4.

If the Board rejects this Agreement or any part of it, then this Agreement is null and

void, and not binding on the Charter Operator or the Board.
5.

The Charter Operator delivered a complete copy of each student’s educational record

to the student’s parent or legal guardian for each student enrolled in the School in the 2018-2019
school year.
6.

The Charter Operator delivered the School’s student records and a list of the records

to the Board. All student records shall be maintained in accordance with the Student Records
Retention Schedule provided by the Arizona State Library, Archives and Public Records division of
the Arizona Secretary of State’s Office.
7.

The Charter Operator shall submit any outstanding grant reports and shall refund any

outstanding grant monies or allocation of education funds in the amount determined by the
Department in the manner directed by the Department.
8.

The Charter Operator authorizes the Department to update the School’s student level

data in the AzEDS system for the purposes of facilitating student enrollment upon closure of the
School.
9.

The Charter Operator understands that it has the legal right to consult with an attorney

prior to entering into this Agreement.
10.

The Parties shall be responsible for their own attorneys’ fees and costs in this matter.

ARIZONA STATE BOARD FOR CHARTER SCHOOLS
_______________________________
By: Kathy Senseman
President, Arizona State Board for Charter Schools
Date: ____________

3

AGENDA ITEM: Surrender Agreement – Paragon Preparatory Academy, Inc.
Issue
Paragon Preparatory Academy, Inc. (previously known as Tucson Collegiate Prep, Inc.) has submitted a
Voluntary Surrender and Charter Termination Agreement (“Surrender Agreement”). At the Board’s
September 10, 2018 meeting, the Board requested additional information regarding the location of the
school’s student’s records. This information has now been obtained.
Background
Paragon Preparatory Academy, Inc. operated Paragon Preparatory Academy serving grades 6 through 8.
On January 10, 2018, the charter notified the Board that it had closed its school at winter break due to
not being able to keep quality teachers in place and decreasing student enrollment. The charter
informed parents and students of the closure prior to the start of winter break and provided assistance
to appropriately transfer the students to another school. Paragon Preparatory Academy, Inc.’s fiscal year
2018 average daily membership was 29.279.
Student records are being maintained at 3311 N. 190th Drive, Litchfield Park 85340. Records may be
requested by email (fmyfyanez@gmail.com) or by phone (602‐402‐4090). ASBCS Online has been
updated to reflect this information. The records have been at this location since the school closed. To
date, the Board has not received any calls indicating requests for records have not been processed in a
timely manner.
A copy of the proposed terms of the Surrender Agreement is included in Appendix A.

October 15, 2018 Board Meeting
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AGENDA ITEM EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: Proposed Revisions to the Academic,
Operational and Financial Performance Frameworks
Issue
Consideration of revisions to the Board’s current Academic, Financial and Operational Performance
Framework and Guidance documents.
Proposed Revisions to the Performance Frameworks
The proposed changes are all technical in nature and provide clarity and transparency to enhance the
readability of the guidance documents. (See Appendix A: Academic Performance Framework and
Guidance, Appendix B: Financial Performance Framework and Guidance, and Appendix C: Operational
Performance Framework and Guidance)
Public Comment
Arizona Administrative Code R7-5-404(A) allows the Board to revise the performance frameworks as
needed. During the process of revision, the Board shall provide the public with notice and an
opportunity to comment on proposed revisions. The proposed technical changes were open for public
comment from September 11 through October 1, 2018. Board staff did not receive any comments
within the stated timeframe of this first opportunity for public comment.
Requested Board Action
Board staff is asking the Board to adopt the current performance frameworks with the proposed
technical revisions.

ASBCS, October 15, 2018

Appendix A:
Academic Performance Framework
and
Guidance

ASBCS, October 15, 2018

Arizona State Board for
Charter Schools
Academic Performance
Framework and Guidance
As Revised on October 10, 2017[DATE]

Historical Note:
Effective:

October 9, 2012
Revision effective June 13, 2016
Board Approval Date: October 9, 2012; September 9, 2013; January 13, 2014; October 14, 2014, August 17, 2015,
June 13, 2016, October 10, 2017, DATE
Revised:
November 26, 2012; September 9, 2013, January 13, 2014; October 14, 2014,
August 17, 2015, June 13, 2016, October 10, 2017, DATE
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Support and funding for the development of the Arizona State Board for Charter Schools Performance Framework,
which includes the Academic Framework, Operational Framework and Financial Framework, were provided by
NACSA and through its Fund for Authorizing Quality.
Additional funding to support the implementation of the Performance
Framework was provided by:
Governor Brewer’s Office of Education Innovation
Arizona Community Foundation
Stand for Children
Rodel Charitable Foundation of Arizona
Arizona Virtual Academy
The Arizona State Board for Charter Schools Performance Framework is licensed under a Creative Commons AttributionNoncommercial-ShareAlike license.

Considerable portions of this document are reproduced from work created and shared by the National Association of Charter School
Authorizers, available under a Creative Commons Attribution-Noncommercial-ShareAlike license at http://www.qualitycharters.org/.
Copyright ©2012 National Association of Charter School Authorizers (NACSA)

A Creative Commons license permits noncommercial re-use of content when proper attribution is provided. This means you are free to
copy, display and distribute this work, or include content from the application in derivative works, under the following conditions:

Attribution You must clearly attribute the work to the National Association of Charter School Authorizers, and provide a link back to the
publication at http://www.qualitycharters.org/.
Noncommercial You may not use this work for commercial purposes, including but not limited to any type of work for hire, without
explicit prior permission from NACSA.

Share Alike If you alter, transform, or build upon this work, you may distribute the resulting work only under a license identical to this
one.

For the full legal code of this Creative Commons license, please visit www.creativecommons.org. If you have any questions about citing or
reusing NACSA content, please contact us.
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Academic Performance Framework Guidance
Charter schools may be established to provide a learning environment that will improve pupil
achievement (A.R.S. § 15-181). As the authorizer or sponsor of charter schools, the State Board for
Charter Schools (“Board”) must adopt a performance framework that includes the academic
performance expectations of the charter school and the measurement of sufficient progress toward
the academic performance expectations (A.R.S. § 15-183(R)).
Charter holders have the autonomy to select and implement programs of instruction that align with
their philosophical and methodological ideology and operational structure consistent with state and
federal law and the charter contract. The purpose of the Academic Performance Framework (“academic
framework”) is to communicate the State Board for Charter Schools’ (“Board’s”) academic performance
expectations for ensuring that all charter holders in its portfolio are providing a learning environment
where measurable improvement in pupil achievement can be demonstrated.
In developing the academic framework, the Board remained conscious of its limited resources to
implement the academic framework. The Board was also mindful of its commitment to maintaining
current levels of data collection so as not to unnecessarily burden the charter holders with
requirements to submit additional information for the purpose of evaluating the academic performance
of the charter holder. The successful implementation of the academic framework relies on having
access to data collected through the administration and evaluation of state assessments.
The academic framework is organized by indicators, measures, metrics and targets.
The academic framework focuses purposefully on quantitative academic outcomes as a basis for analysis
to be used in high-stakes decisions. If educational processes are required by law, such elements are
included in the Operational Performance Framework and further guidance on the reasoning for this
indicator can be found in the Operational Performance Framework and Guidance.
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Minimum Academic Performance ExpectationsFramework Structure
The Academic Performance Framework is organized by indicators, measures, metrics, and targets.

Indicators and Measures
The Academic academic Performance Framework framework includes two indicators. Schools are
evaluated by one of the following indicators: , or general categories, to evaluate a charter holder’s
academic performance.
1. State Accountability: State Accountability is the default indicator used to evaluate the academic
performance of all charter schools sponsored by the Board. This indicator includes two
measures:
•

tThe letter grade of each school operated by the charter holder as assigned through
Arizona’s A–F Letter Grade Accountability System, and

•

. In addition, this indicator considersConsiders stateState designations for school
improvement.

2. School-Specific Academic Goals: A charter holder that operates a school that serves a special
population that does not have an achievement profile established by the State Board of
Education for state accountability pursuant to A.R.S. § 15-241(HI) may petition the Board to
adopt unique, school-specific academic performance standards. Only charter schools that have
been approved by the Board to use the substitute indicator of school-specific academic goals
will be evaluated under this indicator.

Measures
For each of the indicators, the academic framework utilizes measures to evaluate schools. The
combination of measures, taken on the whole, provides the Board with a balanced scorecard of each
school’s performance over time. Multiple measures are used in the standards: A-F State Accountability
Letter Grades, State designations for school improvement, and school-specific academic goals for
charter holders approved to use the separate indicator for academic performance.

Metrics
Metrics are the methods of evaluating a measure. In the development of the academic framework, the
Board reviewed the available data to determine which metrics are appropriate for evaluating its charter
schools.

Targets and Rating Categories
For each of the measures, targets are set to rate the schools against the academic framework. The
targets establish the levels of performance needed to place each school into the rating categories. There
are five possible rating categories but due to the nature of the individual measures, not every measure
will include all five ratings.
4

Exceeds Standard: The school’s performance on this measure exceeds the performance targets and
shows exemplary performance.
Above Standard: The school’s performance on this measure is above the performance targets required
to meet the Board’s standard.
Meets Standard: The school’s performance on this measure meets the Board’s minimum performance
targets.
Does Not Meet Standard: The school’s performance on this measure does not meet the Board’s
minimum performance targets.
Falls Far Below Standard: The school’s performance on this measure signals a significant academic risk.
Performance for any measure receiving this rating means the charter school is performing far below the
Board’s performance targets and on par with the lowest-performing schools in the state. If a charter
holder operates a charter school that falls far below the standard, and the charter holder may be
brought before the Board for disciplinary action.

Indicators and Measures in DetailEvaluation of Charter Holder
Performance by Indicator
Each of the indicators and measures is presented below. Included is an overview of each measure,
methodological approaches, and factors considered in the development of specific targets.For
each of the indicators, the academic framework provides a set of measures to evaluate a cCharter
hHolder’s academic performance for the school(s) it operates. Targets for each measure areis
provided below.

Indicator: State Accountability
A-F Letter Grade Accountability System
1a. Is the school meeting acceptable standards according to the state accountability
system?
Exceeds Standard:
 School received a letter grade of A from the state accountability system.
Above Standard:
 School received a letter grade of B from the state accountability system.
Meets Standard:
 School received a letter grade of C from the state accountability system.
Does Not Meet Standard:
 School received a letter grade of D from the state accountability system.
Falls Far Below Standard:
 School received a letter grade of F from the state accountability system.
Targets for A–F Letter Grade Accountability System
Targets for the A-F Letter Grade Accountability System this measure were set taking into consideration
alignment with the state grading system and the Board’s mission to improve public education in
Arizona. Schools receiving an “A” grade are assessed in the academic framework as “exceeds standard,”
5

while schools receiving an “F” grade are considered “falls far below standard.”
Modifications for Alternative, and Extremely Small, and Arizona Online Instruction Schools
Subject to final adoption by the State Board of Education, the Department of Education is required to use
appropriate achievement profiles to assess alternative schools and extremely small schools and may
develop achievement profiles for Arizona Online Instruction schools and others pursuant to A.R.S. § 15241(HI)1
State Designations for School Improvement
1b. Is the school meeting performance expectations as set forth by state and federal
accountability requirements?
Meets Standard:
 Not identified for improvement.
Does Not Meet Standard:
 Identified for improvement and/or targeted support.
Falls Far Below Standard:
 Identified for improvement and/or comprehensive support.
Targets for State Designations
Targets for this measurestate designations for school improvement were set taking into consideration
Arizona’s plan for school performance under the provisions outlined in the Every Student Succeeds Act
and A.R.S. § 15-241.02. The Department of Education must annually measure proficiency rates,
subgroup performance, graduation rates, and other academic indicators to identify all Arizona public
schools required to implement targeted, comprehensive, and other supports necessary to improve
school performance.

Indicator: School-Specific Academic Goals
A charter holder that operates a school that serves a special population that does not have an
achievement profile established by the Department of Education and adopted by the State Board of
Education for state accountability pursuant to A.R.S. § 15-241(HI) may petition the Board to adopt
unique, school-specific academic performance standardsgoals. If the petition is approved by the
Board, four five to six school- specific academic goals, along with specific metric(s) and target(s), must
be developed and agreed to by the charter holder and the Board. School-specific academic goals will
be incorporated into the charter contract for the charter holder. (See Appendix A: A for guidance on
School-Specific Academic Goals).
2. Is the school meeting its school-specific academic goals?
Exceeds Standard:
 School exceeded its school-specific academic goals.
Meets Standard:
 School met its school-specific academic goals.
Does Not Meet Standard:
 School did not meet its school-specific academic goals.
Falls Far Below Standard:
 School fell far below its school-specific academic goals.
6
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A letter grade or its equivalent achievement profile will be used for schools that fall under this provision.
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Overall Ratings
An Overall Rating is determined for each charter school operated by the charter holder in accordance
with the following matrix.
Overall Rating
1b. State Designation for School Improvement
1a. A-F Letter
Grade State
Accountability

Not Identified
for Improvement

Identified for
Improvement and/or
Targeted Support

Identified for
Improvement and/or
Comprehensive Support

A

Exceeds Standard

Does Not Meet Standard

Falls Far Below Standard

B

Above Standard

Does Not Meet Standard

Falls Far Below Standard

C

Meets Standard

Does Not Meet Standard

Falls Far Below Standard

D

Does Not Meet Standard

Does Not Meet Standard

Falls Far Below Standard

F

Falls Far Below Standard

Falls Far Below Standard

Falls Far Below Standard

For each charter school operated by a charter holder that has been approved by the Board to use
Schoolschool-Specific specific Academic academic Goals goalsin place of the State Accountability
indicator, the Overall Rating shall be determined as follows:
2. School-Specific Academic Goals

Overall Rating

School Exceeded its Goals

Exceeds Standard

School Met its Goals

Meets Standard

School Did Not Meet its Goals

Does Not Meet Standard

School Fell Far Below its Goals

Falls Far Below Standard
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Dashboard
The Overall Rating is represented in the form of a color-coded graphic which will be referred to as the
Dashboard. Examples for the charter holder and a charter school are included below.
Example Charter Holder Example
FY 20XX Charter Holder Name, Inc.
School

Type

Grades
Served

Overall Rating

School 1

Traditional

K-8

Above Standard

School 2

Traditional

K-6

Falls Far Below Standard

School 3

Alternative

9-12

Does Not Meet Standard

School 4

Traditional

7-12

Exceeds Standard

School 5

Alternative

9-12

Meets Standard

State Accountability

School-Specific

1a. A-F Letter
Grade State
Accountability

1b. State
Designation for
School
Improvement

2. School-Specific
Academic Goals

School 1

Exceeds Standard

Meets Standard

-

School 2

Above Standard

Meets Standard

School 3

Meets Standard

School 4

Does Not Meet
Standard

Does Not Meet
Standard
Falls Far Below
Standard

School 5

-

-

Example Charter School Examples
School 1

1a. A-F Letter Grade
1b. School Improvement
OVERALL RATING

Overall Rating

Exceeds Standard
Above Standard

Meets Standard

Does Not Meet
Standard
Falls Far Below
Standard
Meets Standard

FY 20XX
Traditional
Elementary K-8
Measure
Rating
B
Above
No
Meets
Above Standard
9

School 2

FY 20XX
Traditional
Elementary K-6
Measure
Rating
D
Does Not Meet
Comprehensive
Falls Far Below
Falls Far Below Standard

1a. A-F Letter Grade
1b. School Improvement
OVERALL RATING

FY

State Accountability
1a. A-F Letter
Grade State
Accountability

2017

Does Not Meet
Standard

2018

Meets Standard

2019

Above Standard

School-Specific

1b. State
Designation for
School
Improvement
Falls Far Below
Standard
Does Not Meet
Standard

2. School-Specific
Academic Goals

Meets Standard

-

-

Overall Rating

Falls Far Below
Standard
Does Not Meet
Standard
Above Standard

1

Use of the Academic Framework
Evaluation
An evaluation is conducted annually to determine if the charter holder meets or is making sufficient
progress toward the academic performance expectations set forth in the Board's academic performance
framework. Overall Ratings for the most recent fiscal year that State state achievement profiles are
available are used to determine whether the charter holder meets the academic performance
expectations set forth in the academic framework.
Meets the Board’s Academic Performance Expectations
A charter holder meets the Board’s academic performance expectations if all schools operated by the
charter holder receive an Overall Rating of “Meets Standard,” “Above Standard” or “Exceeds Standard”
in the most recent fiscal year that State state achievement profiles are available.
Demonstrating Sufficient Progress Toward the Board’s Academic Performance Expectations
A charter holder that has one or more schools that receive an Overall Rating of “Does Not Meet
Standard” or “Falls Far Below Standard” for three consecutive years has failed to demonstrate sufficient
progress. In its determination of whether a charter holder demonstrates sufficient progress toward the
Board’s academic performance expectations, the Board will consider the Overall Rating for each of the
schools it operates for the three most recent years that Overall Ratings are available and whether or not
there has been improvement in the measures used to determine the Overall Rating.
The findings of the Demonstration of Sufficient Progress will be provided to the Board for consideration
at the following times:
•

If a charter school operated by the charter holder has failed to meet the Board’s academic
performance standard for three consecutive years

•

During five five-year interval reviews

•

When considering a charter contract renewal request submitted by the charter holder

•

Upon receipt of information that a charter school operated by the charter holder has been
assigned a letter grade of “F” under the state accountability system by the Department of
Education

•

When considering disciplinary action against a charter holder that has breached one or more
provisions of its charter contract or is in violation of state or federal law

Reviews
A charter holder’s academic performance will be considered by the Board during periodic reviews,
including five-year interval reviews.
Five-Year Interval Reviews2
The most recent Overall Rating of each school operated by a charter holder will be used to determine
whether the charter holder is meeting or making sufficient progress toward meeting the Board’s
academic performance expectations. Charter holders will be required to undergo an Academic Systems
1

Review, as defined in Appendix B, at five-year intervals.
Other Reviews
Because academic performance can affect a charter holder’s ability to meet the obligations of its
charter contract or provisions of law, a charter holder’s academic performance may also be reviewed at
other times, including when the Board makes decisions related to a charter holder’s financial and/or
operational performance. The Board may also use academic performance data for public reporting to
various stakeholders, such as schools, policymakers, students and families, and the public.

Academic Eligibility for Expansion Requests

A charter holder’s academic performance is evaluated by the Board when considering expansion
requests. A charter holder is eligible to submit the expansion requests identified below if all of the
following are true:
1. A dashboard for each school operated by the charter holder is available through ASBCS
Online,
2. 75 percent or more of the schools operated by the charter holder have a minimum Overall
Rating of “Meets Standard” in the most recent fiscal year presented on each school’s
academic dashboard,
3. 75 percent or more of all Associated Schools have a minimum Overall Rating of “Meets
Standard” in the most recent fiscal year presented on the Associated Schools’ dashboards, or
a. If one or more Associated Schools are excluded for academic performance purposes,
then 100 percent of the remaining Associated Schools eligible to receive an Overall
Rating must have a minimum Overall Rating of “Meets Standard” on the most recent
fiscal year presented on the Associated Schools’ academic dashboards, and
4. The charter holder meets the financial and operational eligibility requirements.

Expansion requests include:
• Adding a new charter school that is currently not in operation under an existing charter contract
• Increasing the number of students the charter holder may serve at its school(s)
• Adding or changing to an Arizona Online Instruction (“AOI”) program of instruction
• Increasing the grade levels the charter holder is approved to serve
• Replicating an existing charter
• Transferring a charter school from an existing charter contract to its own charter contract
• Transferring a charter school or charter contract from the current charter holder to an existing
charter holder with a different dashboard
If during the processing of one of the expansion requests identified above the Board develops new
academic dashboards for the schools operated by the charter holder, Associated School(s), or both, then
Board staff will reevaluate the charter holder’s eligibility based on the most recent fiscal year academic
dashboard.
Five year interval reviews are counted using the first year in which the charter holder may operate a charter
school under its charter contract

2

1

Associated Schools
An Associated School is:
• A school operated by a charter holder that operates one or more other schools that contract
with the same Education Service Provider.
• A school operated by the same charter holder but under different charter contracts.
• A school operated by a charter holder with at least fifty (50) percent of corporate board
officers, directors, members or partners in common, as reflected in the charter
contract.
The Board will consider the academic performance of Associated Schools in its consideration of
replication applications and new charter applications submitted by officers, directors, partners or
members, or charter representatives of existing Charter charter Holders holders and may consider
associated schools at other times.

Conclusion
A strong academic framework is critical for setting clear expectations for schools and for making highstakes decisions more clear-cut and transparent. The creation and implementation of the academic
framework required that the Board consider many factors, including which data elements are available,
the quality of the data, and what information will support the Board in making high-stakes decisions.
Summarizing data into an Overall Rating that leads to certain predictable decisions and consequences
supports the Board making objective, data-driven decisions. The academic framework provides an
effective means to use ratings to “flag” a school for further evaluation, and then make a judgment about
how to apply the consequences with relevant information being considered. This two-step process
provides a transparent, data-driven method of placing schools in different categories of reward, review,
or consequence.
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School-Specific Academic Goals
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School-Specific Academic Goals
TThe Board recognizes that there are charter schools serving special populations that do not have an
achievement profile pursuant to A.R.S. § 15-241(I) preponderant populations of at-risk students that are
not included in the State’s criteria to obtain Alternative School status and has provided an opportunity
for those schools to request use of school-specific academic goals in place of the State Accountability
indicator.
Identifying Eligible Schools
The SchoolThe School-Specific Academic Goals indicator is not intended to replace State Accountability measures
for schools that are identified as Alternative, or for any schools that have an achievement profile
established by the Department of Education and adopted by the State Board of Education for state
accountability pursuant to A.R.S. § 15-241(HI).Schools receiving an achievement profile pursuant to
A.R.S. § 15-241(H) are not eligible to apply for School-Specific Academic Goals.

Subject to adoption by the State Board of Education, the Department of Education is required to use
appropriate achievement profiles to assess accommodation schools, alternative schools, and extremely
small schools and may develop achievement profiles for Arizona Online Instruction schools and others.
. Under the current criteria to obtain Alternative School Status, the school must be approved by the
Arizona Department of Education to serve students in one or more of the following categories:
Students who have a documented history of disruptive behavior issues.
Students who have dropped out of school and are now returning.
Students in poor academic standing as demonstrated by being at least one year behind on grade level
performance or academic credits.
Students who are primary caregivers or are financially responsible for dependents and, therefore, may
require a flexible school schedule.
Students who are adjudicated.
Students who are wards of the state and are in need of an alternative school setting
Schools receiving an achievement profile pursuant to A.R.S. § 15-241(H) are not eligible to apply for
School-Specific Academic Goals.
Schools Eligible to Apply for School-Specific Academic Goals
A charter holder that operates a school that serves a special population (e.g. majority homeless or
students with disabilities) that does not have an achievement profile established by the Department of
Education and adopted by the State Board of Education for state accountability pursuant to A.R.S. § 15241(HI) may petition the Board to adopt unique performance standards. The Board shall consider a
petition for use of the Schoolschool-Specific specific Academic academic Goals goals if at least 70% of
the students served by the school are identified as having at least one of the following risk factors:


Identified as needing special education services
12



Homeless

Schools that meet the criteria shall be approved by the Board to use school-specific academic goals. The
charter holder shall provide verification that it meets the eligibility criteria at the time of initial application
for use of school-specific academic goals and at subsequent five-year interval reviews.
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Indicators and Measures
If approved by the Board, four to six school-specific academic goals along with specific metric(s) and
target(s) must be developed and agreed to by the charter holder and the Board. School-specific academic
goals will be incorporated into the charter contract for the charter holder. School-specific academic goals
s shall select one or more measures from must address each of the indicators listed below and select one
or more of the accompanying measures:
Student Growth – Academic improvement over time on valid and reliable assessments of Arizona
academic standards.
Student Achievement – Academic proficiency on valid and reliable assessments of Arizona academic
standards.
Post-secondary Readiness (high school only) – Outcomes in key subjects that indicate future success or
that are aligned to college and career readiness such as graduation rates, SAT/ACT performance,
workforce readiness, credit/course completion, or other metrics.
Student Engagement – Predictors of student achievement such as suspension rates, in-seat attendance
rates, and positive socio-emotional or psychological adjustment rates.

14
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Academic Systems Review
As part of the Five Five-Year Intervals Review Processprocess, the Board will conduct a
comprehensive on-site Academic Systems Reviewvisit to gain an understanding of how the school
develops and implements the following:
•

A curriculum that designed to improves student achievement.

•

A system for monitoring the integration of the State Arizona academic standards.

•

A system for monitoring and documenting student proficiency.

•

A professional development plan that supports effective implementation of the curriculum.

Purpose: This visitThe Academic Systems Review (“ASR”) is designed to gather evidence regarding
the school’s implementation in providing a comprehensive program of instruction and designing a
method to measure pupil progress toward pupil outcomes, as required in the charter contract. A set
of criteria is used by Board staff to review the school’s implementation of its academic systems. to
determine the school’s implementation.
Length: 0.5 – 1 day (typically scheduled 8:30 am to 12:30 pm)
Team: Board staff
Product: A Five-Year Intervals Review Report will summarize the Board staff’s findings based on
observations at the school site, discussion with the school leadership team, and a review of
documents. In addition, each report will include a summary of the charter holder’s academic, financial
and operational performance and any areas requiring further attention. The findings will consist of a
summary of the school’s implementation in specific areas and identification of any areas requiring
attention.
Eligible Schools: All charter schools operated by a charter holder at the time of their five and ten
yearten-year interval review and prior to renewal.
Criteria: The ASR criteria determines the extent to which the school has:
1. An explicit, written curriculum for core content areas that is aligned with Arizona academic
standards.
2. A systematic process for reviewing and evaluating the curriculum, at specific intervals, for
alignment to Arizona academic standards and improving student academic outcomes for the
population served.
3. A teacher evaluation system to monitor the integration of state standards into instruction.
4. An assessment plan to track, analyze, and monitor student academic performance.
5. A professional development plan that aligns with the program of instruction and best
practices.
The school delivers a comprehensive program of instruction and has designed a method to
measure pupil progress toward pupil outcomes that provides improved academic outcomes and
educational success for all students.
16

Below are the main questions that will guide the Board staff’s inquiry during the site visit
Does the school have an explicit, written curriculum for core content areas that is aligned with the
state academic standards that drills down to the skill level?
Is there a systematic process in place for annually monitoring, evaluating, and reviewing the
curriculum?
How is the integration of the state academic standards into the teachers’ instructional practices
assessed?
What does the school’s teacher evaluation system comprise of? (Type, Frequency, Formative &
Summative)
Is there a comprehensive assessment plan that utilizes data in a variety of ways to measure student
performance and plan for teaching and learning?
How does the school staff track, analyze, and monitor its students’ academic performance?
What evidence demonstrates that the professional development the teachers are engaged in is
increasing student achievement?
How are the professional development activities aligned with the program of instruction (curriculum,
methods of instruction, best practices)? What types of follow-up activities occur?
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Financial Performance Framework Guidance
Charter holders have the autonomy to manage their finances consistent with state and federal
law and the charter contract. The purpose of the Financial Performance Framework (“financial
framework”) is to communicate the State Board for Charter Schools’ (“Board”) expectations for
ensuring that all charter holders in its portfolio are viable organizations with strong fiscal
management practices. To this end, the financial framework focuses on outcomes or
performance goals not necessarily established in law.
The Board, in its oversight of charter holders and the schools that they operate, strives not to be
over-reaching, but also recognizes the need to protect the public’s interests. Because charter
schools are public schools they must maintain the public’s trust that they are implementing their
education program as set out in the charter, spending public funds responsibly, and adhering to
laws and charter requirements regarding their operations. However, the Board is aware of the
delicate balance between appropriate oversight and infringement on autonomy.
In developing the financial framework, the Board remained conscious of its limited resources to
implement the financial framework. The Board was also mindful of its commitment to
maintaining current levels of data collection so as not to unnecessarily burden the charter
holders with requirements to submit additional information for financial performance rating
determinations.

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE FRAMEWORK STRUCTURE
The financial framework, which has been included as Appendix A, gauges both near-term
financial health and longer term financial sustainability. The portion of the financial framework
that tests a charter holder’s near-term financial health is designed to depict the charter holder’s
financial position and viability for the upcoming year. The portion of the financial framework
that tests a charter holder’s longer term financial sustainability is designed to depict the charter
holder’s financial position and viability over time. Charter holders meeting the desired standards
demonstrate a low risk of financial distress. Charter holders not meeting the desired standards
may currently be experiencing financial difficulties and/or may be at a higher risk for financial
hardship in the future.
The financial framework includes five main levels of information: Indicators, Measures, Metrics,
Targets, and Ratings. In addition to the information found below, the financial framework’s
measures, metrics, targets, and ratings are further described in the “Measures in Detail” section
of this guidance.
Indicators
Indicators are general categories of financial performance used to identify the financial
information that best reflects the current financial status of a charter holder versus the
information that better depicts the future financial viability of the charter holder. Near-Term
Indicators and Sustainability Indicators are used in the financial framework.
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Measures
Measures are the general means to evaluate an aspect of an indicator. Six measures are used in
the financial framework: Going Concern, Unrestricted Days Liquidity, Default, Net Income, Cash
Flow, and Fixed Charge Coverage Ratio.
Metrics
Metrics are a means for evaluating measures. As an example, the formula for evaluating Net
Income is total revenues less total expenses.
Targets
Targets are the thresholds set to determine whether performance for a specific measure has
been met or not. Using the Net Income measure again, the Board has set the target for the
“Meets Standard” rating as Net Income is greater than or equal to $1.
Ratings
For each measure a charter holder receives one of three ratings based on whether the charter
holder met the target.
Meets Standard
The charter holder’s performance on this measure does not signal a financial risk to the charter
holder and meets the Board’s expectation. Meeting the standard requires no follow up action
by the charter holder.
Does Not Meet Standard
The charter holder’s performance on this measure signals a moderate financial risk to the
charter holder and does not meet the Board’s expectation. This measure may require follow up
depending on the interplay with other measures. Charter holders not meeting the standard in
more than one measure are required to submit a financial performance response as addressed
in the “Evaluation and Intervention” section of this document and Appendix B. Not meeting the
standard may have an adverse impact on the consideration of the renewal application package
and other requests made by the charter holder or at times when disciplinary action is
considered. Charter holders may also be limited in their ability to expand their operations.
Falls Far Below Standard
The charter holder’s performance on this measure signals a potentially significant financial risk
to the charter holder and is far below the Board’s expectation. Charter holders are required to
submit a financial performance response as addressed in the “Evaluation and Intervention”
section of this document and Appendix B. Falling far below the standard may have an adverse
impact on the consideration of the renewal application package and other requests made by the
charter holder or at times when disciplinary action is considered. Charter holders may be
limited in their ability to expand their operations.
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USING USE OF THE FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE FRAMEWORK
Collecting Evidence
The annual statutorily required audits conducted by independent certified public accountants
provide the information necessary to determine a charter holder’s financial performance. In
accordance with the parameters established in the Board’s Strategic Plan, the financial
framework uses information already collected by the Board to assess charter holders’ financial
performance and does not require charter holders to provide additional information for rating
determinations.
The following information from the annual audit reporting packages will be used:
• Independent Auditor’s Report on the financial statements
• Audited statement of financial position
• Audited statement of activities and changes in net assets
• Audited statement of cash flows
• Notes to the audited financial statements
• Applicable compliance questionnaire
Since a large percentage of the Board’s charter contracts are with non-profit entities,
throughout this document the financial statements will be referred to using non-profit
terminology. Statements reported in for-profit or governmental audits use the following
corresponding names:
Non-profit
Statement of Financial Position
Statement of Activities and
Changes in Net Assets1
Statement of Cash Flows

For-profit
Balance Sheet
Income Statement
Statement of Cash Flows

Governmental
Statement of Net Assets
Statement of Activities
Statement of Cash Flows
(Note: This statement is required only
under certain circumstances.)

Through ASBCS Online, the Board has provided online public access to the audit reporting
packages of Board-sponsored charter holders. Information about how to access the annual audit
reporting packages through ASBCS Online is available on the Board’s website.
Evaluation and Intervention
The established targets are used to determine whether the charter holder is meeting each
measure based on the available existing data. The evaluation is completed annually using the
charter holder’s most recent audit reporting package and a determination is made as to
whether the charter holder met the Board’s financial performance standard for the audited
fiscal year and whether the charter holder met the Board’s financial performance expectations.
A charter holder that does not meet the Board’s financial performance expectations may be
required to submit a financial performance response.
Meets the Board’s Financial Performance Standard
To meet the financial performance standard, the charter holder must receive no “Falls Far Below
Standard” ratings and no more than one “Does Not Meet Standard” rating using the most recent
1

This statement may also be referred to as the “statement of activities”.
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annual audit. A charter holder that receives two or more “Does Not Meet Standard”, one or
more “Falls Far Below Standard”, or both based on the charter holder’s most recent audit
reporting package does not meet the Board’s financial performance standard.2
Meets the Board’s Financial Performance Expectations
As shown in the table below, a charter holder’s financial performance for the most recent
audited fiscal year and the prior audited fiscal year are used to determine whether the charter
holder meets the Board’s financial performance expectations.

Previous Audit

Most Recent Audit

Meets Board’s Financial
Performance Expectations?

MEETS financial
performance standard

MEETS financial
performance standard

Yes

DOES NOT MEET financial
performance standard

MEETS financial
performance standard

Yes

MEETS financial
performance standard

DOES NOT MEET financial
performance standard; no
measure receives “Falls Far
Below Standard”

Yes

MEETS financial
performance standard

DOES NOT MEET financial
performance standard; 1 or
more measures receive
“Falls Far Below Standard”

No

DOES NOT MEET financial
performance standard

DOES NOT MEET financial
performance standard

No

Financial Performance Dashboard
A charter holder’s financial performance is represented in a dashboard format, which
summarizes the charter holder’s performance on each measure. The financial performance
dashboard (“dashboard”) reflects financial performance for the two most recent audited years,
identifies whether the performance meets the Board’s expectations, and becomes publicly
available through ASBCS Online after the audit is reviewed and the financial data entered by

2

In those instances where the Board receives financial statements that cover multiple and different charter holder
entities, the charter holder’s performance will be evaluated under the financial framework using the charter holder
specific financial information and the financial information for the consolidated/combined entity. Failure of the
individual charter holder or the consolidated/combined entity to meet the Board’s financial performance
expectations will result in the charter holder being required to submit a financial performance response.
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Board staff.3 Information about how to access and interpret the dashboards is available on the
Board’s website.
Financial Eligibility for Expansion Requests
A charter holder is eligible to submit or, as applicable, to be the receiving party in the expansion
requests identified below if all of the following are true:
1. A dashboard for the charter holder is available through ASBCS Online4.
2. The charter holder has no measure rated “Falls Far Below Standard” for the most recent
fiscal year presented on the charter holder’s dashboard.
3. 75 percent or more of all Associated Charters (defined below) have no measure rated
“Falls Far Below Standard” for the most recent fiscal year presented on the Associated
Charters’ dashboards. If one or more Associated Charters are excluded for financial
performance purposes, then 100 percent of the remaining Associated Charters must
have no measure rated “Falls Far Below Standard” for the most recent fiscal year
presented on the Associated Charters’ dashboards.
4. The charter holder meets the academic and operational eligibility requirements.
Expansion requests include:
• Adding a new charter school that is currently not in operation under an existing charter
contract
• Increasing the number of students the charter holder may serve at its school(s)
• Adding or changing to an Arizona Online Instruction (AOI) program of instruction
• Increasing the grade levels the charter holder is approved to serve
• Replicating an existing charter
• Transferring a charter school from an existing charter contract to its own charter
contract5
• Transferring a charter school or charter contract from the current charter holder to an
existing charter holder with a different dashboard6
For eligibility determination purposes, an Associated Charter is:
• A charter operated by a charter holder that contracts with the same education service
provider.
• A charter operated by the same charter holder.
• A charter operated by a charter holder with at least 50 percent of the officers, directors,
members or partners in common, as reflected in the charter contract.
An Associated Charter may be excluded if the Associated Charter is in its first year of operation
and has not yet submitted its first audit reporting package to the Board.
3

In those instances where the Board receives financial statements that cover multiple and different charter holder
entities, the charter holder’s dashboard will include both the charter holder’s financial performance and the financial
performance of the consolidated/combined entity. (See also footnote 2.)
4 The Board must have received the charter holder’s first audit reporting package for the charter holder to be eligible
to submit an expansion request. If the audit reporting package has been submitted but a dashboard is not available
through ASBCS Online, please contact your Education Program Manager.
5 The eligibility requirements apply whether the charter school is being transferred to its own charter contract that
will be held by a charter holder with the same name or with a different name as the existing charter holder.
6 For these requests, only the financial performance of the receiving charter holder is considered when determining
eligibility.

6

If during the processing of one of the expansion requests identified above the Board receives
the next audit reporting package for the charter holder, Associated Charter(s) or both, then
Board staff will update the applicable dashboard(s) and reevaluate the charter holder’s eligibility
based on the most recent audit reporting package(s). For a charter holder determined to no
longer be financially eligible, Board staff will notify the charter holder and close the request.
Review of Charter Holders’ Financial Performance
A charter holder’s financial performance will be considered by the Board at the following times:7
• When considering a charter contract renewal request submitted by the charter holder
• During five-year interval reviews
• Upon receipt of information that a charter school operated by the charter holder has
been assigned a letter grade of “F” under the state accountability system
• If a charter school operated by a charter holder has failed to meet the Board’s academic
performance standard for three consecutive years
• Addition of a new school that is currently not in operation under an existing charter
contract8
• Increase in the number of students the charter holder may serve at its school(s)8
• Addition of or change to an AOI program of instruction8
• Increase in the grade levels the charter holder is approved to serve8
• Replication of an existing charter8
• Transfer of a charter school from an existing charter contract to its own charter contract
held by a charter holder with a different name than the existing charter holder8
• Transfer of a charter school or charter contract from the current charter holder to an
existing charter holder with a different dashboard8
• Transfer of the charter contract from another sponsor to the Board
• When the Board makes decisions related to a charter holder’s academic performance, a
charter holder’s compliance with its charter and state and federal laws, or
• when When a new charter application package is submitted by an officer, director,
partner, member or charter representative of the charter holder9
Financial Performance Response
A charter holder’s financial performance will be used by the Board during the term of the
charter:
• To stipulate the conditions which waive the charter holder from any submission
requirements related to its financial operations.
• To stipulate the conditions which require the charter holder to submit additional
information or clarification that will be used to inform the Board’s decision-making.
A charter holder that meets the Board’s financial performance expectations will be waived from
submitting a financial performance response at the times identified in the “Review of Charter
7

At the time of consideration by the Board, the most current audited financial information will be provided.
The Board has established financial eligibility criteria for this request (see “Financial Eligibility for Expansion
Requests” section.
9 In these situations, a charter holder will be able to address its financial performance at the Board meeting, but an
opportunity will not be built in to the process for the charter holder to provide a written response in advance of the
meeting.
8
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Holders’ Financial Performance” section and in Appendix B. A charter holder that does not meet
the Board’s financial performance expectations at the times identified in the “Review of Charter
Holders’ Financial Performance” section and in Appendix B will be required to submit a financial
performance response if, as applicable, the charter holder meets the eligibility requirements
identified in the “Financial Eligibility for Expansion Requests” section. For more information
regarding the financial performance response, please see Appendix C.
For requests involving the transfer of a charter school or charter contract from a current charter
holder to a charter holder with a different dashboard, both the current charter holder and the
eligible receiving charter holder must meet the Board’s financial performance expectations to
be waived from submitting a financial performance response. If the receiving charter holder
meets the eligibility requirements, but one or both charter holders do not meet the Board’s
financial performance expectations, then the charter holder(s) that does not meet the Board’s
financial performance expectations will be required to submit a financial performance response.
If only one year of financial performance is available, a charter holder seeking to submit an
expansion request must meet the Board’s financial performance standard in order to be waived
from submitting a financial performance response.

MEASURES IN DETAIL
This section describes each of the measures included in the financial framework. A charter
holder’s financial performance is evaluated annually using the charter holder’s most recent
audit reporting package. It is important to note that the financial framework excludes measures
of how a charter holder manages and expends its funds as the financial framework is not
designed to evaluate a charter holder’s spending decisions. For example, there are no measures
that address what portion of the costs are for direct instruction; rather the measures focus on
the overall expenses versus the offsetting revenues. The financial framework analyzes the
financial performance of a charter holder, not its processes for managing that performance.

1a. Going Concern – Near-Term Indicator
Definition: Going concern is the idea that the charter holder will continue to engage in its
activities for the foreseeable future.
Overview: Auditing standards require an auditor to evaluate an organization’s ability to continue
operating for the next year. If the auditor has substantial doubt about whether the organization
will operate for at least the next year, then the independent auditor’s report would include a
paragraph explaining this concern and information, including management’s plans, would be
disclosed in the notes to the audited financial statements. The auditor’s consideration of
management’s plans may alleviate the “substantial doubt” about the organization’s ability to
continue operating. In those instances, the auditor may disclose in the notes to the audited
financial statements the conditions and events that initially caused the auditor to believe there
was substantial doubt, but wouldn’t include a paragraph in the independent auditor’s report.
Source of Data: Independent Auditor’s Report on the financial statements and the notes to the
audited financial statements.
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1a. Going Concern
Meets Standard:
 The most recent audit reporting package does not include explanatory paragraph in Independent Auditor’s
Report or disclosure in the notes to the financial statements
Does Not Meet Standard:
No “Does Not Meet Standard” target established for this measure
Falls Far Below Standard (in one of two ways):
 Independent Auditor’s Report for the most recent audit reporting package includes an explanatory paragraph
and disclosure is included in notes to the financial statements
or
 Disclosure included in notes to the financial statements for the most recent audit reporting package, but no
modification to Independent Auditor’s Report

Basis for Target Level: If the audit reporting package includes a going concern disclosure in the
independent auditor’s report or the notes to the audited financial statements, then the
independent auditor has concerns about the charter holder’s viability. A charter holder in this
situation may have difficulty meeting operational and academic obligations required under law
and its charter contract.

1b. Unrestricted Days Liquidity – Near-Term Indicator
Definition: The unrestricted days liquidity measure indicates how many days a charter holder can
pay its expenses without an influx of cash.
Overview: Unexpected costs arise when operating a charter school. Additionally, circumstances
outside of the charter holder’s control may impact the amount and timing of funding received
from the State and other sources. Therefore, maintaining a reserve is a common best practice.
The unrestricted days liquidity measure translates into a more readily understandable number a
charter holder’s unrestricted cash balance and available balances from other sources of liquidity
disclosed in the annual audit reporting package, including lines of credit. Please note that the
Board will not round numbers when determining a charter holder’s financial performance on
this measure.
A.R.S. §15-977 limits how Classroom Site Fund (CSF) monies may be spent. Therefore, if a
charter holder does not spend all of the CSF monies it received during the fiscal year, then at the
end of the year, the charter holder needs to have enough cash in the bank to cover the unspent
portion from current and prior years (“carryover”). Since the CSF carryover monies may only be
used for the purposes specified in statute, any year-end CSF cash carryover balance will be
removed when determining the charter holder’s unrestricted cash.
Source of Data: Audited statement of financial position, audited statement of activities and
changes in net assets, notes to the audited financial statements, and compliance
questionnaire10.
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For fiscal years prior to and including 2011, the year-end Classroom Site Fund cash carryover was not required to be
disclosed in the audit reporting package. Beginning with fiscal year 2012, the year-end CSF cash carryover must, at a
minimum, be disclosed in the Classroom Site Fund section of the applicable compliance questionnaire.
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1b. Unrestricted Days Liquidity: (Unrestricted Cash + Other Sources of Liquidity*) divided by (Total Expenses/365)
* “Other Sources of Liquidity” is defined as available balances from any sources of liquidity other than cash that are disclosed
in the annual audit reporting package and may include, but not be limited to, lines of credit.
[Note: The Classroom Site Fund cash carryover balance at June 30th would be considered restricted cash and, therefore,
would be removed as part of identifying a charter holder’s unrestricted cash as of June 30th.]

Meets Standard:
 30 or more days liquidity
Does Not Meet Standard:
 At least 15 days liquidity but fewer than 30 days liquidity
Falls Far Below Standard:
 Fewer than 15 days liquidity

Basis for Target Level: Having access to cash or other sources of liquidity equaling at least 30
days of operating expenses is a standard minimum for any organization. In the event of
unforeseen circumstances (e.g., unexpected costs, changes to State funding), 30 days of cash or
other liquidity would help the charter holder make payroll, pay the rent, and keep the charter
school’s doors open until the charter holder receives its next State equalization payment or until
other funding is secured. If a charter holder has fewer than 15 days of cash or other liquidity,
should unforeseen circumstances arise, the charter holder may have difficulty making its next
payroll and meeting other obligations before receiving its next influx of cash.

1c. Default – Near-Term Indicator
Definition: Default indicates that a lender has issued a formal notice of loan default to the
charter holder.
Overview: In addition to making timely payments, financial institutions may include other terms
and requirements (sometimes referred to as “covenants”) in their agreements with charter
holders. Individuals who make loans to charter holders may establish agreements with similar
requirements. Failure to make timely payments or comply with debt covenants does not
automatically result in a formal notice of default being issued by the lender and therefore would
not be considered a “material” default. However, in those cases where formal notice of default
has been issued by the lender, this measure will be rated “Falls Far Below Standard”.
Source of Data: Notes to the audited financial statements.
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1c. Default: Defined as in True Default on Obligations
Meets Standard:
 Charter holder is not in default on material loans
Does Not Meet Standard:
No “Does Not Meet Standard” target established for this measure
Falls Far Below Standard:
 Charter holder is in default on material loans

Basis for Target Level: A charter holder that has received formal notice of default from a lender
may be at higher risk of financial distress and may have difficulty meeting its operational and
academic obligations required under law and the charter contract.

2a. Net Income – Sustainability Indicator
Definition: Net income, which equals total revenues less total expenses, looks at whether or not a
charter holder is operating within its available resources.
Overview: The net income measure identifies whether a charter holder operates at a surplus
(total revenues exceed total expenses) or a deficit (total expenses exceed total revenues). It
should be noted that a charter holder may make a strategic choice to operate at a deficit for a
year. Continued deficits for a sustained period of time could adversely affect the charter
holder’s ability to meet its obligations.
Source of Data: Audited statement of activities and changes in net assets.
2a. Net Income: Total Revenues less Total Expenses
Meets Standard:
 Net income is greater than or equal to $1
Does Not Meet Standard:
 Net income is zero or negative
Falls Far Below Standard:
No “Falls Far Below Standard” target established for this measure

Basis for Target Level: Positive net income contributes to the charter holder’s reserve. Having a
reserve gives the charter holder more flexibility in responding as situations arise that are outside
of the charter holder’s control. The targets established for this measure focus on whether the
charter holder operated during the fiscal year with a surplus or deficit rather than the
magnitude of the surplus or deficit.

2b. Cash Flow – Sustainability Indicator
Definition: The cash flow measure shows the change in a charter holder’s cash balance from one
fiscal year to another.
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Overview: This measure is similar to the unrestricted days liquidity measure, but looks at longer
term financial stability versus near-term financial health. Since cash flow fluctuations from yearto-year can have a long-term impact on the charter holder’s financial health, this measure
assesses three-year cumulative cash flow. For information regarding the underlying factors that
have contributed to the annual cash flow fluctuations experienced by the charter holder, please
review the audited statement of cash flows. If the Board has received only one or two audit
reporting packages at the time of review, the charter holder’s financial performance under this
measure will be evaluated using the information available.
For each fiscal year, the cash flow equals the
current year’s total cash minus the prior
year’s total cash. Adding the cash flow for
each of the three fiscal years together will
provide the three-year aggregate cash flow.
The “Cash Flow Calculation Example” textbox
found on this page shows how to calculate
the cash flow measure using fiscal year 2012
as the most recent audited fiscal year available.

Cash Flow Calculation Example
Calculate the annual cash flow:
FY2012 Cash Flow = FY2012 Total Cash – FY2011 Total Cash
FY2011 Cash Flow = FY2011 Total Cash – FY2010 Total Cash
FY2010 Cash Flow = FY2010 Total Cash – FY2009 Total Cash
Add together the FY2012 Cash Flow, FY2011 Cash Flow, and
FY2010 Cash Flow to determine the three-year cumulative
cash flow.

Source of Data: Audited statement of financial position.
2b. Cash Flow: One-Year Cash Flow = Current Year Total Cash less Prior Year Total Cash
Meets Standard:
 Three-year cumulative cash flow is positive
Does Not Meet Standard:
 Three-year cumulative cash flow is negative
Falls Far Below Standard:
No “Falls Far Below Standard” target established for this measure

Basis for Target Level: Cash flow should be greater than zero as a positive cash flow over time
generally indicates increasing financial health and sustainability of the charter holder.

2c. Fixed Charge Coverage Ratio – Sustainability Indicator
Definition: The fixed charge coverage ratio looks at the amount of cushion in the charter holder’s
cash flow to cover fixed obligations or charges.
Overview: Fixed charges represent the charter holder’s fixed financial commitments. These
charges occur regardless of changes in revenue or other circumstances that may affect the
charter holder’s financial situation, which is why the term “fixed” is used. For this ratio, fixed
charges would include lease payments, loan payments, and interest.
The ratio includes interest and lease expense in both the numerator and denominator even
though it appears that in the end they would cancel each other out. This has been done for two
reasons. First, because the ratio components are more encompassing, it helps in determining
the true cushion in cash flow to cover fixed obligations. Second, if the ratio’s numerator
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included only change in net assets, depreciation and amortization and the denominator was
unchanged, the ratio would solve for a charter holder’s ability to meet lease and interest
expense payments after it has already paid lease and interest expense, because lease and
interest expense have already been deducted to arrive at the change in net assets.
The individual ratio components are described in more detail below:
• Change in Net Assets – The change in net assets results from revenues, expenses and
the release of assets from restrictions. For for-profit charter holders, the ratio would use
net income after tax instead of change in net assets.
• Depreciation – Depreciation is the allocation of a fixed asset’s costs over the useful life
of the asset and involves the movement of costs from the statement of financial
position to the statement of activities and changes in net assets. Fixed assets include
items such as buildings, furnishings and vehicles. Depreciation is known as a noncash
expense. Although charter holders are required to record this expense in their
accounting records, depreciation does not use cash. Therefore, depreciation is added
back into the ratio’s numerator.
• Amortization – Amortization is similar to depreciation but it involves the allocation of an
intangible asset’s costs over a period of time. Intangible assets include items such as
bond issuance costs. Although charter holders are required to record this expense, as
applicable, in their accounting records, amortization does not use cash. Therefore,
amortization is added back into the ratio’s numerator.
• Interest Expense – Interest expense reflects the charter holder’s cost of borrowing for
the fiscal year. As a result of the accounting method charter holders are required to use,
interest expense may not equal the amount of interest paid to lenders. Interest paid
reflects the cash paid to lenders for interest and may be higher or lower than the
interest expense for the fiscal year. In calculating the ratio, the dollar amount used for
“interest expense” would also be used for “interest”.
• Lease Expense – Lease expense includes facility leases and operating leases where at the
end of the lease ownership of the item does not transfer to the charter holder.
• Current Portion of Long-Term Debt and Capital Leases (CPLTDCL) – The CPLTDCL includes
the portion of debt that must be paid by the charter holder within the next fiscal year.
The “current portion of long-term debt” would include bond/loan payments for charter
holders that own their facilities, as well as payments related to other long-term loans
obtained by the charter holder and capital leases.
Please note that the Board will not round numbers when determining a charter holder’s
financial performance on this measure.
Source of Data:
• Changes in Net Assets – Audited statement of activities and changes in net assets.
• Depreciation and Amortization – Audited statement of cash flows and/or notes to the
audited financial statements.
• Interest Expense – Notes to the audited financial statements. Interest expense may also
be available on the audited statement of activities and changes in net assets, if the
statement includes sufficient detail, or the statement of functional expense, if available.
If interest expense cannot be determined, interest paid may be used and is found on the
statement of cash flows.
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•
•

Lease Expense – Notes to the audited financial statements.
Current Portion of Long-Term Debt and Capital Leases – Audited statement of financial
position.

2c. Fixed Charge Coverage Ratio: (Change in Net Assets* + Depreciation + Amortization + Interest Expense
+ Lease Expense)/(Current Portion of Long-Term Debt and Capital Leases + Interest + Lease Expense)
* Net Income After Tax would be used when calculating the ratio for for-profit charter holders.

Meets Standard:
 Fixed Charge Coverage Ratio is equal to or exceeds 1.10
Does Not Meet Standard:
 Fixed Charge Coverage Ratio is less than 1.10
Falls Far Below Standard:
No “Falls Far Below Standard” target established for this measure

Basis for Target Level: Financially healthy entities have a cushion in cash flow coverage. The 1.1
used in the “meets” target is typical for non-profit organizations. Since capitalized expenses,
such as buses and equipment, are not included in the statement of activities and changes in net
assets, they need to be covered by the cushion in cash flow or through outside financing.
Another benefit of excess cash flow is that a charter holder can build up cash and equity to
purchase larger assets, such as a building. Since banks will only finance up to a certain amount
of the building, the difference needs to be funded by the charter holder. The only way to build
up cash/equity is through retention of the earnings cushion or from an injection of equity from
an outside source. Charter holders that operate where fixed charges are only covered at 1:1 will
not have the same flexibility as those that generate cash flow in excess of that level.
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Appendix A

Financial Performance Framework
Board Strategic Plan O bjective: All charter holders in the portfolio are viable organizations
with strong fiscal management practices.

1. NEAR-TERM INDICATORS
1a. Going Concern
Meets Standard:
 The most recent audit reporting package does not include explanatory paragraph in Independent Auditor’s Report or disclosure
in the notes to the financial statements
Does Not Meet Standard:
No “Does Not Meet Standard” target established for this measure
Falls Far Below Standard (in one of two ways):
 Independent Auditor’s Report for the most recent audit reporting package includes an explanatory paragraph and disclosure is
included in notes to the financial statements
or
 Disclosure included in notes to the financial statements for the most recent audit reporting package, but no modification to
Independent Auditor’s Report

1b. Unrestricted Days Liquidity: (Unrestricted Cash + Other Sources of Liquidity*) divided by (Total Expenses/365)
* “Other Sources of Liquidity” is defined as available balances from any sources of liquidity other than cash that are disclosed in the
annual audit reporting package and may include, but not be limited to, lines of credit.
[Note: The Classroom Site Fund cash carryover balance at June 30th would be considered restricted cash and, therefore, would be
removed as part of identifying a charter holder’s unrestricted cash as of June 30th.]

Meets Standard:
 30 or more days liquidity
Does Not Meet Standard:
 At least 15 days liquidity but fewer than 30 days liquidity
Falls Far Below Standard:
 Fewer than 15 days liquidity

1c. Default: Defined as in True Default on Obligations
Meets Standard:
 Charter holder is not in default on material loans
Does Not Meet Standard:
No “Does Not Meet Standard” target established for this measure
Falls Far Below Standard:
 Charter holder is in default on material loans
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2. SUSTAINABILITY INDICATORS
2a. Net Income: Total Revenues less Total Expenses
Meets Standard:
 Net income is greater than or equal to $1
Does Not Meet Standard:
 Net income is zero or negative
Falls Far Below Standard:
No “Falls Far Below Standard” target established for this measure

2b. Cash Flow: One-Year Cash Flow = Current Year Total Cash less Prior Year Total Cash
Meets Standard:
 Three-year cumulative cash flow is positive
Does Not Meet Standard:
 Three-year cumulative cash flow is negative
Falls Far Below Standard:
No “Falls Far Below Standard” target established for this measure

2c. Fixed Charge Coverage Ratio: (Change in Net Assets* + Depreciation + Amortization + Interest Expense + Lease
Expense)/(Current Portion of Long-Term Debt and Capital Leases + Interest + Lease Expense)
* Net Income After Tax would be used when calculating the ratio for for-profit charter holders.

Meets Standard:
 Fixed Charge Coverage Ratio is equal to or exceeds 1.10
Does Not Meet Standard:
 Fixed Charge Coverage Ratio is less than 1.10
Falls Far Below Standard:
No “Falls Far Below Standard” target established for this measure
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Appendix B

Financial Expectations Not Met: Charter Holder Action & Board Consideration
For charter holders that do not meet the Board’s financial performance expectations but do meet the expansion
eligibility requirements, as applicable, the table below specifies by monitoring, expansion or transfer area what
the charter holder must do and how that information will be used by the Board in its decision-making. This table
in no way precludes the Board from considering a charter holder’s financial performance or from assigning a
financial performance response at other times when the Board makes decisions, for example, related to a charter
holder’s academic performance or a charter holder’s compliance with its charter and state and federal laws.
In accordance with A.A.C. R7-5-509, if the process the charter holder is in requires consideration at a Board
meeting and at least one measure was rated as “Not Acceptable” in Board staff’s evaluation conducted under
Appendix C, Board staff shall provide the charter holder with the opportunity to supplement the financial
performance response based on the feedback included in the evaluation.

Academic Performance
Framework
(Monitoring)

Charter Holder Action
If a charter school operated by the charter
holder has failed to meet the Board’s
academic performance standard for three
consecutive years and the charter holder
does not meet the Board’s financial
performance expectations, the charter holder
must submit a financial performance
response that addresses each measure for
the most recent audited fiscal year presented
in the dashboard where the charter holder
received a “Does Not Meet Standard” or a
“Falls Far Below Standard”. For additional
information regarding the financial
performance response, please see Appendix
C.

Board Consideration
Board staff will review the financial
performance response and evaluate it in
accordance with Appendix C. The charter
holder’s financial performance response
(supplemented, as applicable) and the final
evaluation instrument completed by staff will
be provided to the Board when the Board
considers the charter holder’s academic
performance. Additionally, a table showing the
charter holder’s financial data and financial
performance for the last three audited fiscal
years (if three years are available) will be
included in the staff report provided to the
Board, as well as an analysis prepared by staff
of the charter holder’s financial performance,
focusing on those measures where the charter
holder failed to meet the Board’s target and
using information from the charter holder’s
response and related documents.
The charter holder’s financial performance may
be considered by the Board as an aggravating
factor in its decision-making.

Arizona Online
Instruction (AOI) –
Addition of or change
to an AOI program of
instruction
(Expansion)

If the charter holder meets the eligibility
requirements specified on pages 6 and 7, the
charter holder must submit:
 A financial performance response that
addresses each measure for the most
recent audited fiscal year presented in
the dashboard where the charter holder
received a “Does Not Meet Standard”.
For additional information regarding the
financial performance response, please
see Appendix C.
 A start-up budget detailing all
expenditures that cover the start-up
plans.

Board staff will review the financial
performance response and evaluate it in
accordance with Appendix C. Additionally,
Board staff will review the start-up and
operational budgets and assumptions. The
charter holder’s financial performance response
(supplemented, as applicable), start-up budget,
operational budget and assumptions, as well as
the final evaluation instrument completed by
staff will be provided to the Board when the
Board considers the charter holder’s request.
Additionally, a table showing the charter
holder’s financial data and financial
performance for the last three audited fiscal
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Enrollment Cap –
Increase in the number
of students the charter
holder may serve at its
school(s)
(Expansion)

Charter Holder Action
 A first-year operational budget detailing
all expenditures that cover the first year
of operation.
 For each budget, budget assumptions
for each line item in the budget,
including a description of how revenues
cover expenses. If the revenues do not
cover expenses, describe how this will
not negatively affect the charter
holder’s overall financial performance.

Board Consideration
years (if three years are available) will be
included in the staff report provided to the
Board, as well as an analysis prepared by staff
of the charter holder’s financial performance,
focusing on those measures where the charter
holder failed to meet the Board’s target and
using information from the charter holder’s
response and related documents.

If the charter holder meets the eligibility
requirements specified on pages 6 and 7, the
charter holder must submit a financial
performance response that addresses each
measure for the most recent audited fiscal
year presented in the dashboard where the
charter holder received a “Does Not Meet
Standard”. For additional information
regarding the financial performance
response, please see Appendix C.

Board staff will review the financial
performance response and evaluate it in
accordance with Appendix C. The charter
holder’s financial performance response
(supplemented, as applicable) and the final
evaluation instrument completed by staff will
be provided to the Board when the Board
considers the charter holder’s request.
Additionally, a table showing the charter
holder’s financial data and financial
performance for the last three audited fiscal
years (if three years are available) will be
included in the staff report provided to the
Board, as well as an analysis prepared by staff
of the charter holder’s financial performance,
focusing on those measures where the charter
holder failed to meet the Board’s target and
using information from the charter holder’s
response and related documents.

The charter holder’s financial performance may
be considered by the Board as an aggravating
factor in its decision-making.

The charter holder’s financial performance may
be considered by the Board as an aggravating
factor in its decision-making.
“F” Letter Grade – A
charter school
operated by the
charter holder has
been assigned a letter
grade of “F” under the
state accountability
system
(Monitoring)

If a charter school operated by the charter
holder has been assigned a letter grade of “F”
under the state accountability system and the
charter holder does not meet the Board’s
financial performance expectations, the
charter holder must submit a financial
performance response that addresses each
measure for the most recent audited fiscal
year presented in the dashboard where the
charter holder received a “Does Not Meet
Standard” or a “Falls Far Below Standard”.
For additional information regarding the
financial performance response, please see
Appendix C.

Board staff will review the financial
performance response and evaluate it in
accordance with Appendix C. The charter
holder’s financial performance response
(supplemented, as applicable) and the final
evaluation instrument completed by staff will
be provided to the Board when the Board
considers whether to revoke or restore the
charter of the failing school. Additionally, a
table showing the charter holder’s financial
data and financial performance for the last
three audited fiscal years (if three years are
available) will be included in the staff report
provided to the Board, as well as an analysis
prepared by staff of the charter holder’s
financial performance, focusing on those
measures where the charter holder failed to
meet the Board’s target and using information
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Charter Holder Action

Board Consideration
from the charter holder’s response and related
documents.
The charter holder’s financial performance may
be considered by the Board as an aggravating
factor in its decision-making.

Five-Year
Interval Review
(Monitoring)

The charter holder must submit a financial
performance response that addresses each
measure for the most recent audited fiscal
year presented in the dashboard where the
charter holder received a “Does Not Meet
Standard” or a “Falls Far Below Standard”.
For additional information regarding the
financial performance response, please see
Appendix C.

Board staff will review the charter holder’s
financial performance response and evaluate it
in accordance with Appendix C. A copy of the
completed evaluation instrument will be placed
in the charter holder’s DMS in ASBCS Online.
OR
The Board may consider the charter holder’s
financial performance at the time of the interval
review. In these instances, Board staff will
review the financial performance response and
evaluate it in accordance with Appendix C. The
charter holder’s financial performance response
(supplemented, as applicable) and the final
evaluation instrument completed by staff will
be provided to the Board when the Board
considers the charter holder’s performance at
the time of the interval review. Additionally, a
table showing the charter holder’s financial
data and financial performance for the last
three audited fiscal years will be included in the
staff report provided to the Board, as well as an
analysis prepared by staff of the charter
holder’s financial performance, focusing on
those measures where the charter holder failed
to meet the Board’s target and using
information from the charter holder’s response
and related documents. The charter holder’s
financial performance may be considered by
the Board as an aggravating factor in its
decision-making.

Grade Levels –
Increase in the grade
levels the charter
holder is approved to
serve
(Expansion)

If the charter holder meets the eligibility
requirements specified on pages 6 and 7, the
charter holder must submit a financial
performance response that addresses each
measure for the most recent audited fiscal
year presented in the dashboard where the
charter holder received a “Does Not Meet
Standard”. For additional information
regarding the financial performance
response, please see Appendix C.

Board staff will review the financial
performance response and evaluate it in
accordance with Appendix C. The charter
holder’s financial performance response
(supplemented, as applicable) and the final
evaluation instrument completed by staff will
be provided to the Board when the Board
considers the charter holder’s request.
Additionally, a table showing the charter
holder’s financial data and financial
performance for the last three audited fiscal
years (if three years are available) will be
included in the staff report provided to the
Board, as well as an analysis prepared by staff
of the charter holder’s financial performance,
focusing on those measures where the charter
holder failed to meet the Board’s target and
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Charter Holder Action

Board Consideration
using information from the charter holder’s
response and related documents.
The charter holder’s financial performance may
be considered by the Board as an aggravating
factor in its decision-making.

New School – Addition
of a new school that is
currently not in
operation under an
existing charter
1
contract
(Expansion)

Renewal
(Monitoring)

1

If the charter holder meets the eligibility
requirements specified on pages 6 and 7, the
charter holder must submit:
 A financial performance response that
addresses each measure for the most
recent audited fiscal year presented in
the dashboard where the charter holder
received a “Does Not Meet Standard”.
For additional information regarding the
financial performance response, please
see Appendix C.
 A start-up budget detailing all
expenditures that cover the start-up
plans.
 A first-year operational budget detailing
all expenditures that cover the first year
of operation.
 For each budget, budget assumptions
for each line item in the budget,
including a description of how revenues
cover expenses. If the revenues do not
cover expenses, describe how this will
not negatively affect the charter
holder’s overall financial performance.

Board staff will review the financial
performance response and evaluate it in
accordance with Appendix C. Additionally,
Board staff will review the start-up and
operational budgets and assumptions. The
charter holder’s financial performance response
(supplemented, as applicable), start-up budget,
operational budget and assumptions, as well as
the final evaluation instrument completed by
staff will be provided to the Board when the
Board considers the charter holder’s request.
Additionally, a table showing the charter
holder’s financial data and financial
performance for the last three audited fiscal
years (if three years are available) will be
included in the staff report provided to the
Board, as well as an analysis prepared by staff
of the charter holder’s financial performance,
focusing on those measures where the charter
holder failed to meet the Board’s target and
using information from the charter holder’s
response and related documents.

The charter holder must submit a financial
performance response that addresses each
measure for the most recent audited fiscal
year presented in the dashboard where the
charter holder received a “Does Not Meet
Standard” or a “Falls Far Below Standard”.
For additional information regarding the
financial performance response, please see
Appendix C.

Board staff will review the financial
performance response and evaluate it in
accordance with Appendix C. The charter
holder’s financial performance response
(supplemented, as applicable) and the final
evaluation instrument completed by staff will
be provided to the Board when the Board
considers the charter holder’s renewal
application package. Additionally, a table
showing the charter holder’s financial data and
financial performance for the last three audited
fiscal years will be included in the staff report
provided to the Board, as well as an analysis
prepared by staff of the charter holder’s
financial performance, focusing on those
measures where the charter holder failed to
meet the Board’s target and using information
from the charter holder’s response and related
documents.

The charter holder’s financial performance may
be considered by the Board as an aggravating
factor in its decision-making.

See also “Transfer of a charter school or charter contract from the current charter holder to an existing charter holder with a different dashboard.
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Charter Holder Action

Board Consideration
If the charter holder is not meeting the Board’s
academic performance expectations and/or is
not complying with statutory and contractual
requirements, the charter holder’s financial
performance may be considered as an
aggravating factor by the Board in its decision
about whether or not to renew the charter
contract.

Replication
(Expansion)

If the charter holder meets the eligibility
requirements specified on pages 6 and 7, the
charter holder must submit:
 A financial performance response that
addresses each measure for the most
recent audited fiscal year presented in
the dashboard where the charter holder
received a “Does Not Meet Standard”.
For additional information regarding the
financial performance response, please
see Appendix C.
 A start-up budget to cover expenses
projected to occur during the start-up
period (until August 1 of the year the
school opens).
 A three-year operational budget to
cover expenses projected to occur
during the first three years of operation.
 For each budget, a separate document
describing assumptions for each line
item, to include disaggregated costs,
and basis for determining those costs.
Demonstrate through the assumptions
that the amounts listed are viable and
adequate for the start-up period and
first three years of operation.

Board staff will review the financial
performance response and evaluate it in
accordance with Appendix C. Additionally,
Board staff will review the start-up and
operational budgets and assumptions. The
charter holder’s financial performance response
(supplemented as applicable), start-up budget,
operational budget and assumptions, as well as
the final evaluation instrument completed by
staff will be provided to the Board when the
Board considers the replication application
package. Additionally, a table showing the
charter holder’s financial data and financial
performance for the last three audited fiscal
years (if three years are available) will be
included in the staff report provided to the
Board, as well as an analysis prepared by staff
of the charter holder’s financial performance,
focusing on those measures where the charter
holder failed to meet the Board’s target and
using information from the charter holder’s
response and related documents.
The charter holder’s financial performance may
be considered by the Board as an aggravating
factor in its decision-making.

The templates for the replication start-up
budget and three-year operational budget
are available on the Board’s website.
Transfer of a charter
school or charter
contract from the
current charter holder
to an existing charter
holder with a different
dashboard
(Expansion)

If the receiving charter holder meets the
eligibility requirements specified on pages 6
and 7, but the current charter holder,
receiving charter holder or both do not meet
the Board’s financial performance
expectations, please see below.
Receiving Charter Holder Does Not Meet
The receiving charter holder must submit a
financial performance response that
addresses each measure for the most recent
audited fiscal year presented in the
dashboard where the charter holder received
a “Does Not Meet Standard”. For additional

Board staff will review the financial
performance responses and evaluate them in
accordance with Appendix C. The charter
holders’ financial performance responses
(supplemented, as applicable) and the final
evaluation instruments completed by staff will
be provided to the Board when the Board
considers the charter holders’ request.
Additionally, tables showing the charter
holders’ financial data and financial
performance for the last three audited fiscal
years (if three years are available) will be
included in the staff report provided to the
Board, as well as an analysis prepared by staff
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Charter Holder Action
information regarding the financial
performance response, please see Appendix
C.
Current Charter Holder Does Not Meet
The current charter holder must submit a
financial performance response that
addresses each measure for the most recent
audited fiscal year presented in the
dashboard where the charter holder received
a “Does Not Meet Standard” or a “Falls Far
Below Standard”. For additional information
regarding the financial performance
response, please see Appendix C.
Transfer of a charter
school from an existing
charter contract to its
own charter contract
held by a charter
holder with a different
name than the existing
charter holder
(Expansion)

If the charter holder meets the eligibility
requirements specified on pages 6 and 7, the
charter holder must submit a financial
performance response that addresses each
measure for the most recent audited fiscal
year presented in the dashboard where the
charter holder received a “Does Not Meet
Standard”. For additional information
regarding the financial performance
response, please see Appendix C.

Board Consideration
of the charter holders’ financial performance,
focusing on those measures where the charter
holders failed to meet the Board’s target and
using information from the charter holders’
responses and related documents.
The charter holders’ financial performance may
be considered by the Board as an aggravating
factor in its decision-making.

Board staff will review the financial
performance response and evaluate it in
accordance with Appendix C. The charter
holder’s financial performance response
(supplemented, as applicable) and the final
evaluation instrument completed by staff will
be provided to the Board when the Board
considers the charter holder’s request.
Additionally, a table showing the charter
holder’s financial data and financial
performance for the last three audited fiscal
years (if three years are available) will be
included in the staff report provided to the
Board, as well as an analysis prepared by staff
of the charter holder’s financial performance,
focusing on those measures where the charter
holder failed to meet the Board’s target and
using information from the charter holder’s
response and related documents.
The charter holder’s financial performance may
be considered by the Board as an aggravating
factor in its decision-making.

Transfer of the Charter
Contract from Another
Sponsor to the Board
(Transfer)

Charter holders that want to transfer their
charter contracts to the Board should contact
the Board at (602) 364-3080 for the
requirements.

If the charter holder is not meeting the Board’s
academic performance expectations and/or is
not complying with statutory and contractual
requirements, the charter holder’s financial
performance may be considered as an
aggravating factor by the Board in its decision
about whether or not to transfer the charter
contract.
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Appendix C

Financial Performance Response & Evaluation
Financial Performance Response
A charter holder that does not meet the Board’s financial performance expectations will be required to submit a
financial performance response (“Response”) at specified times (see Appendix B). The Response provides the
charter holder with the opportunity to explain its financial performance and efforts to improve.

What Must Be Covered
Through the Response, the charter holder must answer three questions for each measure where the charter
holder received a “Does Not Meet Standard”
Figure 1
or “Falls Far Below Standard” for the most
recent audited fiscal year presented in the
dashboard:
1. Why did we not meet the measure’s
Provide
target in the audited fiscal year?
support
Explain
efforts to
2. What specifically have we done to
improve
improve our performance so that it’s
Provide
possible to meet the measure’s
support
target in the next fiscal year or a
subsequent fiscal year?
Explain reason
3. What can we provide to support our
explanations and analysis?

for not meeting
Board's target

Where to Begin
As counterintuitive as it may seem, the first step in preparing the Response shouldn’t be to pore over the financial
records, but rather to step back and identify what changed or happened with the charter holder from the prior
year to the most recent audited fiscal year presented in the dashboard. The accounting records and the resulting
financial statements are not the cause of the financial performance. Instead, they show the effect of decisions
made by or for the charter holder during the fiscal year. Once you know what happened, then you can go to the
financial statements and records to see how what happened affected the charter holder’s financial performance
in the most recent audited fiscal year presented in the dashboard and to identify improvement in the next or
subsequent fiscal year.

Show and Tell
Adopt a “show us, don’t just tell us” approach to your Response. While Figure 1 illustrates the Response’s
necessary components, it should not be interpreted as requiring the Response to include equal parts explanation
(‘tell us”) and support (“show us”). Generally, the easiest and best way to explain why the measure’s target was
not met and the efforts to improve is to show us through accounting system or management reports, interim
financial statements, projections, forecasts, or supplemental worksheets.1 The narrative is then used to briefly
provide the context and to point us to the relevant portions of the supporting documentation. Please see the
Board’s website for additional guidance and technical assistance on preparing a Response.

Financial Performance Response Evaluation
Board staff evaluates each submitted Response. For a Response to be evaluated as “Acceptable”, the Response
must include the four components identified in Figure 1 for each applicable measure.
1

Board staff has access to the annual audit reporting packages, publicly available Arizona Department of Education (ADE) attendance and
state funding reports, and the charter holders’ budgets submitted to ADE. Therefore, these documents may be referenced in, but do not
need to be provided with, the Response.
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Appendix D

Definition of Terms
AUDIT – A systematic collection of the sufficient, competent evidential matter needed to attest to the fairness of
management's assertions in the financial statements or to evaluate whether management has efficiently and
effectively carried out its responsibilities. The auditor obtains this evidential matter through inspection,
observation, inquiries, and confirmations with third parties.
AUDIT REPORTING PACKAGE – The annual audit required by A.R.S. §15-914 includes several components,
including the financial statements, a report on internal control and compliance required under auditing standards,
the applicable compliance questionnaire(s), and the management letter, if one is issued by the audit firm. For a
charter holder that expends more than $500,000 in federal awards (e.g., federal grants), the audit reporting
package submitted would include additional information and documents.
COMPLIANCE QUESTIONNAIRE – As part of the annual audit required by A.R.S. §15-914, the auditor must
complete the appropriate compliance questionnaire(s). The compliance questionnaires assist the Board in
determining whether a charter holder is complying with certain legal and contractual requirements. The Board
currently issues three compliance questionnaires – the Legal Compliance Questionnaire, the USFRCS Compliance
Questionnaire1, and the Procurement Compliance Questionnaire. For most charter holders, the Legal Compliance
Questionnaire is the only compliance questionnaire that must be completed.
FINANCIAL AUDIT – An audit made by an independent external auditor for the purpose of issuing an audit opinion
on the fair presentation of the financial statements in conformity with GAAP. Refer to AUDIT.
FISCAL YEAR – The twelve-month period that begins on July 1st and ends on June 30th.
GENERALLY ACCEPTED ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES (GAAP) – These are the uniform minimum standards for
financial accounting and reporting. They govern the form and content of the financial statements of an entity.
GAAP encompass the conventions, rules, and procedures necessary to define accepted accounting practice at a
particular time. They include not only broad guidelines of general application, but also detailed practices and
procedures. The primary authoritative body on the application of GAAP for most charter holders is the Financial
Accounting Standards Board.
NOTES TO THE AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS – Sometimes referred to as disclosure notes, the notes follow
immediately after the financial statements. In addition to summarizing certain accounting policies used by the
charter holder, the financial statements may include information regarding leases the charter holder has entered
into, loans the charter holder has received (sometimes referred to as “notes”) and its compliance with loan terms,
and restrictions on the charter holder’s cash.
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS – This financial statement shows what made up the
charter holder’s revenue and expenses for the fiscal year. Generally, revenue is shown by type and expenses are
shown by program type (i.e., program services, management and general). This statement also shows whether a
charter holder operated at a surplus (total revenues exceed total expenses) or a deficit (total expenses exceed
total revenues), as well as the change in net assets. This statement is also referred to as the income statement
(for-profit) or the statement of activities (governmental).
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS – This financial statement shows where the charter holder’s cash came from and
how the cash was used during the fiscal year. It categorizes cash activity as resulting from operating, investing,
and capital and related financing activities.
1

USFRCS stands for Uniform System of Financial Records for Charter Schools.
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION – This financial statement shows the charter holder’s assets, liabilities, and
net assets as of June 30th. Assets are what the charter holder owns, liabilities are what the charter holder owes,
and net assets are the difference between the two. Net assets represent any surpluses (total assets exceed total
liabilities) or deficits (total liabilities exceed total assets) that have accumulated since the charter holder was
formed. This statement is also referred to as the balance sheet (for-profit) or the statement of net assets
(governmental).
STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSE – This financial statement shows a detailed breakdown of expenses by
expense type and by program and supporting services. While not required for charter holder audits, some audit
reporting packages received by the Board include this additional statement.
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Operational Performance Framework Guidance
The purpose of the Operational Performance Framework (“Operational Framework”) is to communicate
the State Board for Charter Schools (“Board”) compliance-related expectations.to the charter schools
holders and the public the State Board for Charter Schools’ (“Board”) compliance-related expectations.
The Operational Framework includes, but is not limited to, expectations the charter school is required to
meet through state and federal law, the charter contract, and administrative rule.
The Board, in its oversight of charter holders and the schools that they operate, strives not to be overreaching, but also recognizes the need to protect the public’s interests. Because charter schools are
public entities, they must maintain the public’s trust that they are implementing their education
program as set out in the charter, spending public funds responsibly, and adhering to laws and charter
requirements regarding the implementation of the education program and their operational reporting
and compliance requirements. The measures incorporated herein are not intended to create a
duplicative reporting burden on the charter holder, but rather provide an evaluation of the charter
holder’s operational compliance based on a collection of information gathered from a variety of sources.
The Board is aware of the delicate balance between appropriate oversight and infringement on
autonomy and developed the Operational Framework with that balance in mind.

FRAMEWORK STRUCTURE
The framework is divided into broad categories or indicators. Within the indicators are individual
measures that help to determine a charter holder’s performance on each of the indicators. The metrics
are the general means by which to evaluate the measure, and the ratings are the thresholds set to
determine whether a charter holder is meeting the standard or not. The Board has evaluated federal
and state laws, the charter contract, and its own policies in establishing the measures and metrics
included in the Operational Framework. The indicators, measures, metrics, and ratings, as they pertain
to the Operational Framework, are explained in more detail below.
Indicators
The framework includes three indicators, or categories, used to evaluate the charter holder’s
operational performance and compliance.
Implementation of the Education Program. This indicator includes measures of the charter holder’s
fidelity to the education program, as defined by the charter contract and law. Charter holders must, by
means of a charter application (or charter amendment), propose to the Board the education program
they plan to implement. The Board approves a charter application package based on the expectation
that the charter holder will implement its education program as proposed. This section evaluates the
charter holder’s adherence to the proposed education program, as it is set out in the charter contract.
Additionally, certain aspects of an education program are required by law (e.g. administration of
assessments, education of students with disabilities, etc.) and this section also addresses the education
requirements established by law that the charter holder must adhere to. The Board has adopted a
separate Academic Performance Framework that includes the Board’s academic performance
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expectations of the charter school and the measurement of sufficient progress toward the academic
performance expectations.
Financial and Operational Reporting and Compliance. This indicator includes measures of the charter
holder’s ability to adhere to financial and operational reporting and compliance requirements. This
section evaluates the charter holder’s implementation of sound business operations, ability to properly
enroll and report student attendance, provision of a safe environment, transparency in operations,
compliance with obligations to the Board, and compliance with reporting requirements of other entities
to which the charter holder is accountable.
Additional Obligations. This measure evaluates whether the charter holder complies with all other
applicable operational obligations addressed in law, rule, regulation and the charter contract, including
the charter holder’s history of judgments, court orders, or other obligations of the charter holder not
addressed by other measures in the Operational Framework.
Measures
For each of the indicators, the Operational Framework provides a number of measures by which to
evaluate charter holders. The measures take the form of a question about each charter holder’s
performance. For example:
•
•

Is the charter holder maintaining a safe environment consistent with state and local
requirements?
Is the charter holder administering student admission and attendance appropriately?

Information and guidance specific to each measure is provided below in the Measures In Detail section.
Metrics
Metrics are expectations set forth in evaluating a measure. For example, to evaluate whether the
charter holder is administering student admission and attendance appropriately we look to a number of
areas where the charter holder must meet existing expectations established by laws, rules, regulations,
or provisions of the charter contract. Examples of metrics for this measure are:
• Compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and provisions of the charter contract
relating to enrollment policies, procedures and processes.
• Accurate submission of estimated counts and attendance data to the Arizona Department of
Education.
Throughout the Operational Framework, the Board set forth the metrics for evaluating the different
measures within the “Meets Standard” rating.

Rating the Measure
In the area of operational performance, the Board is frequently faced with absolute standards for
compliance. Legal and contractual requirements are either met or they are not. But in order to avoid
penalizing charter holders for anything less than perfection, the Board has adopted a reasonable
measure of sufficiency that acknowledges attentiveness and prudent compliance.
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For each measure, a charter holder receives one of three ratings based on evaluation of the established
metrics.
Meets Standard. The “Meets Standard” rating is achieved when the charter holder demonstrates
compliance with all metrics in the measure.
Does Not Meet Standard. The “Does Not Meet Standard” rating remains consistent for each measure in
the Operational Framework and reads:1
“The charter holder has failed to comply in the manner described above2; the failure(s) were
material, and the charter holder has demonstrated remedies that have resulted in
compliance or prompt and sufficient movement toward compliance to the satisfaction of
the Board.”
This means that the charter holder has failed to meet the metrics at any point during the evaluation
period; however, the charter holder has either brought the school into compliance or has made
sufficient progress toward compliance. See the Evaluation section for information on how the number
of “Does Not Meet Standard” designations is incorporated into a determination of whether the charter
holder meets the Board’s operational performance expectations.
Falls Far Below Standard: The “Falls Far Below Standard” rating also remains consistent for each
measure in the Organizational Operational Framework and reads:3
“The charter holder failed to comply in the manner described above, the failure(s) were
material, and the charter holder has not demonstrated remedies that have resulted in
compliance or prompt and sufficient movement toward compliance to the satisfaction of
the Board; or the charter holder has failed to comply in the manner described above and
regardless of whether or not the charter holder demonstrated remedies that have resulted
in compliance or prompt and sufficient movement toward compliance, the failure(s) were
material or significant to the operation of the school(s).”
“Falls Far Below Standard” means the charter holder is currently not in compliance with the
requirement. A charter holder may also receive this rating if the charter holder has implemented
remedies to come into compliance, but the initial noncompliance created a significant risk to the
operation of the school. Finally, a charter holder may also receive this rating if it has been chronically
out of compliance throughout the review period.

1

The Operational Framework includes one exception to this rule; see Measure 1.a. in the Measures In Detail
section.
2
“…manner described above” meaning as described in the Meets Standard section which specifies the metrics
being evaluated.
3
The Operational Framework includes one exception to this rule; see Measure 1.a in the Measures In Detail
section.
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USING USE OF THE OPERATIONAL FRAMEWORK
Collecting Evidence
Similar to the Academic and Financial Performance Frameworks, the Board will utilize the information it
has available in evaluating the various measures of the Operational Framework. The evidence that is
necessary to determine whether the charter holder is meeting each measure is based on availability of
existing data and the capacity of the Board’s staff to collect, analyze, and report out the information.
Some measures in the Operational Framework require periodic monitoring to ensure compliance, while
others can be analyzed annually during site visits or through reports submitted by the charter holder to
the Board. Others may only be reviewed when the Board is presented with information that warrants
evaluation.
Common ways the Board will collect data to evaluate charter holders’ operational performance,
beginning with the least intensive approach, include:
Expectation that the terms of the charter will be honored. The Board does not have the capacity to
monitor or review every operational function of each charter holder’s activity related to the operation
of a school. Nor does the Board desire to burden the charter holder with annual reviews of such
operational functions. However, there is an expectation that the charter holder will comply with the
contract terms, whether monitored regularly or not. The Operational Framework provides a space for
the Board to report any substantiated cases of noncompliance in areas where it may not routinely
evaluate the school. For example, there is an expectation that the charter holder will not charge tuition
or fees as a condition of enrollment, but the Board does not review the enrollment forms of each
charter holder annually. A complaint to the Board may warrant a direct review or investigation of the
charter holder’s enrollment practices. The burden of providing evidence of compliance lies with the
charter holder. Open investigations and findings in which the charter holder is engaged in a right of
appeal will not be rated in any performance measure.
Required reporting. Under the law and contract and through established rules, the charter holder is
required to report or verify compliance with specific operational functions to the Board. For example,
the charter holder is required to submit an annual financial and compliance audit, which is conducted by
an independent certified public accountant and includes determinations of compliance with multiple
operational functions.
Third-Party reviews. Another way to verify compliance is to seek reviews from a third party reviewer
(e.g. the Board may rely on the Exceptional Student Services Section section of the Arizona Department
of Education (ADE) to assess compliance with compliant with laws relating to the education of students
with disabilities). This allows for the Board to access expert opinions, while at the same time, reducing
redundancy in review and evaluation of the charter holder. Open investigations and findings in which
the charter holder is engaged in a right of appeal will not be rated in any performance measure.
Observed practice. The Board may determine compliance for certain measures in the Operational
Framework through direct observation. For example, students may be counted and attendance
practices may be monitored during a site visit to verify compliance with attendance reporting
requirements.

5

Investigations. At times, the Board may receive complaints or assertions from individuals that a school
is not in compliance. When the Board receives a complaint and determines that the allegation may be a
violation of contract or law, it will investigate. Open investigations will not be rated in any performance
measure. Substantiated violations will be reflected in the appropriate measure.
Evaluation
Review of Charter Holder’s Operational Performance
A charter holder’s operational performance will be considered by the Board throughout the term of the
charter contract including, but not limited to:
• When considering a charter contract renewal request submitted by the charter holder
• During five-year interval reviews
• Upon receipt of information that a charter school operated by the charter holder has been
assigned a letter grade of “F” under the state accountability system
• If a charter school operated by a charter holder has failed to meet the Board’s academic
performance standard for three consecutive years
• Addition of a new school that is currently not in operation under an existing charter contract 4
• Increase in the number of students the charter holder may serve at its school(s)4
• Addition of, or change to, an Arizona Online Instruction program of instruction4
• Increase in the grade levels the charter holder is approved to serve4
• Replication of an existing charter4
• Transfer of a charter school from an existing charter contract to its own charter contract held by
a charter holder with a different name than the existing charter holder4
• Transfer of a charter school or charter contract from the current charter holder to an existing
charter holder with a different dashboard4
• Transfer of the charter contract from another sponsor to the Board
• When a new charter application package is submitted by an officer, director, partner, member
or charter representative of the charter holder
Because operational performance can affect a charter holder’s ability to meet the obligations of its
charter contract or provisions of law, a charter holder’s operational performance may also be reviewed
at other times when the Board makes decisions related to a charter holder’s academic and/or financial
performance.
Operational Eligibility for Expansion Requests
A charter holder is eligible to submit or, as applicable, to be the receiving party in the expansion
requests identified below if all of the following are true:
1. A dashboard for the charter holder is available through ASBCS Online.
2. The charter holder meets the operational performance standard for the most recent completed
fiscal year.
3. The charter holder meets the operational performance standard for the current evaluated year.
4. 75 percent or more of its Associated Charters meets the operational performance standard for
the most recently completed fiscal year and the current evaluated year.
5. The charter holder meets the academic and financial eligibility requirements.
4

The Board has established operational eligibility criteria for this request (see “Operational Eligibility for Expansion
Requests” section).
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Expansion requests include:
• Adding a new charter school that is currently not in operation under an existing charter contract
• Increasing the number of students the charter holder may serve at its school(s)
• Adding or changing to an Arizona Online Instruction (AOI) program of instruction
• Increasing the grade levels the charter holder is approved to serve
• Replicating an existing charter
• Transferring a charter school from an existing charter contract to its own charter contract
• Transferring a charter school or charter contract from the current charter holder to an existing
charter holder with a different dashboard
For eligibility determination purposes, an Associated Charter is:
• A charter operated by the charter holder that contracts with the same education service
provider.
• A charter operated by the same charter holder.
• A charter operated by a charter holder with at least 50 percent of the officers, directors,
members or partners in common, as reflected in the charter contract.
If during the processing of one of the expansion requests identified above, the Board receives new
operational data for the charter holder, Associated Charter(s), or both, then Board staff will update the
applicable dashboard(s) and reevaluate the charter holder’s eligibility based on the most recent fiscal
year operational dashboard.
Overall Rating
To provide historical context, up to five years of operational performance will be included in a charter
holder’s operational performance dashboard. The evaluation is completed annually and a
determination is made as to whether the charter holder met the Board’s operational performance
standard for the fiscal year. Annual performance is used to determine whether the charter holder met
the Board’s operational performance expectations.
Meeting the Standard
A charter holder “Meets the Board’s Operational Performance Standard” if it receives zero “Falls Far
Below Standard” ratings and no more than five “Does Not Meet Standard” ratings across the
Operational Framework’s nine measures for the evaluated year5. A charter holder “Does Not Meet the
Board’s Operational Performance Standard” if it receives one or more “Falls Far Below Standard” ratings
and/or more than five “Does Not Meet Standard” ratings across the Operational Framework’s nine
measures for the evaluated year.
Meeting the Expectations
A charter holder “Meets the Board’s Operational Performance Expectations” when it has an overall
rating of “Meets the Board’s Operational Performance Standard” for the most recent two prior years for
which an overall rating was calculated and has no measure that receives a “Falls Far Below Standard”
rating in the current year. A charter holder “Does Not Meet the Board’s Operational Performance
Expectations” when it has an overall rating of “Does Not Meet the Board’s Operational Performance
Standard” for at least one of the most recent two prior years for which an overall rating was calculated
and/or has at least one measure that receives a “Falls Far Below Standard” rating in the current year.

5

Each measure receives a single rating incorporating all metrics in the measure.
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Compliance checks will continue to be conducted as part of the amendment request approval and
expansion processes.
Unlike with the Board’s Academic and Financial Performance Frameworks, charter holders that fail to
meet the Board’s operational performance expectations will not be required to submit additional
documentation to the Board. The Board’s Operational Framework translates compliance-related
information obtained by the Board through various processes and from various sources into a more
concise presentation, but does not change the Board’s processes or the processes followed by other
entities for responding to the issues referenced in the framework as they occur. As such, the charter
holder will have already been provided the opportunity to respond to the issues and the charter holder’s
demonstration of compliance or prompt and sufficient movement toward compliance to the satisfaction
of the Board will be considered. In accordance with statute, the Board shall use the information
obtained from the Operational Framework in implementing its oversight and administrative
responsibilities.
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MEASURES IN DETAIL
The Operational Framework catalogs, in one place, the various requirements that the charter holder
must meet according to state or federal law, rules, regulations, policy and provisions of the charter
contract. In this section, the measures included in the Operational Framework are defined and
background information is provided to better understand each measure and what evidence is used to
evaluate the charter holder against the measure.
Indicator 1: Implementation of the education program as defined in the current charter contract and
state and federal law
1.a. Does the delivery of the education program and operation reflect the essential terms6 of the educational
program as described in the charter contract?
Meets Standard:
The charter holder’s education program, in operation, reflects the essential terms as described in the charter
contract.
Does Not Meet Standard:
The charter holder has failed to implement the program in the manner described above; the failure(s) were
material, and the charter holder has demonstrated remedies that have resulted in compliance or prompt and
sufficient movement toward compliance to the satisfaction of the Board.
Falls Far Below Standard:
The charter holder has failed to implement the program in the manner described above, the failure(s) were
material, and the charter holder has not demonstrated remedies that have resulted in prompt and sufficient
movement toward compliance to the satisfaction of the Board; or the charter holder has failed to implement
the program in the manner described above and regardless of whether or not the charter holder
demonstrated remedies that have resulted in prompt and sufficient movement toward compliance, the
failure(s) were material or significant to the operation of the school(s).
The Board approves new charter school applications on the basis of the proposal of the essential terms
of a charter. The approved application is incorporated in the charter contract and is available to the
public. The charter holder is expected to serve the grade levels identified in the charter contract and
provide a program of instruction reflective of the instructional methodology and instructional delivery
format included in the charter application (for example, the school will implement a STEM program,
serving grades K-6, in a blended learning educational delivery model). It is anticipated that as a charter
school matures, it may evolve and consider changes to its education program. The charter holder is
required to request an amendment to the contract if it plans to modify the grades levels served or if the
program of instruction will change from what has been incorporated in the contract (e.g., The program
of instruction no longer relies on direct instruction and is solely computer based, the population served
and the programs used support a transition to Alternative School status, etc.)
If the charter holder modifies or changes the essential terms of the contract without prior consent of the
Board, then the charter holder is out of compliance with the contract and is not meeting the standard.
For example, if the charter contract states that an essential term of the charter contract is to deliver its
program through a blended learning model, yet the school has been unable to purchase the technology
necessary to implement this model, and evaluation methods utilized confirm that the charter holder is
6

The essential terms of the charter are the critical characteristics that define the charter school program such that
in order to change these characteristics the charter holder must submit a notification or amendment request for
Board approval.
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not providing a blended learning program, the charter holder is not implementing its essential terms and
is out of compliance with its charter. To remedy this failure, the charter holder could either begin
implementing the blended learning model or propose to the Board a revision to its essential terms and
be approved by the Board to implement the change.
Sources of Data: The Board may verify implementation of the essential terms through site visit
observations, document reviews, interviews with stakeholders in the charter community, and required
reports from the charter holder (including information collected as part of an academic performance
review, annual reports and renewal applications).
1.b. Does the charter holder adhere to applicable education requirements defined in state and federal law?
Meets Standard:
The charter holder complies with applicable laws, rules, regulations and provisions of the charter contract
relating to education requirements, including but not limited to:
• Providing services pursuant to IDEA, Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, and the
Americans with Disabilities Act relating to the treatment of students with identified disabilities and
those suspected of having a disability
• Meeting the required provision of instructional days or hours
• Providing any data that is required and requested for the purpose of compiling the school’s
achievement profile
• Implementing mandated programming as a result of state or federal funding
Does Not Meet Standard:
The charter holder has failed to comply in the manner described above; the failure(s) were material, and the
charter holder has demonstrated remedies that have resulted in compliance or prompt and sufficient
movement toward compliance to the satisfaction of the Board.
Falls Far Below Standard:
The charter holder has failed to comply in the manner described above, the failure(s) were material, and the
charter holder has not demonstrated remedies that have resulted in prompt and sufficient movement
toward compliance to the satisfaction of the Board; or the charter holder has failed to comply in the manner
described above and regardless of whether or not the charter holder demonstrated remedies that have
resulted in compliance or prompt and sufficient movement toward compliance, the failure(s) were material
or significant to the operation of the school(s).
Some elements of a public school’s education program are fixed in law and may not be waived for
charter schools. This measure evaluates the school’s adherence to education requirements, including:
• The provision of educational services pursuant to IDEA, Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of
1973, and the Americans with Disabilities Act relating to the treatment of students with
identified disabilities and those suspected of having a disability. Consistent with the school’s
status and responsibilities as a Local Education Agency (LEA), the charter holder is required to
materially comply with applicable laws, rules, regulations, and provisions of the charter contract
relating to the education of students with identified disabilities and those suspected of having a
disability.
• The provision of the required number of instructional days and instructional hours.
• The provision of any data that is required and requested and that is necessary to compile the
achievement profile, which includes the appropriate administration of State required
assessments.
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•

The provision of educational services and the administration of federal programs by a charter
holder receiving federal funds for such programs, including adherence to the procedures for
amending a grant and submitting completion reports timely.

Sources of Data: The Board will evaluate this measure through required reports, site visit observations
and interviews of with stakeholders, the annual audit reporting package, or third-party reports or
monitoring. The Board will review periodic evaluations completed by the ADE of programs relating to
the education of students with disabilities. The Board may follow up if complaints or reports indicate
noncompliance. Follow up review could include a request of data to verify compliance, such as school
calendars, student records, or reports the school may submit to the ADE (e.g. reports to verify state
assessment compliance).
When evaluating the requirement that the charter holder implemented “mandated programming as a
result of state or federal funding”, the Board will work with divisions within the ADE that oversee these
programs (e.g. Title IV) as they have oversight responsibility and processes in place to evaluate and
report findings of noncompliance.
Indicator 2: Financial and operational reporting and compliance
2.a. Do the charter holder’s annual audit reporting packages reflect sound operations?
Meets Standard:
The charter holder complies with applicable laws, rules, regulations and provisions of the charter contract
relating to the annual audit reporting package, including but not limited to:
• Timely submission of a complete annual audit reporting package
• An unqualified audit opinion
• An audit where first-time medium impact findings resulting in a corrective action plan (CAP)
requirement have been completed
• An audit devoid of second-time or repeat medium impact findings
• An audit devoid of serious impact findings
• An audit devoid of minimal impact findings that have been identified in three or more consecutive
annual audit reporting packages
Does Not Meet Standard:
The charter holder has failed to comply in the manner described above; the failure(s) were material, and the
charter holder has demonstrated remedies that have resulted in compliance or prompt and sufficient
movement toward compliance to the satisfaction of the Board.
Falls Far Below Standard:
The charter holder has failed to comply in the manner described above, the failure(s) were material, and the
charter holder has not demonstrated remedies that have resulted in prompt and sufficient movement
toward compliance to the satisfaction of the Board; or the charter holder has failed to comply in the manner
described above and regardless of whether or not the charter holder demonstrated remedies that have
resulted in compliance or prompt and sufficient movement toward compliance, the failure(s) were material
or significant to the operation of the school(s).
State law requires all charter holders be audited annually by an independent certified public accountant.
The completed audit, also referred to as an audit reporting package, provides the Board with an
independent review of a charter holder’s financial records, as well as the charter holder’s fiscal and
compliance practices. The audit is the one tool that the Board has that annually provides information on
the financial and compliance performance of each of the Board’s charter holders. As such, the audit is a
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key component of the Board’s monitoring practices and its timely submission is essential for the Board
to carry out its oversight responsibilities.7
To guide the review of the annual audits and the follow-up with charter holders on issues identified
through the audits, the Board developed the Audit & Compliance Questionnaire Follow-up Matrix (“audit
matrix”). The audit matrix classifies issues identified through the audits into one of three categories –
minimal impact findings, medium impact findings and serious impact findings – and defines each
category as follows:
• Minimal impact finding – Findings that do not significantly impact students or the operation of
the school, but are still required by law or the charter contract to be rectified.
• Medium impact finding – Findings that impact the educational environment, operation of the
school and/or the school’s stakeholders, but are not threats to health and safety or gross
violations of Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP).8
• Serious impact finding – Findings that have a significant impact to the students or the operation
of the school, including threats to the health and safety of students, gross violations of GAAP
that increase the opportunity for fraud/theft, and repeat noncompliance.
The audits are reviewed pursuant to the Board’s administrative rules and in accordance with the audit
matrix. Each charter holder that will be operating in the next fiscal year receives a letter after the audit
has been reviewed. Depending on the “impact” of the issues identified, the letter may: a) indicate the
charter holder should work towards correcting the issues and that staff will monitor for repeated issues
in the next audit (“minimal impact”); b) indicate the audit included repeated issues that had not been
addressed from the prior year’s audit (“minimal impact”); c) require the charter holder to submit a
corrective action plan (“medium impact”); and/or d) state that the charter holder will be placed on an
upcoming agenda for possible disciplinary action (“serious impact”). For more information on the audit
review and follow-up process and the audit findings that require the submission of a corrective action
plan, see Appendix B.
Critical to a charter holder’s health and stability is its ability to manage its finances well. The Board has a
responsibility to protect the public’s interest and must evaluate the extent to which the charter holder is
responsibly managing its finances. Charter holders’ financial statements should have an unqualified or
“clean” auditor’s opinion. This means that the auditor found the financial statements to be accurate and
complete, which is necessary for evaluating a charter holder’s financial health. The Board has adopted a
separate Financial Performance Framework that includes the Board’s financial performance
expectations of the charter holder.
Sources of Data: The annual audit reporting packages submitted to the Board, audit-related
communications between the Board and a charter holder and, if applicable, a charter holder’s corrective
action plans and site visits conducted by Board staff.

7

Most charter holders’ audits must be submitted by November 15th, which is four and a half months after the end
of the fiscal year. If the charter holder’s federal grant fund expenditures exceed a certain amount, then the charter
holder must undergo a single audit, which, pursuant to federal regulations, must be submitted by March 31st or
nine months after the end of the fiscal year. More detailed information is available in the Board’s audit guidelines.
8
Generally Accepted Accounting Principles are the uniform minimum standards for financial accounting and
reporting. They govern the form and content of the charter holder’s financial statements.
12

2.b. Is the charter holder administering student admission and attendance appropriately?
Meets Standard:
The charter holder complies with applicable laws, rules, regulations and provisions of the charter contract
relating to operational requirements, including but not limited to:
• Accurate submission of estimated counts and attendance data to the Arizona Department of
Education
• Tuition and fees
• Public school tax credits
• Attendance records
• Enrollment policies, procedures, and processes
Does Not Meet Standard:
The charter holder has failed to comply in the manner described above; the failure(s) were material, and the
charter holder has demonstrated remedies that have resulted in compliance or prompt and sufficient
movement toward compliance to the satisfaction of the Board.
Falls Far Below Standard:
The charter holder has failed to comply in the manner described above, the failure(s) were material, and the
charter holder has not demonstrated remedies that have resulted in prompt and sufficient movement
toward compliance to the satisfaction of the Board; or the charter holder has failed to comply in the manner
described above and regardless of whether or not the charter holder demonstrated remedies that have
resulted in compliance or prompt and sufficient movement toward compliance, the failure(s) were material
or significant to the operation of the school(s).
Charter schools are public schools open to all eligible students. Except for the requirement that the
student reside within the state, a charter school does not have enrollment boundaries. A charter holder
is required to enroll all eligible pupils who submit a timely application, unless the number of applications
exceeds the capacity of a program, class, grade level or building. Should the applications exceed the
school’s capacity, a fair and equitable enrollment process must be implemented. The revenue a charter
holder generates is, in part if not all, based on its equalization (state aid) payments. These payments are
initially generated from the estimated counts the charter holder provides to the ADE and subsequently
from periodically uploaded attendance data. A charter school may not charge tuition, but may charge
fees for any extracurricular activity and specific events or programs or courses in accordance with the
law. Any assessment of fees shall contain a provision that allows the fees to be waived in the event of
economic hardship to the pupil. Additionally, nonpayment of fees charged by a public school may not
prevent a pupil from enrolling in, applying to or remaining enrolled in a public school. A charter holder
may collect public school tax credits as prescribed by law.
Sources of Data: The Board may verify admissions processes and documents, tuition and fees, and tax
credits through review of website information, document reviews, interviews with stakeholders in the
charter community, and required reports from the charter holder. Attendance reporting may be
verified through site visits, document review, interviews with stakeholders, and required submissions to
the ADE.
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2.c. Is the charter holder maintaining a safe environment consistent with state and local requirements?
Meets Standard:
The charter holder complies with applicable laws, rules, regulations and provisions of the charter contract
relating to operational requirements, including but not limited to:
• Maintaining appropriate facility documents, including a certificate of occupancy, fire marshal
inspection report, county or municipal health inspection report, liability and property loss insurance
coverage, and/or other applicable documents
• Ensuring all employees, personnel, vendors and other individuals have been properly fingerprinted
and background checked
Does Not Meet Standard:
The charter holder has failed to comply in the manner described above; the failure(s) were material, and the
charter holder has demonstrated remedies that have resulted in compliance or prompt and sufficient
movement toward compliance to the satisfaction of the Board.
Falls Far Below Standard:
The charter holder has failed to comply in the manner described above, the failure(s) were material, and the
charter holder has not demonstrated remedies that have resulted in prompt and sufficient movement
toward compliance to the satisfaction of the Board; or the charter holder has failed to comply in the manner
described above and regardless of whether or not the charter holder demonstrated remedies that have
resulted in compliance or prompt and sufficient movement toward compliance, the failure(s) were material
or significant to the operation of the school(s).
The evaluation of a school’s physical structure for safety purposes does not fall within the Board’s
purview. However, a charter holder must obtain and be able to provide documents regarding
inspections, certificates and reports supporting a facility that is safe for the operation of school and
related activities. Additionally, a charter holder must be able to produce documents indicating
processes have been followed and documents have been obtained which confirm and support that the
appropriate checks have been completed of required personnel for the purpose of protecting the safety
of students.
Sources of Data: The annual audit reporting packages submitted to the Board, audit-related
communications between the Board and a charter holder and, if applicable, a charter holder’s corrective
action plans, information and documents obtained during site visits, materials provided to the Board,
and information provided by stakeholders.
2.d. Is the charter holder transparent in its operations?
Meets Standard:
The charter holder complies with applicable laws, rules, regulations and provisions of the charter contract
relating to operational requirements, including but not limited to:
• Academic performance notifications
• Availability of teacher resumes
• Open Meeting Law
• Alignment of officers, directors, members and partners of the charter holder on record as part of
the charter contract with Arizona Corporation Commission submissions
Does Not Meet Standard:
The charter holder has failed to comply in the manner described above; the failure(s) were material, and the
charter holder has demonstrated remedies that have resulted in compliance or prompt and sufficient
movement toward compliance to the satisfaction of the Board.
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Falls Far Below Standard:
The charter holder has failed to comply in the manner described above, the failure(s) were material, and the
charter holder has not demonstrated remedies that have resulted in prompt and sufficient movement
toward compliance to the satisfaction of the Board; or the charter holder has failed to comply in the manner
described above and regardless of whether or not the charter holder demonstrated remedies that have
resulted in compliance or prompt and sufficient movement toward compliance, the failure(s) were material
or significant to the operation of the school(s).
Charter holders generally operate as private entities. Each entity contracts with an authorizer, such as
the Board, for the purpose of operating a charter school. As a private entity operating in the public
sector, a charter holder is required to produce and/or hold open certain documents for public inspection
and to follow the law with regard to required notices.
Sources of Data: Correspondence sent by the school, information reviewed during site visits, annual
audit reporting packages submitted to the Board, audit-related communications between the Board and
a charter holder, information provided by stakeholders, and materials submitted for amendment
requests.
2.e. Is the charter holder complying with its obligations to the Board?
Meets Standard:
The charter holder complies with applicable laws, rules, regulations and provisions of the charter contract
relating to operational requirements, including but not limited to:
• Timely submissions of required documents, notification requests and amendment requests
• Limited substantiated complaints
• Favorable actions taken by the Board
Does Not Meet Standard:
The charter holder has failed to comply in the manner described above; the failure(s) were material, and the
charter holder has demonstrated remedies that have resulted in compliance or prompt and sufficient
movement toward compliance to the satisfaction of the Board.
Falls Far Below Standard:
The charter holder has failed to comply in the manner described above, the failure(s) were material, and the
charter holder has not demonstrated remedies that have resulted in prompt and sufficient movement
toward compliance to the satisfaction of the Board; or the charter holder has failed to comply in the manner
described above and regardless of whether or not the charter holder demonstrated remedies that have
resulted in compliance or prompt and sufficient movement toward compliance, the failure(s) were material
or significant to the operation of the school(s).
The Board is required to exercise general supervision and has oversight and administrative responsibility
for the charter schools that it sponsors. In order to carry out these responsibilities, the Board depends
on the charter holder to comply with reporting requirements in a timely manner.
Sources of Data: Correspondence between the Board and a charter holder, information reviewed
during site visits, annual audit reporting packages submitted to the Board, audit-related
communications, information provided by stakeholders, and material submitted for amendment
requests.
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2.f. Is the charter holder complying with reporting requirements of other entities to which the charter
holder is accountable?
Meets Standard:
The charter holder complies with applicable laws, rules, regulations and provisions of the charter contract
relating to operational requirements monitored by other entities to which the charter holder is accountable,
including but not limited to:
• Arizona Corporation Commission
• Arizona Department of Economic Security
• Arizona Department of Education
• Arizona Department of Revenue
• Arizona State Retirement System (if participating)
• Equal Employment Opportunity Commission
• Industrial Commission of Arizona
• Internal Revenue Service
• U.S. Department of Education
Does Not Meet Standard:
The charter holder has failed to comply in the manner described above; the failure(s) were material, and the
charter holder has demonstrated remedies that have resulted in compliance or prompt and sufficient
movement toward compliance to the satisfaction of the Board.
Falls Far Below Standard:
The charter holder has failed to comply in the manner described above, the failure(s) were material, and the
charter holder has not demonstrated remedies that have resulted in prompt and sufficient movement
toward compliance to the satisfaction of the Board; or the charter holder has failed to comply in the manner
described above and regardless of whether or not the charter holder demonstrated remedies that have
resulted in compliance or prompt and sufficient movement toward compliance, the failure(s) were material
or significant to the operation of the school(s).
Charter holders generally operate as private entities. Each entity contracts with an authorizer, such as
the Board, for the purpose of operating a charter school. As a private entity operating in the public
sector, a charter holder has a fiduciary responsibility to comply with applicable laws, rules, and
regulations including certain reporting requirements to other public entities.
Sources of Data: Correspondence between the Board and a charter holder, information reviewed
during site visits, annual audit reporting packages submitted to the Board, audit-related
communications, information provided by stakeholders, and communications and documents from
other entities to which the charter holder is accountable.
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Indicator 3: Additional Obligations
3. Is the charter holder complying with all other obligations?
Meets Standard:
The charter holder complies with applicable laws, rules, regulations and provisions of the charter contract
relating to operational requirements, including but not limited to:
• Judgments or court orders issued by a court of competent jurisdiction
• All other obligations to which the charter holder is subject to that have not been addressed by the
framework’s other measures
Does Not Meet Standard:
The charter holder has failed to comply in the manner described above; the failure(s) were material, and the
charter holder has demonstrated remedies that have resulted in compliance or prompt and sufficient
movement toward compliance to the satisfaction of the Board.
Falls Far Below Standard:
The charter holder has failed to comply in the manner described above, the failure(s) were material, and the
charter holder has not demonstrated remedies that have resulted in prompt and sufficient movement
toward compliance to the satisfaction of the Board; or the charter holder has failed to comply in the manner
described above and regardless of whether or not the charter holder demonstrated remedies that have
resulted in compliance or prompt and sufficient movement toward compliance, the failure(s) were material
or significant to the operation of the school(s).
Charter holders generally operate as private entities. Each entity contracts with an authorizer, such as
the Board, for the purpose of operating a charter school. As a private entity operating in the public
sector, a charter holder has a fiduciary responsibility to comply with applicable laws, rules, and
regulations.
Sources of Data: Correspondence between the Board and a charter holder, information reviewed
during site visits, annual audit reporting packages submitted to the Board, audit-related
communications, information provided by stakeholders, and communications and documents from
other entities to which the charter holder is accountable.
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Appendix A

Operational Performance Framework
Indicator 1: Implementation of the education program as defined in the current charter
contract and state and federal law
1.a. Does the delivery of the education program and operation reflect the essential terms 9 of the educational
program as described in the charter contract?
Meets Standard:
The charter holder’s education program, in operation, reflects the essential terms as described in the charter
contract.
Does Not Meet Standard:
The charter holder has failed to implement the program in the manner described above; the failure(s) were
material, and the charter holder has demonstrated remedies that have resulted in compliance or prompt and
sufficient movement toward compliance to the satisfaction of the Board.
Falls Far Below Standard:
The charter holder has failed to implement the program in the manner described above, the failure(s) were
material, and the charter holder has not demonstrated remedies that have resulted in prompt and sufficient
movement toward compliance to the satisfaction of the Board; or the charter holder has failed to implement
the program in the manner described above and regardless of whether or not the charter holder
demonstrated remedies that have resulted in prompt and sufficient movement toward compliance, the
failure(s) were material or significant to the operation of the school(s).
1.b. Does the charter holder adhere to applicable education requirements defined in state and federal law?
Meets Standard:
The charter holder complies with applicable laws, rules, regulations and provisions of the charter contract
relating to education requirements, including but not limited to:
• Providing services pursuant to IDEA, Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, and the
Americans with Disabilities Act relating to the treatment of students with identified disabilities and
those suspected of having a disability
• Meeting the required provision of instructional days or hours
• Providing any data that is required and requested for the purpose of compiling the school’s
achievement profile
• Implementing mandated programming as a result of state or federal funding
Does Not Meet Standard:
The charter holder has failed to comply in the manner described above; the failure(s) were material, and the
charter holder has demonstrated remedies that have resulted in compliance or prompt and sufficient
movement toward compliance to the satisfaction of the Board.
Falls Far Below Standard:
The charter holder has failed to comply in the manner described above, the failure(s) were material, and the
charter holder has not demonstrated remedies that have resulted in prompt and sufficient movement
toward compliance to the satisfaction of the Board; or the charter holder has failed to comply in the manner
described above and regardless of whether or not the charter holder demonstrated remedies that have
resulted in compliance or prompt and sufficient movement toward compliance, the failure(s) were material
or significant to the operation of the school(s).
9

The essential terms of the charter are the critical characteristics that define the charter school program such that
in order to change these characteristics the charter holder must submit a notification or amendment request for
Board approval.
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Indicator 2: Financial and operational reporting and compliance
2.a. Do the charter holder’s annual audit reporting packages reflect sound operations?
Meets Standard:
The charter holder complies with applicable laws, rules, regulations and provisions of the charter contract
relating to the annual audit reporting package, including but not limited to:
• Timely submission of a complete annual audit reporting package
• An unqualified audit opinion
• An audit where first-time medium impact findings resulting in a corrective action plan (CAP)
requirement have been completed
• An audit devoid of second-time or repeat medium impact findings
• An audit devoid of serious impact findings
• An audit devoid of minimal impact findings that have been identified in three or more consecutive
annual audit reporting packages
Does Not Meet Standard:
The charter holder has failed to comply in the manner described above; the failure(s) were material, and the
charter holder has demonstrated remedies that have resulted in compliance or prompt and sufficient
movement toward compliance to the satisfaction of the Board.
Falls Far Below Standard:
The charter holder has failed to comply in the manner described above, the failure(s) were material, and the
charter holder has not demonstrated remedies that have resulted in prompt and sufficient movement
toward compliance to the satisfaction of the Board; or the charter holder has failed to comply in the manner
described above and regardless of whether or not the charter holder demonstrated remedies that have
resulted in compliance or prompt and sufficient movement toward compliance, the failure(s) were material
or significant to the operation of the school(s).
2.b. Is the charter holder administering student admission and attendance appropriately?
Meets Standard:
The charter holder complies with applicable laws, rules, regulations and provisions of the charter contract
relating to operational requirements, including but not limited to:
• Accurate submission of estimated counts and attendance data to the Arizona Department of
Education
• Tuition and fees
• Public school tax credits
• Attendance records
• Enrollment policies, procedures and processes
Does Not Meet Standard:
The charter holder has failed to comply in the manner described above; the failure(s) were material, and the
charter holder has demonstrated remedies that have resulted in compliance or prompt and sufficient
movement toward compliance to the satisfaction of the Board.
Falls Far Below Standard:
The charter holder has failed to comply in the manner described above, the failure(s) were material, and the
charter holder has not demonstrated remedies that have resulted in prompt and sufficient movement
toward compliance to the satisfaction of the Board; or the charter holder has failed to comply in the manner
described above and regardless of whether or not the charter holder demonstrated remedies that have
resulted in compliance or prompt and sufficient movement toward compliance, the failure(s) were material
or significant to the operation of the school(s).
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2.c. Is the charter holder maintaining a safe environment consistent with state and local requirements?
Meets Standard:
The charter holder complies with applicable laws, rules, regulations and provisions of the charter contract
relating to operational requirements, including but not limited to:
• Maintaining appropriate facility documents, including a certificate of occupancy, fire marshal
inspection report, county or municipal health inspection report, liability and property loss insurance
coverage, and/or other applicable documents
• Ensuring all employees, personnel, vendors and other individuals have been properly fingerprinted
and background checked
Does Not Meet Standard:
The charter holder has failed to comply in the manner described above; the failure(s) were material, and the
charter holder has demonstrated remedies that have resulted in compliance or prompt and sufficient
movement toward compliance to the satisfaction of the Board.
Falls Far Below Standard:
The charter holder has failed to comply in the manner described above, the failure(s) were material, and the
charter holder has not demonstrated remedies that have resulted in prompt and sufficient movement
toward compliance to the satisfaction of the Board; or the charter holder has failed to comply in the manner
described above and regardless of whether or not the charter holder demonstrated remedies that have
resulted in compliance or prompt and sufficient movement toward compliance, the failure(s) were material
or significant to the operation of the school(s).
2.d. Is the charter holder transparent in its operations?
Meets Standard:
The charter holder complies with applicable laws, rules, regulations and provisions of the charter contract
relating to operational requirements, including but not limited to:
• Academic performance notifications
• Availability of teacher resumes
• Open Meeting Law
• Alignment of officers, directors, members and partners of the charter holder on record as part of
the charter contract with Arizona Corporation Commission submissions
Does Not Meet Standard:
The charter holder has failed to comply in the manner described above; the failure(s) were material, and the
charter holder has demonstrated remedies that have resulted in compliance or prompt and sufficient
movement toward compliance to the satisfaction of the Board.
Falls Far Below Standard:
The charter holder has failed to comply in the manner described above, the failure(s) were material, and the
charter holder has not demonstrated remedies that have resulted in prompt and sufficient movement
toward compliance to the satisfaction of the Board; or the charter holder has failed to comply in the manner
described above and regardless of whether or not the charter holder demonstrated remedies that have
resulted in compliance or prompt and sufficient movement toward compliance, the failure(s) were material
or significant to the operation of the school(s).
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2.e. Is the charter holder complying with its obligations to the Board?
Meets Standard:
The charter holder complies with applicable laws, rules, regulations and provisions of the charter contract
relating to operational requirements, including but not limited to:
• Timely submissions of required documents, notification requests and amendment requests
• Limited substantiated complaints
• Favorable actions taken by the Board
Does Not Meet Standard:
The charter holder has failed to comply in the manner described above; the failure(s) were material, and the
charter holder has demonstrated remedies that have resulted in compliance or prompt and sufficient
movement toward compliance to the satisfaction of the Board.
Falls Far Below Standard:
The charter holder has failed to comply in the manner described above, the failure(s) were material, and the
charter holder has not demonstrated remedies that have resulted in prompt and sufficient movement
toward compliance to the satisfaction of the Board; or the charter holder has failed to comply in the manner
described above and regardless of whether or not the charter holder demonstrated remedies that have
resulted in compliance or prompt and sufficient movement toward compliance, the failure(s) were material
or significant to the operation of the school(s).
2.f. Is the charter holder complying with reporting requirements of other entities to which the charter
holder is accountable?
Meets Standard:
The charter holder complies with applicable laws, rules, regulations and provisions of the charter contract
relating to operational requirements monitored by other entities to which the charter holder is accountable,
including but not limited to:
• Arizona Corporation Commission
• Arizona Department of Economic Security
• Arizona Department of Education
• Arizona Department of Revenue
• Arizona State Retirement System (if participating)
• Equal Employment Opportunity Commission
• Industrial Commission of Arizona
• Internal Revenue Service
• U.S. Department of Education
Does Not Meet Standard:
The charter holder has failed to comply in the manner described above; the failure(s) were material, and the
charter holder has demonstrated remedies that have resulted in compliance or prompt and sufficient
movement toward compliance to the satisfaction of the Board.
Falls Far Below Standard:
The charter holder has failed to comply in the manner described above, the failure(s) were material, and the
charter holder has not demonstrated remedies that have resulted in prompt and sufficient movement
toward compliance to the satisfaction of the Board; or the charter holder has failed to comply in the manner
described above and regardless of whether or not the charter holder demonstrated remedies that have
resulted in compliance or prompt and sufficient movement toward compliance, the failure(s) were material
or significant to the operation of the school(s).
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Indicator 3: Additional Obligations
3. Is the charter holder complying with all other obligations?
Meets Standard:
The charter holder complies with applicable laws, rules, regulations and provisions of the charter contract
relating to operational requirements, including but not limited to:
• Judgments or court orders issued by a court of competent jurisdiction
• All other obligations to which the charter holder is subject to that have not been addressed by the
framework’s other measures
Does Not Meet Standard:
The charter holder has failed to comply in the manner described above; the failure(s) were material, and the
charter holder has demonstrated remedies that have resulted in compliance or prompt and sufficient
movement toward compliance to the satisfaction of the Board.
Falls Far Below Standard:
The charter holder has failed to comply in the manner described above, the failure(s) were material, and the
charter holder has not demonstrated remedies that have resulted in prompt and sufficient movement
toward compliance to the satisfaction of the Board; or the charter holder has failed to comply in the manner
described above and regardless of whether or not the charter holder demonstrated remedies that have
resulted in compliance or prompt and sufficient movement toward compliance, the failure(s) were material
or significant to the operation of the school(s).
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Appendix B

Audit Review & Follow-up Process
The audit reporting packages are reviewed pursuant to Board administrative rule and in accordance with
the Board’s Audit & Compliance Questionnaire Follow-up Matrix (“audit matrix”). Each charter holder
that will be operating in the next fiscal year receives a letter after the audit reporting package has been
reviewed. Depending on the “impact” of the issues identified, the letter may: a) indicate the charter
holder should work towards correcting the issues and that staff will monitor for repeated issues in the
next audit (“minimal impact findings”); b) indicate the audit reporting package included repeated issues
that had not been addressed from the prior year’s audit (“minimal impact findings”); c) require the
charter holder to submit a corrective action plan (“medium impact findings”); and/or d) state that the
charter holder will be placed on an upcoming agenda for possible disciplinary action (“serious impact
findings”). For more information, see the “Medium and Serious Impact Findings” and “Minimal Impact
Findings” sections below.

Medium and Serious Impact Findings
If certain noncompliance issues are identified through the audit reporting package, the audit letter
notifies the charter holder that a corrective action plan must be submitted. Additionally, the audit letter
may be used to request additional information from the charter holder to determine whether the issue
involves noncompliance or to indicate that information from the audit reporting package has been
forwarded to or will be reviewed by another entity with jurisdiction over the particular issue. In
determining the “impact” level, the Board’s audit review and follow-up process focuses less on how the
issue was classified by the audit firm and more on what the issue is. Therefore, corrective action plans or
additional information may be required to be submitted for material weaknesses, “no” answers in the
compliance questionnaire, or because of information disclosed in the notes to the financial statements.
The issues covered by this paragraph are considered medium impact findings.
After a medium impact finding has been identified in a charter holder’s audit reporting package, the
charter holder must have two “clean” audits to avoid having the issue classified as a “second time” or
“third time”. In accordance with the audit matrix, the third time Board staff identifies the same issue,
which the first time required a corrective action plan, the issue will be considered a serious impact
finding and the charter holder will be brought to the Board for disciplinary action. There are two
possible exceptions to the charter holder being brought before the Board.
• In the first scenario, the audit identifies third-time fingerprinting issues. Due to the amount of
time that has passed since the audit firm conducted its testing and the charter holder’s ability to
quickly address fingerprinting issues and return to compliance, the charter holder is not brought
to the Board after third-time noncompliance has been identified. If the submitted corrective
action plan identifies noncompliance with fingerprinting requirements, staff may proceed with
civil penalties as permitted by A.R.S. §15-185 and addressed through the Board’s civil penalties
policy.
• In the second scenario, the charter holder’s corrective action plan demonstrates the charter
holder is currently in compliance. For example, the charter holder has submitted the corporate
filings identified in the audit and has demonstrated that the current year’s report has been filed.
Audit Issue Areas Table
The table below reflects the issue areas currently considered medium impact findings. If the medium
impact finding is not sufficiently addressed by the charter holder, it may become a serious impact
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finding. In accordance with the audit matrix, findings that have a significant impact to the students or
the operation of the school, including threats to the health and safety of students and gross violations of
Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) that increase the opportunity for fraud/theft, would
be considered serious impact findings too.
In the table below, the dark tan identifies an issue area that requires the submission of a corrective
action plan to the Board while the light tan indicates that a corrective action plan is not required to be
submitted to the Board. If, in the case of the dark tan areas, the audit firm indicates in the audit that the
issue has been corrected subsequent to the testing date, then a corrective action plan (CAP) is not
required. However, since the charter holder was not in compliance at the time the audit firm did its
testing, the matter becomes part of the charter holder’s compliance history and is designated as a “no
CAP” issue.
The table below in no way precludes the Board from requiring corrective action plans through the audit
review and follow-up process for issues identified through the audit reporting packages that are not
encompassed by the areas identified below.
Issue Description
The audit reporting package indicates
the charter holder has not remitted all
employee and employer contributions
to the Arizona State Retirement System.

Follow-up Required
The charter holder must submit a
corrective action plan. The noncompliance
becomes part of the charter holder’s
contractual and legal compliance history.

Attendance
Record Retention

The audit reporting package indicates
the charter holder has not retained
student attendance records as noted by
statements such as, “Unable to test due
to lack of attendance records” or
“School did not retain sign-in/sign-out
sheets”. This does not include isolated
incidents, such as failure to retain one
student’s withdrawal form. (See also
“Instructional Hours” and “Student
Attendance Matters”.)

The charter holder must submit a
corrective action plan. The noncompliance
becomes part of the charter holder’s
contractual and legal compliance history.

Audit Opinion

The independent auditor’s report on the
charter holder’s financial statements
includes a modified opinion (i.e.,
qualified opinion, disclaimer of opinion
or adverse opinion) rather than an
unqualified or “clean” opinion. Modified
opinions resulting solely from the
financial statements being prepared
assuming the charter holder will
continue as a going concern do not fall
into this category. The going concern
disclosure is considered under the
Board’s Financial Performance
Framework.

The charter holder must submit a
corrective action plan. The noncompliance
becomes part of the charter holder’s
contractual and legal compliance history.

The audit reporting package indicates

The charter holder must submit a

Arizona State
Retirement System

Classroom Site Fund

If the reason cited for the modified
opinion is a departure from GAAP, then
the issue will be considered a serious
impact finding. In addition to requiring a
corrective action plan, the charter holder
will be placed on an agenda for Board
consideration.
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the charter holder: a) does not have
sufficient cash at year-end to cover the
Classroom Site Fund (CSF) cash
carryover balance at year-end; b) has
used CSF monies for expenses not
authorized by the CSF statute; and/or c)
has used CSF monies to supplant, rather
than supplement, existing funding from
other sources.

corrective action plan. The noncompliance
becomes part of the charter holder’s
contractual and legal compliance history.

Corporate/
Contract Filings

The audit reporting package indicates
the charter holder has not made the
appropriate corporate filings with the
Arizona Corporation Commission or
other similar bodies or the charter
holder has not submitted to the Board
the appropriate requests to amend its
charter contract, and at the time the
audit was reviewed, the filings or
requests were still outstanding.

The charter holder must submit a
corrective action plan. The noncompliance
becomes part of the charter holder’s
contractual and legal compliance history.

Current with
Payment Plan

The audit reporting package indicates
the charter holder: a) has paid all
audited fiscal year taxes and/or
contributions to the applicable entities;
b) has submitted all required reports for
the audited fiscal year to the applicable
entities; c) has a payment plan(s) for
prior year taxes and/or contributions;
and d) is current in making its payments
under the payment plan(s). (See also
“Taxes”.)

The audit letter references the
noncompliance. A corrective action plan is
not required to be submitted to the
Board. The noncompliance becomes part
of the charter holder’s contractual and
legal compliance history.

Employment
Eligibility

The audit reporting package indicates
the charter holder has not complied
with E-Verify requirements, I-9
requirements, or both for some or all
employees. (See also “Employment
Eligibility CAP”.)

For first-year noncompliance, the audit
letter reminds the charter holder of its
responsibility to comply with these
requirements and provides links to
additional information to assist in bringing
the charter holder back into compliance.
The noncompliance becomes part of the
charter holder’s contractual and legal
compliance history.

Employment
Eligibility CAP

The audit reporting package identifies
repeated noncompliance with E-Verify
requirements, I-9 requirements, or both
for some or all of the charter holder’s
employees. (See also “Employment
Eligibility”.)

The charter holder must submit a
corrective action plan. The noncompliance
becomes part of the charter holder’s
contractual and legal compliance history.

Fingerprinting

The audit reporting package indicates
the charter holder has failed to properly

The charter holder must submit a
corrective action plan. The noncompliance
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fingerprint its personnel and/or vendors.
(See also “Fingerprinting Emergency
Hire”.)
The audit reporting package indicates
the charter holder failed to comply with
all requirements for hiring an individual
under statute’s emergency hire
provisions. For this option to be
considered (rather than the
“Fingerprinting” option above), the
emergency hire issue must be the only
fingerprinting noncompliance identified
in the audit reporting package and the
individual’s or individuals’ fingerprint
clearance card application(s) must have
been on file with the Arizona
Department of Public Safety when the
audit firm completed its testing.

becomes part of the charter holder’s
contractual and legal compliance history.

Fiscal Matters

The audit reporting package identifies
possible significant weaknesses in the
charter holder’s accounting practices
(e.g., commingling of personal and
business expenses) and/or contracting
and purchasing practices (e.g., an
individual and related party company
paid to provide the same services), or
the audit reporting package identifies
fiscal matters where additional
information is required to determine the
charter holder’s compliance with
contractual and/or statutory
requirements. (See also “Internal
Controls”.)

The charter holder must submit a
corrective action plan. The noncompliance
becomes part of the charter holder’s
contractual and legal compliance history
unless, based on the additional
information submitted as part of the
corrective action plan, it is determined
that no noncompliance existed.

Information
Forwarded to
ADE/ESS

The audit reporting package identifies
possible significant noncompliance with
laws relating to the education of
students with disabilities (e.g., alleged
falsification of documents). Generally,
“no” answers in the Special Education
section of the compliance
questionnaires do not rise to this level.

The audit letter indicates the matter will
be forwarded to Exceptional Student
Services Section of the Arizona
Department of Education (ADE) for review
and follow-up. A corrective action plan is
not required to be submitted to the
Board. The noncompliance becomes part
of the charter holder’s contractual and
legal compliance history.

Information
Forwarded to
Internal Revenue
Service

The audit reporting package identifies
issues that involve the interpretation of
Internal Revenue Service laws and
regulations (e.g., independent
contractor vs. employee).

The audit letter indicates the matter will
be forwarded to the Internal Revenue
Service for review and follow-up. A
corrective action plan is not required to be
submitted to the Board. The
noncompliance becomes part of the
charter holder’s contractual and legal

Fingerprinting
Emergency Hire

The charter holder must submit a
corrective action plan. The noncompliance
becomes part of the charter holder’s
contractual and legal compliance history.
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compliance history.
Instructional Hours

The audit reporting package indicates
the charter holder failed to provide the
statutory minimum number of hours
and/or days of instruction to students.
(See also “Attendance Record
Retention” and “Student Attendance
Matters”.)

The charter holder must submit a
corrective action plan. The noncompliance
becomes part of the charter holder’s
contractual and legal compliance history.

Insurance

The audit reporting package indicates
the charter holder has failed to obtain or
maintain the statutorily required
insurance for liability and property loss.

The charter holder must submit a
corrective action plan. The noncompliance
becomes part of the charter holder’s
contractual and legal compliance history.

Internal Controls

The audit reporting package identifies a
material weakness or significant
deficiency indicating the charter holder
has failed to: a) maintain documentation
(e.g., invoices) supporting information
entered in its accounting system; b)
adequately segregate accounting
responsibilities and duties among
different people; or c) beginning with
the fiscal year 2013 audits, perform
bank reconciliations or adequately
safeguard cash. (See also “Fiscal
Matters”.)

The charter holder must submit a
corrective action plan. The noncompliance
becomes part of the charter holder’s
contractual and legal compliance history.

Internal Controls –
Federal Funds (ADE)

The audit reporting package identifies a
material weakness or significant
deficiency in one or more of the areas
addressed in the “Internal Controls”
category above. The difference between
this category and the “Internal Controls”
category is that these issues pertain to
the expenditure of federal funds.

Since the issues pertain to federal funds,
the audit letter indicates the ADE, as the
entity responsible for sub-recipient
monitoring, will follow-up with the charter
holder, as necessary. A corrective action
plan is not required to be submitted to the
Board. The noncompliance becomes part
of the charter holder’s contractual and
legal compliance history.

Internal Controls –
School District (OAG)

The audit reporting package identifies a
material weakness or significant
deficiency in one or more of the areas
addressed in the “Internal Controls”
category above. The difference between
this category and the “Internal Controls”
category is that the charter holder,
which is a school district, has received
notice from the Office of the Auditor
General that the school district has
failed to substantially comply with the
Uniform System of Financial Records.

To avoid corrective action plans having to
be submitted to multiple entities and the
possibility of conflicting corrective action
plan requirements, the audit letter
indicates the Board will monitor the
charter holder’s compliance through the
annual audit reporting packages and, as
necessary, through communications with
Office of the Auditor General. A corrective
action plan is not required to be
submitted to the Board. The
noncompliance becomes part of the
charter holder’s contractual and legal
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compliance history.
Open Meeting Law

The audit reporting package identifies
significant noncompliance with Open
Meeting Law requirements (e.g.,
meeting minutes not prepared) or raises
issues that require further information
(e.g., meetings held outside of Arizona).
Generally, “no” answers in the Open
Meeting Law section of the compliance
questionnaire do not rise to this level.

The charter holder must submit a
corrective action plan. The noncompliance
becomes part of the charter holder’s
contractual and legal compliance history.

Student
Attendance Matters

The audit reporting package identifies
student attendance related matters that
require additional information to
determine the charter holder’s broader
compliance with attendance
requirements. These matters pertain to
the charter holder’s policies and
practices related to attendance taking,
attendance reporting or both and
usually involve potential systemic
matters. (See also “Attendance Record
Retention” and “Instructional Hours”.)

The charter holder must submit a
corrective action plan. The noncompliance
becomes part of the charter holder’s
contractual and legal compliance history.

Taxes

The audit reporting package indicates
the charter holder has failed to comply
with federal payroll or income tax
requirements, state payroll or income
tax requirements, and/or state
unemployment contribution
requirements. Specifically, the audit
reporting package indicates the charter
holder has: a) failed to pay the taxes or
contributions due to the Internal
Revenue Service, Arizona Department of
Revenue and/or Arizona Department of
Economic Security for the audited fiscal
year, prior fiscal years or both; b) failed
to submit required reports to any or all
of these entities; and/or c) failed to
make the required payments under a
payment plan with any or all of these
entities. (See also “Current with
Payment Plan”.)

The charter holder must submit a
corrective action plan. The noncompliance
becomes part of the charter holder’s
contractual and legal compliance history.

Worker’s Comp

The audit reporting package indicates
the charter holder has not complied
with worker’s compensation
requirements.

The charter holder must submit a
corrective action plan. The noncompliance
becomes part of the charter holder’s
contractual and legal compliance history.

29

Under the operational framework, a charter holder whose audit reporting package identifies medium
impact findings may receive a “Meets Standard” on Measure 2.a. as long as the corrective action plan
requirements have been completed and all other metrics have been met.

Minimal Impact Findings
For issues of noncompliance that are not considered medium impact findings or serious impact findings,
Board staff tracks each issue and determines if the issue is repeated in the next year’s audit reporting
package. Generally, there are two exceptions to this –issues relating to the education of students with
disabilities and certain issues involving student attendance reporting.
• Students with Disabilities – The Board worked with the ADE to develop the questions included in
the compliance questionnaires because the Board wanted this addressed. However, for
determining a charter holder’s compliance with laws relating to the education of students with
disabilities, the Board relies upon the results of reviews conducted by the ADE’s Exceptional
Student Services Section.
• Student Attendance Reporting – The Board currently considers certain student attendance
findings as medium impact findings (see “Attendance Record Retention”, “Instructional Hours”
and “Student Attendance Matters” in the table above). A copy of each charter holder’s audit
reporting package is provided to the ADE, which has a unit that is responsible for conducting
attendance audits of district and charter schools. This unit uses the audit reporting packages and
other information to determine which school districts and charter holders will receive an
attendance audit.
If repeat minimal impact findings are identified, the audit letter includes a statement indicating that
repeat issues were identified in the current audit reporting package that had not been addressed from
the prior year. Under the operational framework, if a minimal impact finding is identified in three or
more consecutive audits, then the charter holder would receive a “Does Not Meet Standard” on
Measure 2.a.
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AGENDA ITEM EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: Proposed Revisions to the Eligibility Criteria for a
Replication Application and Transfer Application
Issue
The Replication Application and Transfer Application include eligibility criteria that evaluates a charter’s
performance in order to determine if a charter holder is eligible to submit either application. The Board will
consider proposed revisions to both the Replication Application and Transfer Application to add eligibility
criteria to allow charter holders to submit an application earlier that the Board’s current process.
Background
A Replication Application and Transfer Application are expansion requests that expand a current charter holder’s
operation by replicating an existing school into a new charter or transferring an existing school to its own
charter.
Currently, when a charter holder requests to transfer an existing school to its own charter or replicates an
existing school into a new charter, known as the Replication Model School, the school must be open and have
completed at least three years of operation prior to submitting the application. This means a charter holder
wanting to expand its operations must wait until its 4th year of operation to submit the application in order to
execute the new charter or transfer charter in its 5th year of operation. A significant change being proposed by
Board staff will allow a charter holder to be considered by the Board for a replication or transfer charter in its 3rd
year of operation, but will require the school being replicated or transferred to have a minimum Overall Rating
of “Above Standard” on the academic dashboard in each of the last two years.
Public Comment
The proposed changes were open for public comment from September 11 through October 1, 2018. Board staff
did not receive any comments within the stated timeframe of this first opportunity for public comment.
Proposed Revisions
Common changes to both applications include:
• Technical changes to enhance the readability of the application instructions
• Updating all attachments/forms as appropriate
Replication Application
Appendix A: Application for Replication Charter includes the details on the proposed revisions and is
summarized below:
• Change the minimum Overall Rating from “Meets Standard” to “Above Standard” on the academic
dashboard for the Replication Model School in each of the last two years and not the last three years.
• Ensure that 75 percent or more of the other schools operated by the charter holder have a minimum
Overall Rating of “Meets Standard” in the academic dashboard instead of requiring each school to meet
this standard. This criterion aligns with that of the current eligibility criteria in the Academic
Performance Framework and Guidance.
Transfer Application
Appendix B: Application for Transfer Charter includes the details on the proposed revisions and is summarized
below:
• The school being transferred must have a minimum Overall Rating of “Above Standard” on the
academic dashboard in each of the last two years. Currently, the school being transferred must have
completed a least three years of operation prior to submitting a transfer application.

ASBCS, October 15, 2018

•

The charter holder and its Associated Charters must be in compliance pursuant to the Board’s
Conducting Compliance Checks Policy Statement. This criterion aligns with that of the Replication
Application.

ASBCS, October 15, 2018

Appendix A:
Application for Replication Charter

ASBCS, October 15, 2018

Application for
Replication Charter
December 2017DATE

Arizona State Board for Charter Schools
1616 W. Adams Street, Suite 170
Phoenix, AZ 85007
Phone : (602) 364-3080
Fax : (602) 364-3089
https://asbcs.az.gov
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Replication Application Instructions

Introduction
The mission statement of the Arizona State Board for Charter Schools (“Board”) is: “To improve public
education in Arizona by sponsoring charter schools that provide quality educational choices.” In the fall
of 2006, the Board approved an application process for the replication of existing high quality charter
schools. A need was identified to establish an alternative application process for an existing charter that
chooses to replicate its program without having to continue through the new charter application
process. The purpose of the Replication Application is to streamline the application process for existing
charters that consistently demonstrated quality academic and operational performance and financial
viability, as set by the Board’s performance frameworks.
The Replication Application is based on the premise that the new charter will reflect the implementation
of the existing educational program, corporate and governance structure, and financial and operational
processes that have been successfully demonstrated in the Replication Model School. The charter
holder is required to acknowledge such consistency through specific statements and responses in the
application package.

Eligibility
Eligibility to expand using the replication process is based on the academic, financial, and operational
performance of the charter holder, its Associated Schools, and Associated Charters. The replication
process is open to any charter holder that meets the eligibility criteria described below.
Academic Performance Criteria
• An academic dashboard for each school operated by the charter holder is available through the
ASBCS online system.
•

The Replication Model School must currently be open and have:
o

A minimum Overall Rating of “Meets Above Standard” on the academic dashboard in each
of the last three two years that includes the grade levels requested; and

o

Provided a program of instruction for the grade levels requested for replication.; and

•

A current Overall Rating that includes the grade levels requested.

•

75 percent or more of the Each schools operated by the charter holder requesting replication that is
eligible to receive an Overall Rating must have a minimum Overall Rating of “Meets Standard” in the
most recent fiscal year presented on each school’s academic dashboard.

•

year.

•

Either 75 percent% or more of all Associated Schools eligible to receive an Overall Rating must have
a minimum Overall Rating of “Meets Standard”, or if one or more Associated Schools are excluded1
for academic purposes, then 100 percent% of the remaining Associated Schools eligible to receive
an Overall Rating must have a minimum Overall Rating of “Meets Standard”.

1

The Board determined that certain Associated Schools could be excluded from the academic eligibility criteria. To be
excluded, the Special Exclusions form found in Appendix B must be submitted. The submission of the Special Exclusions form
may extend the staff eligibility review timeframe by up to three weeks.

Rev. December 2017

Page 1

Replication Application Instructions
Financial Performance Criteria
• A financial dashboard for the charter holder is available through ASBCS Online2.
• The charter holder has no measure rated “Falls Far Below Standard” for the most recent fiscal year
presented on the charter holder’s dashboard.
• 75 percent or more of all Associated Charters have no measure rated “Falls Far Below Standard” for
the most recent fiscal year presented on the Associated Charters’ dashboards. If one or more
Associated Charters are excluded for financial performance purposes, then 100 percent of the
remaining Associated Charters must have no measure rated “Falls Far Below Standard” for the most
recent fiscal year presented on the Associated Charters’ dashboards.
Operational Performance Criteria
• An operational dashboard for the charter holder is available through ASBCS Online.
• The charter holder meets the operational performance standard for the most recent completed
fiscal year.
• The charter holder meets the operational performance standard for the current evaluated year.
• 75 percent or more of its Associated Charters meets the operational performance standard for the
most recently completed fiscal year and the current evaluated year.
Compliance Criteria
The charter holder requesting replication and its Associated Charters must be in compliance with its
charter, other contractual agreements with the Board, and all applicable federal and state laws. Please
refer to the Board’s Conducting Compliance Checks Policy Statement for more information on this
process.
Determining Eligibility
To determine whether your charter is eligible to expand using the replication process:
•

Review the dashboards for all schools operated by the charter holder requesting replication, as well
as all Associated Schools and Associated Charters. For further information about the Performance
Frameworks see the guidance documents, available on the Board’s website.

•

Ensure the charter holder and its Associated Charters are in compliance per the Board’s policy. If a
charter holder or its Associated Charters are not in compliance, the request may be deemed
incomplete and the non-compliance may be recorded on the charter holder’s operational
dashboard.

•

Fill out the Replication Eligibility form (see Appendix B). If you are eligible, submit the form
electronically to your assigned EPM or to the Charter Board office at
charterschoolboard@asbcs.az.gov.

•

Fill out the Special Exclusions form (see Appendix B) to determine if all or some of the Associated
Schools and Associated Charters can be excluded from the academic and financial eligibility criteria
review.

•

Upon receipt of the Eligibility form, Board staff will do the following:

2

The Board must have received the charter holder’s first audit reporting package for the charter holder to be eligible to submit
an expansion request. If the audit reporting package has been submitted but a dashboard is not available through ASBCS
Online, please contact your Education Program Manager.
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o

Confirm eligibility, including conducting a compliance check;

o

Determine whether the charter holder meets the Board’s Financial Performance
Expectations; and

o

Notify the charter holder within 15 business days if eligible to replicate.

Maintaining Eligibility
If a charter holder is eligible to submit a replication application, it must maintain eligibility prior to Board
consideration. Eligibility may be impacted during the review process if any of the following occur:
•

•

•

The Board develops new academic dashboards for the schools operated by the charter holder,
Associated School(s), or both. Board staff will reevaluate the charter holder’s eligibility based on
the most recent fiscal year academic dashboard.
The Board receives the next audit reporting package for the charter holder, Associated
Charter(s), or both. Board staff will update the applicable dashboard(s) and reevaluate the
charter holder’s eligibility based on the most recent audit reporting package(s).
The Board receives new operational data for the charter holder, Associated Charter(s), or both.
Board staff will update the applicable dashboard(s) and reevaluate the charter holder’s eligibility
based on the most recent fiscal year operational dashboard.

If the charter holder is determined to no longer be eligible based on any of the above, Board staff will
notify the charter holder and close the application.
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Timeframes
Process Stage
Replication Eligibility Form Submission
The Charter Holder submits the Replication Eligibility form
and Special Exclusions form (if applicable).

Standard
Accepted throughout
the year.

Expedited
Accepted from July 1
to July 31 only.

Eligibility Review
Staff will confirm eligibility and notify the Charter Holder.
A compliance check will be conducted.

Within 15 business days of submission.

Replication Application Submission
The Charter Holder must submit the application package via
the ASBCS Online system. The application package must
adhere to the requirements set forth in these instructions.

Accepted throughout
the year.

Accepted by the last
business day in
September.

Completed within 15
business days of
submission.

Completed by the 5th
business day in
October.

Completed within 50
business days of
submission, including
Board consideration.

Completed by the last
business day of
October, including
being placed on the
scheduled November
Board meeting.

See above

See above

Staff Administrative Review
Staff will confirm that the application package contains all
information and necessary documentation. The Charter
Holder will be notified of the results.
•
•

An Administratively Incomplete application package
will be closed.
An Administratively Complete application package will
move forward to the Substantive Review process.

Staff Substantive Review
Staff will evaluate the content of all responses and
documentation.
If the application package is deemed Substantively
Incomplete, the Charter Holder will have 10 business days
to submit the requested information.
•

If the requested information is not submitted within 10
business days, or if the submitted information does not
sufficiently address the deficiencies identified by staff,
it may delay the application package from moving
forward to the scheduled agenda.

•

If the resubmitted information addresses the
deficiencies identified by staff, the application package
will be deemed Substantively Complete.

Board Consideration
A Substantively Complete replication application package
will be forwarded to the Board.
A notification is sent to the Charter Holder providing the
scheduled meeting date for the Board’s consideration of
the Replication Application.
Prior to Board consideration a compliance check is
conducted.
The Board will make a decision about whether or not to
grant the replication charter.
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Submission Process
Accessing the Application
The Replication Application is an online form completed through the ASBCS Online system. Upon
determination that a charter holder is eligible to participate in the Replication process, Board staff will
notify the charter holder and make the Replication Application available on the Charter
Representative’s dashboard on ASBCS Online.
Once eligibility notification has been received, log in to your ASBCS Online (http://online.asbcs.az.gov)
account using the Charter Representative’s user name (email address) and password.
From the Dashboard, choose “Submit Form” from the Charter Holder Menu. On the Submit Form
screen, choose “Replication Application” from the Applications Menu.

Completing the Application
This document contains the instructions for filling out the online form, and should be used while
entering information into the system. Some areas of the online form require information to be entered
into a form field, and others require the upload of a narrative or document.
As you complete this application, please keep in mind the importance of overall consistency of the
application package. All information presented in the application package, if approved, becomes part
of the charter contract and will be used for accountability purposes throughout the term of the
charter.
1. Complete the entire application package, including all relevant sections, according to the
instructions in this document.
2. Sections requiring narrative responses (Section 5. Educational Plan and Section 6. Operational and
Business Plan) have identified suggested page lengths.
3. Ensure that the checkbox next to each statement of consistency is checked.
4. Use only forms or templates approved for the current version of the Replication Application. Forms
can be found in Appendix B of these instructions.
5. Complete the checklist in this document to ensure you have completed all the required sections.
6. For attached documents, follow the Formatting Requirements outlined below.
7. Submit the application package by clicking the “Submit to ASBCS” button at the bottom of the form.
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Formatting Requirements:
• Only the following file types will be accepted: .pdf, .doc, .docx, .xls, .xlsx.
•

Create a three-letter abbreviation for your entity name and use it at the beginning of each filename
when saving documents (e.g. ECS for Excelling Charter School, Inc.).

•

Name files as follows:
•

For required exhibits, a brief description of the document’s content (e.g. for floor plan #2 for
Excelling Charter School, name the file ECSfloorplan2.pdf); and

•

For files relating to individuals (e.g. affidavit, resume), end each file name with the initials of the
individual (e.g. for Jane Doe’s resume for the Excelling Charter School application, name the file
ECSresumeJD.pdf).

•

Fonts must be no less than 11 point.

•

The application calls for certain official documents to be scanned. Scanned documents must be no
less than 100% of the original size, except for building floor plans or maps.
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1. Applicant Agreement
The Applicant Agreement certifies that the Charter Representative has read and understands all policies
and requirements related to the replication application. Read the agreement carefully and sign the
online application.
I certify all information contained in this application is complete and accurate, realizing that any
misrepresentation could result in disqualification from the replication application process or revocation
after award. I understand that incomplete applications will not be considered.
The Applicant acknowledges that all information presented in the application package, if approved,
becomes part of the charter and will be used for accountability purposes throughout the term of the
charter, and that the charter may be amended or modified by mutual agreement, in writing, of the parties
pursuant to the terms of the charter contract when signed.
The Applicant acknowledges that the officers, directors, members, or partners are aware of their
responsibilities in the operation of a charter school as described in Arizona statute and that the Applicant
is subject to, and will ensure compliance with, all relevant federal, state, and local laws and requirements.
The Applicant acknowledges that the most current academic data will be provided to the Board for its
consideration of the application package.
The Applicant acknowledges that if approved to operate a charter school, the Applicant must execute a
charter contract with the Arizona State Board for Charter Schools within twelve months after the Board
decides to grant the charter. If a charter is not timely signed, the Board’s decision to grant the replication
charter expires.
The Applicant acknowledges that if approved to operate a charter school, the Applicant must begin
providing educational services no later than the second fiscal year after the Board’s decision to grant the
charter. Failure to begin providing educational instruction accordingly may result in the revocation of the
charter.
The Applicant acknowledges that if approved to operate a charter school, the Applicant must provide the
number of days of instruction as approved in the application package within the State’s fiscal year that
begins July 1st and ends June 30th. Failure to do so may result in revocation of the charter.
To sign the application package and indicate understanding and agreement with the above information,
the Charter Representative needs to enter his or her ASBCS Online password in the box. Then, click
“Save and Continue to Next Page”.
A good-cause extension to execute a new charter and a good cause suspension of a new charter do not
apply to replication charters.
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2. Entity Information
In this section, provide information about the current entity eligible for replication, along with
information about the entity that will hold the replication charter.
Form Fields
Field

Instructions

Name of Charter
Holder Entity Eligible
for Replication*

Provide the name of the existing Charter Holder Entity requesting
replication.

Name of Replication
Model School*

Provide the name of the school currently operating under the existing
entity that is being replicated.

Name of Proposed
Charter School*

Provide the name of the charter school that will be in operation if the
application is approved.

Will the replication
charter be held by the
existing entity?*

Select the button that accurately represents the entity that will hold the
replication charter:
☐ Yes, the existing entity will hold the replication charter.
☐ No, a new entity will hold the replication charter.

Section A: New Entity and Corporate Principals
In this section, provide information regarding the consistency in the corporate structure between the
existing entity and the new entity. Answer the following question about the entity that will operate the
new school by checking the appropriate box and completing any additional information requested.
Below, identify the individuals that will serve as Charter Representatives and/or Charter Principals.
Documentation is required for each individual, as indicated in the directions below. If a Charter
Representative and/or Principal is a current Charter Representative and/or Principal of an operating
charter and you believe current information is already on file with the Board, email Board staff at
charterschoolboard@asbcs.az.gov. Staff will provide an email response confirming that current
information is on file. Attach the confirmation email listing the documents currently on file in the
appropriate attachment areas of the form.
Form Fields
Field
Statement of
Consistency*

Instructions
Check the box to confirm the following statement:
I understand and agree that the Replication Application process requires the
organizational structure of the new entity to be consistent with the
organizational structure of the existing entity.

Name of New Entity*

Provide the name of the public body, private person, or private organization
(A.R.S. §15-183(B)(3)) that will hold the replication charter.

Authorized
Representative for
New Entity*

Click the “Add Authorized Representative” link. When the window pops up,
enter the last 4 digits of the individual’s Social Security Number and the
individual’s Date of Birth. Then, click the “Add Authorized Representative”
button.
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The window will expand. When that happens, complete the following:
First Name: Enter the individual’s first name.
Last Name: Enter the individual’s last name.
Email Address: Enter the individual’s email address.
Fingerprint Clearance Card: Click “Choose File” and upload a PDF of a copy
of the front and back of the individual’s valid FCC issued by DPS.
Background Information Sheet: Click “Choose File” and upload a PDF of
both pages of the completed form (see Appendix B).
Verification of Coursework/Degree: Click “Choose File” and upload a PDF of
the individual’s transcripts from the postsecondary institution or an official,
watermarked report from the National Student Clearinghouse. If no
postsecondary degree is noted, or the individual cannot retrieve his or her
transcripts, the No Postsecondary Transcript form (see Appendix B) is
required.
Affidavit: Click “Choose File” and upload a PDF of a completed, signed, and
notarized Affidavit, Disclosure, and Consent for Background and Credit
Check form (see Appendix B).
Résumé: Click “Choose File” and upload a PDF of the résumé.
Repeat this process for each individual being added as an authorized
representative.
Authorized
Representative
Mailing Address*

Enter the Mailing Address for the Authorized Representative.

County*

Enter the name of the county of the proposed school.

Day Time Phone*

Enter the day time phone of the authorized representative.

Fax (optional)

Enter the fax number of the authorized representative.

Form of Organization* Select the button that accurately represents the structure of the entity
organization.
☐ Government Entity
☐ Non Profit Corporation
☐ For Profit Corporation
☐ Tribal Entity
☐ Partnership
☐ Sole Proprietor
Entity Type*
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Charter Principals Background Information
In this section, provide the names of all Principals (officers, members, directors, or partners) of the new
entity. Documentation is required for each individual, as indicated in the directions below.
Charter Principals*

Click the “Add Officer, Director, Member or Partner” link. When the
window pops up, enter the last 4 Digits of the individual’s Social Security
Number and the individual’s Date of Birth. Then, click the “Add Officer,
Director, Member, or Partner” button.
The window will expand. When that happens, complete the following:
First Name: Enter the individual’s first name.
Last Name: Enter the individual’s last name.
Email Address: Enter the individual’s email address.
Fingerprint Clearance Card: Click “Choose File” and upload a PDF of a copy
of the front and back of the individual’s valid FCC issued by DPS.
Background Information Sheet: Click “Choose File” and upload a PDF of
both pages of the completed form (see Appendix B).
Verification of Coursework/Degree: Click “Choose File” and upload a PDF
of the individual’s transcripts from the postsecondary institution or an
official, watermarked report from the National Student Clearinghouse. If
no postsecondary degree is noted, or the individual cannot retrieve his or
her transcripts, the No Postsecondary Transcript form (see Appendix B) is
required.
Affidavit: Click “Choose File” and upload a PDF of a completed, signed, and
notarized Affidavit, Disclosure, and Consent for Background and Credit
Check form (see Appendix B).
Résumé: Click “Choose File” and upload a PDF of the résumé.
Current Charter Affiliations: Click “Choose File” and upload a PDF of a
document listing current charter affiliations for the individual.
Repeat this process for each individual being added as a Charter Principal.

Required Exhibits for Section A*:
• A copy of Arizona filing required to conduct business in Arizona by the Arizona Corporation
Commission or Arizona Secretary of State.
•

A copy of current Corporate Bylaws/Operating Agreement.
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3. Governance Structure
In this section, provide information regarding the consistency in the governance structure between the
existing entity and the new entity for the proposed charter school. Pursuant to A.R.S. §15-183(E)(8), the
school governing body of a charter school is responsible for the policy decisions of the school.
Form Fields
Field
Statement of
Consistency*

How will the
governance structure
of the new school
relate to the
Replication Model
School?*

Instructions
Check the box to confirm the following statement:
I understand and agree that the Replication Application process requires
the governance structure of the new school to be consistent with the
governance structure of the Replication Model School.
Select the button that accurately represents the governance structure of
the new school.
☐The new school will be operated by the existing entity and have the
same school governing body as the Replication Model School (skip Section
B and go to Education Service Providers).
☐ The new school will be operated by a new entity described in Section A,
which will act as the school governing body (skip Section B and go to
Education Service Providers).
☐ The new school will be operated by the existing entity but with a new,
separate school governing body which will follow the same membership
structure and responsibilities as the current governing body (complete
Section B).
☐ The new school will be operated by a new entity described in Section A,
and have a new, separate school governing body which will follow the
same membership structure and responsibilities as the current governing
body (complete Section B).

Section B: New Governing Body
In this section, identify the type of members that will comprise the school governing body, and the name
and/or number of each type of member.
Form Fields
Field
Type

Instructions
From the pulldown menu identify the type of school governing body
member.
Options: Charter Organization, School Staff, Parents, Community, Other, Ex-Officio Member,
Non-Voting Member, Non-Voting Advisory Member, Alternate Member, Honorary Member.

Name/Number

Enter the first and last name of the individual that will serve as the
member type identified in the previous field, then click “Add Member”.
Repeat this process for each member that will serve on the school
governing body.
If the individual member names are not known, provide the number of
members that will serve for each type identified, then click “Add Member”.
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4. Education Service Provider
Provide information regarding the relationship with Education Service Providers concerning the existing
entity and the new entity. Check the appropriate box and complete any additional information
requested.
An Education Service Provider (“ESP”) is an organization that contracts with or has a governance
relationship with the charter holder entity to provide comprehensive services.
Form Fields
Field
Does the existing entity
have a relationship
with an ESP?*

Instructions
☐ Yes – Contractual (Complete Section C.1)
☐ Yes – Governance (Complete Section C.2)
☐ No (Skip Section C and go to Target Population of New School)

Section C.1: Education Service Providers—Contractual Relationship
Form Fields
Field
Statement of
Consistency

What is the name of
the ESP?

Instructions
Check the box to confirm the following statement:
I understand and agree the Replication Application process requires that
the contractual relationship of the replication charter with an ESP to be
consistent with the contractual relationship of the existing entity with an
ESP.
Enter the name of the ESP that will have a contractual relationship with the
replication charter.

Required Exhibits:
• Copy of the signed service agreement as executed between the existing entity and the ESP.
Section C.2: Education Service Providers—Governance Relationship
Form Fields
Field

Instructions

Statement of
Consistency

Check the box to confirm the following statement:

What is the name of
the ESP?

Enter the name of the ESP that will have a governance relationship with
the replication charter.

Describe the nature of
the governance
relationship

Explain whether the charter holder is a subsidiary of the ESP, the charter
holder board has members that are members or employees of the ESP,
and/or the ESP has ultimate executive authority over the charter holder,
including the power to appoint board members and/or close the school.

I understand and agree the Replication Application process requires that
any governance relationship of the replication charter with an ESP to be
consistent with the governance relationship of the existing entity with an
ESP.

Required Exhibits:
List of all Arizona schools that the ESP currently manages.
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5. Educational Plan
In this section, provide information about the students the proposed school will serve and the methods of
instruction that will be used to serve those students.
Target Population and Enrollment of New School
Provide information that supports the replication of the existing charter in an identified area or with an
identified population.
Form Fields
Field

Instructions

Statement of
Consistency*

Check the box to confirm the following statement:

Statement of
Consistency*

Check the box to confirm the following statement:

Grades Requested for
Replication Charter
Contract*

Check the box for each grade that the proposed school will serve if the
replication application package is approved and ensure the selected grades
are currently approved and being served at the Replication Model School.

Enrollment Cap*

Enter the enrollment cap requested for the replication charter.

Grades Served Year 1*

Enter the grades that will be served in the first year of operation.

Projected Enrollment
Cap Year 1*

Enter the enrollment cap that is projected for the first year of operation.

Grades Served Year 2*

Enter the grades that will be served in the second year of operation.

Projected Enrollment
Cap Year 2*

Enter the enrollment cap that is projected for the second year of
operation.

Grades Served Year 3*

Enter the grades that will be served in the third year of operation.

Projected Enrollment
Cap Year 3*

Enter the enrollment cap that is projected for the third year of operation.

School Calendar Type*

Select the button that accurately represents the type of calendar the
school will use (see the Terms to Know for definitions).

I understand and agree that the target population of the new school
should be similar to the population of the Replication Model School, and
that differences must be addressed in responses to the questions below as
a component of the Replication Application process.

By checking this box, I understand and agree that the Replication
Application process requires the enrollment policies of the new school to
be consistent with the enrollment policies of the Replication Model School,
and that enrollment of students cannot begin until the charter is signed.

☐Standard
☐Extended School Year
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Instructional Days*

Enter the number of instructional days the proposed school will be in
session.

Target Start Date*

Enter the target start date of the proposed school.

School Characteristics*

Check the boxes to indicate the characteristics that will apply to the
proposed school. These characteristics should be consistent with the
Replication Model School. You may choose up to three (definitions of
these characteristics can be found in Appendix C.).
☐ Equine/Agricultural Studies
☐ Computer-based
☐ Alternative/At Risk
☐ Traditional
☐ Back to Basics
☐ Dual Language
☐ College Preparatory
☐ Fine Arts focus
☐ Multi-age
☐ Math and Science/STEM
Project-based
☐
☐ Montessori
☐ Blended Learning
☐ Core Knowledge
☐ Cambridge/ACT Quality Core
☐ International Baccalaureate
☐ Extended Day/Year
☐ Expeditionary Learning
☐ Multiple Intelligences
☐ Online/Virtual
☐ Special Populations

Target Population and Enrollment of New School Narrative*:
Attach a clear, specific and concise response about the proposed target population. The suggested page
length for all four questions is two pages.
1. Describe the student population of the Replication Model School, including:
•

The demographic profile;

•

The academic performance of students entering the school; and

•

The distance traveled by current students.

2. Identify the target population of the proposed school, and demonstrate a clear understanding of
the students the proposed school intends to serve, to include the following:
•

A demographic profile of the student population;

•

Current levels of academic performance;

•

Whether the students will be primarily neighborhood or commuter; and

•

How the target population of the proposed school is similar to, or different from, the
student population currently served by the Replication Model School.
o

If the target population of the proposed school is different from the student
population currently served by the Replication Model School, explain those
differences.

3. Provide a detailed description of how the charter holder will meet the identified enrollment
targets. Include:
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•

A clear description of the advertising and promotion plan that supports the successful
enrollment of the projected student count identified in this application; and

•

The timeline for enrollment at the proposed school, and how it will be communicated to the
public.

4. Describe the fair and equitable enrollment procedures and policies compliant with A.R.S. §15184 of the Replication Model School, that will be implemented at the proposed school, including
the timeframe, waitlist, lottery, and documents included in the enrollment packet.
Program of Instruction
Form Fields
Field

Instructions

Statement of
Consistency*

Check the box to confirm the following statement:

Mission Statement*

Provide the Mission Statement of the proposed school.

I understand and agree that the Replication Application process requires
that the Educational Plan of the new entity and school to be consistent
with the Educational Plan of the existing entity and Replication Model
School.

Program of Instruction Narrative*:
To ensure that the charter contract for the Replication charter reflects the current practices of the
existing entity and Replication Model School, attach a clear, specific and concise response regarding the
existing Educational Plan, as it supports replication. The expected page length for all five questions is no
more than two pages.
1. Provide a description of the charter holder’s philosophical approach to improving pupil
achievement.
•

Include how this philosophy has impacted the success of the existing school.

•

If a different population will be served in the new school, explain how this philosophical
approach will apply.

2. Describe the existing program of instruction of the current school, including methods of
instruction and curriculum for the core academic content areas, which supports this philosophy
and aligns to Arizona Academic Standards.
3. Present an explanation of how the implementation of the existing program of instruction meets
the needs of the proposed target population.
4. Describe the level of proficiency that students must obtain to demonstrate mastery of academic
core content and clear criteria for promotion from one level to the next.
5. If your school serves a high school population, identify graduation requirements for the school
that will meet State requirements. Describe the process and criteria for awarding course credit.
Required Exhibit: (for schools offering high school grades only)
•

Menu of course offerings including course titles and brief descriptions.
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6. Operational and Business Plan
In this section, provide information about the future, past, and present operational plans of the
organization, plans for acquiring facilities, and the financial performance of the organization, as it
relates to the proposed school.
Operational Plan Narrative*:
Attach a clear, specific and concise response regarding the operational plan for the entity requesting
replication. The expected page length for all three questions is no more than one page.
1. Describe the organization’s strategic growth plan and desired outcomes in Arizona over the next
five years. Include the following:
•

Number of schools and grades served, including expansion progression;

•

Projected opening dates; and

•

Projected number of students served.

2. Discuss your operational capacity to open and operate schools successfully, including:
•

Lessons learned from past expansion; and

•

How you plan to avoid or minimize challenges in the replication school.

3. Summarize the organization’s plan to support:
•

The quality and long-term academic success of the replication school;

•

The quality and long-term operational success of the replication school; and

•

The financial viability of the replication school.

Required Exhibits*:
• Minutes or resolutions of the board of the existing entity authorizing the application for
replication.
•

A completed Enrollment Matrix (see Appendix B: Forms) that provides a summary of the
proposed growth of the replication school over the next three years.

•

A completed Staffing Chart (see Appendix B: Forms) that provides a summary of staffing that
supports the proposed growth of the replication school over the next three years.

Facility Acquisition for New School
Provide information regarding facility acquisition.
Form Fields
Field
Has a confirmed facility
been acquired for the
new school?*
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Section D.1: Confirmed Facility
Provide information about the confirmed facility where the proposed school will be located.
Form Fields
Field
Address of Confirmed
Facility

Instructions
Provide the address of the facility where the school will be located.

Required Exhibits:
• Describe the facility size and layout that will accommodate the number of students identified in
the educational plan and is necessary to implement the program of instruction, including:
o Square footage;
o Number of classrooms;
o Layout of space; and
o Location.
• Floor plan or layout of confirmed facility (e.g. floor plans with classroom square footage,
architectural drawings indicating internal building dimensions).
Section D.2: Planned Facility
Provide information about the facility necessary to implement the program of instruction and support
the student population and class size described in this application.
Form Fields
Field
Identify the proposed
location of new school
by providing cross
streets that would be
the center of a 2.5 mile
radius.

Instructions
Enter the cross streets of the proposed location.

Planned Facility Narrative:
1.

Describe the facility suitable for implementing the Educational Plan, to include:
•
•
•

2.

Square footage;
Number of classrooms; and
Layout of space

Describe the timeline for acquiring a suitable facility by the start date identified in Section 5.

Business Plan
Provide information about the charter holder’s financial performance, and, if applicable, the business
plan for replication of the charter.
The Financial Performance Framework gauges both near-term financial health and longer term financial
sustainability, and is described in the Financial Performance Framework and Guidance document
available on the Board’s website. A charter holder’s financial performance is considered by the Board
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when a Replication Application Package is submitted. A charter holder that meets the Board’s financial
performance expectations will be waived from submitting a financial performance response. A charter
holder that does not meet the Board’s financial performance expectations will be required to submit a
financial performance response, as explained on page 20 of the Financial Performance Framework and
Guidance document.
Form Fields
Field
Does the financial
performance of the
Charter Holder meet
the Board’s financial
performance
expectations?*

Instructions
Select the button that accurately represents the Charter Holder’s financial
performance.
☐ Yes (Skip Section E)
☐ No (Complete Section E)

Section E: Business Plan for Expansion
Attach a clear, specific, and concise response regarding budgets and finances.
Required Exhibits3:
• Financial Performance Response: As described in Appendix C (page 20) of the Financial
Performance Framework and Guidance document, address each Financial Performance
Framework measure where the charter holder received a “Does Not Meet Standard” for the
most recent audited fiscal year presented in the dashboard.
•

Start-Up Budget: Using the Start-up Budget template (found in the online application and on the
Board’s website), provide a budget to cover expenses projected to occur during the start-up
period (until August 1 of the year the school opens).

•

Three Year Operational Budget: Using the 3 Year Operational Budget template (found in the
online application and at ASBCS Online), provide a budget to cover expenses projected to occur
during the first three years of operation.

•

Assumptions: For each budget, provide a separate document describing assumptions for each
line item, to include disaggregated costs, and basis for determining those costs. Demonstrate
through the assumptions that the amounts listed are viable and adequate for the start-up
period and first three years of operation.

Note: Sample budget templates can be viewed in Appendix B. Usable Excel templates are found in the
online application and on the Board’s website.

3

Submissions will be available for public review. If references will be made to or include any sensitive information
(e.g., bank account numbers), redact that information prior to submission.
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Checklist
Ensure you have completed all these steps before submitting your application package to the Board.
☐
☐
☐
☐

☐
☐
☐

☐

☐

☐

Read and signed the “Applicant Agreement” form.
Checked all applicable “Statement of Consistency” boxes.
Completed “Entity Information” section.
Completed “New Entity and Corporate Principals” section, including:
• A copy of Arizona filing required to conduct business in Arizona by the Arizona
Corporation Commission or Arizona Secretary of State; and
• A copy of current Corporate Bylaws/Operating Agreement, as applicable.
Attached all documents specified in the “Charter Principals” section for all Charter
Representatives and Principals.
Completed “Governance Structure” section.
Completed “Education Service Providers” section, including:
• Copy of the service agreement as executed between the existing entity and the ESP, if
applicable; and/or
• List of Arizona schools that the ESP currently manages.
Completed “Educational Plan” section, including:
• Completed “Target Population and Enrollment of New School,” with uploaded narrative;
• Completed “Program of Instruction,” with uploaded narrative; and
• Menu of course offerings, if applicable.
Completed “Operational and Business Plan” section, including:
• Operational Plan Narrative;
• Minutes or resolutions of the board of the existing entity authorizing the application for
replication;
• Completed Enrollment Matrix;
• Completed Staffing Chart;
• Completed “Facility Acquisition for New School” section, including:
o A description of the facility size and layout and a floor plan or layout; or
o A Planned Facility Narrative; and
• Completed “Business Plan” section, including (if applicable):
o Financial Performance Response;
o Start-up Budget;
o Three Year Operational Budget; and
o Assumptions for both budgets.
Named all files according to the “Formatting Requirements” described in these instructions.

Rev. December 2017

Page 19

Replication Application Instructions

Appendices
A. Terms to Know
B. Forms
C. School Characteristics Definitions
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A. Terms to Know
•

Associated Charter: A charter operated by a charter that contracts with the same education
service provider; a charter operated by the same charter holder; or a charter operated by a
charter holder with at least 50 percent of the officers, directors, members or partners in
common, as reflected in the charter contract.

•

Associated School: A school operated by a charter holder that operates one or more other
charter schools that contract with the same education service provider; a school operated by
the same charter holder but under different charter contracts; or a school operated by a charter
holder with at least fifty (50) percent of corporate board officers, directors, members, or
partners in common, as reflected by the charter contract.

•

Charter Representative: An individual with the power to bind a charter holder contractually
according to the charter holder's Articles of Incorporation, operating agreement, or by-laws.
This individual will be the point-of-contact with the Board for the purposes of communication
and accountability to charter terms, conditions and the replication application.

•

Education Service Provider (ESP): Any number of organizations that contract with or have a
governance relationship with the entity to provide comprehensive services. The major types of
ESPs that serve charter schools are the education management organization (“EMO”) and
charter management organization (“CMO”). For the purposes of a request:
o An ESP is considered a CMO if it has a governance relationship with the charter holder in
which the charter holder is a subsidiary of the ESP, the charter holder board has
members that are members or employees of the ESP, and/or the ESP has ultimate
executive authority over the charter holder, including the power to appoint board
members and/or close a school operated by the charter holder.
o An ESP is considered an EMO if it will contractually provide operations and management
to the charter holder, but the charter holder chooses the affiliation and is independent
of the ESP.
Fingerprint Clearance Card (FCC): A card issued by the Arizona Department of Public Safety after
a state and federal criminal records check has been conducted.
Principal: Any officer, director, member, partner, or corporate board of the entity applying for a
charter at the time of submission of the application package.

•
•
•

Replication Model School: The school operated by the charter holder with the educational
program, corporate and governance structure, and financial and operational processes which
will be implemented in a new school through the replication process.

•

School Calendar: A school may choose between two types of school calendar. Instruction must
begin on or after July 1 and end no later than June 30.

•

o

Standard: A standard calendar, as described by A.R.S. § 15-341.01, consists of a
traditional school calendar of one session per day meeting 4-5 days per week, or

o

Extended: An extended calendar, as described by A.R.S. § 15-902.04, provides two
hundred days of instruction, with the annual instructional hours increased by 10%.

School Governing Body: The body responsible for the policy decisions of the school, as
described in A.R.S. § 15-183 (E)(8).
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B. Forms
On May 13, 2013, the Board approved revisions to the Replication Application, which includes templates
and forms designated by the Board. Templates and forms must not be altered from the approved
content, format and sequence revised in December 2016. A replication application package may be
deemed Administratively Incomplete if it contains modifications to the content, format, or sequence of
the templates or forms; or if it contains templates or forms that were approved for use in a prior fiscal
year.
This appendix provides the forms that are required throughout the application. Each form is described
below and identifies when a specific form is required to be uploaded.
•

Print, copy, complete, and scan forms as needed (with the exception of the Budget templates—see
below for further guidance).

•

Refer to the Formatting Requirements when creating, saving, and uploading files.

The following forms are included in this section:
•

Replication Eligibility
After a charter holder has reviewed the eligibility criteria on pages 1 and 2 of the instructions and confirmed
eligibility, this form must be completed to confirm understanding of the eligibility criteria and a belief that the
charter holder meets the criteria. This form is emailed to Board staff prior to submitting a Replication
Application.

•

Special Exclusions for Associated Charters and Schools
Use this form to indicate why an Associated Charter or School should be excluded from the academic and
financial eligibility review. This form should be submitted with the Replication Eligibility form.

•

Affidavit, Disclosure and Consent for Background and Credit Check
An Affidavit, Disclosure, and Consent for Background and Credit Check must be completed for each new
Charter Representative or Principal listed in the application. Each form must be signed and dated by the
individual named on the form. The form must be notarized before it is scanned and uploaded into the
application.

•

Background Information Sheet
Both pages of the Background Information Sheet must be completed for each new Charter Representative or
Principal listed in the application. Information included on the Background Information Sheet must be
consistent with that found on the résumé and transcripts.

•

No Postsecondary Transcript
If a postsecondary degree is noted on the Background Information Sheet and résumé of an individual being
added as a Charter Representative or Charter Principal, the request must include scanned copies of transcripts
from the granting institution, or an official, watermarked report from the National Student Clearinghouse. If
postsecondary documentation is not being provided by the individual as part of the request, a No
Postsecondary Transcript form must be completed and uploaded.
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•

Enrollment Matrix
On the Enrollment Matrix, the charter holder will identify three-year enrollment projections for the proposed
school.

•

Staffing Chart
On the Staffing Chart, the charter holder will identify an anticipated three-year staffing plan for the proposed
school. Identify the number of staff members including administrative, instructional, and non-instructional
staff, as well as the sum total at the bottom of the chart.

•

Start-up Budget Template
Provide a budget to cover expenses projected to occur during the start-up period (until August 1 of the year
the school opens). A sample of the Start-up Budget Template is provided in this appendix. However, a fillable
Excel template is available in the online form or at the Board’s website.

•

Three Year Operational Budget Template
Provide a budget to cover expenses projected to occur during the first three years of operation. A sample of
the Three Year Operational Budget Template is provided in this appendix. However, a fillable Excel template is
available in the online form or at the Board’s website.
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Replication Eligibility Form

Arizona State Board for Charter Schools
Replication Eligibility
Review the criteria for eligibility on pages 1 and 2, confirm eligibility, fill out the following information, sign at bottom, and
email to charterschoolboard@asbcs.az.gov, mail to P.O. Box 18328, Phoenix, AZ 85009, or submit in person at 1616 West
Adams St., Suite 170, Phoenix, AZ 85007. Board staff will provide notification of eligibility within 15 business days of
receipt.
Charter Holder Information
Name of Charter Holder Entity
Replication Model School
Associated Charters and/or Schools
Charter Representative Name
Charter Representative Email
Target Start Date of New School
School Information
Grades Served
Location (address or cross streets)

Replication Model School

Proposed New School

Check box below to indicate completion of eligibility review by charter holder
☐ I understand that to be eligible to apply for a Replication Charter, the following criteria must be met by the
Replication Model School, each school operated by the Charter Holder requesting replication, all Associated
Schools and Associated Charters. I have reviewed all relevant dashboards and operational compliance, and found
that these criteria have been met.
• The Replication Model School is currently operating and has a minimum Overall Rating on the Academic
Dashboard of “Meets Above Standard” in each of the last three two years,
• The Replication Model School has provided a program of instruction for the grade levels requested for
replication and that the current Overall Rating include the grade levels requested,
• Each 75% or more of the schools operated by the Charter Holder requesting replication that is eligible to
receive an Overall Rating hasmust have a minimum Overall Rating of “Meets Standard” on the most recent
Academic Dashboard,
• Either 75% or more of all The Associated Schools meet the academic performance criteria, or if one or more
Associated Schools are excluded for academic purposes, then 100% of the remaining Associated Schools must
meet the academic performance criteria,
• The Charter Holder and its Associated Charters meet the financial performance criteria,
• The Charter Holder and its Associated Charters meet the operational performance criteria, and
• The Charter Holder and its Associated Charters are in compliance as specified in the Conducting Compliance
Checks Policy Statement.
*If an Associated School or Associated Charter is being excluded from the eligibility criteria review, attach a complete Special Exclusions form.

Signature
BY SIGNING BELOW, I AFFIRM THAT I AM ACTING ON BEHALF OF THE ABOVE LISTED CHARTER HOLDER TO REQUEST TO
PARTICIPATE IN THE REPLICATION PROCESS. I BELIEVE THAT THE ABOVE LISTED CHARTER HOLDER MEETS THE ELIGIBILITY
REQUIREMENTS OUTLINED ABOVE AND UNDERSTAND THAT BOARD STAFF WILL REVIEW THE ACADEMIC, OPERATIONAL,
AND FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE OF THE CHARTER HOLDER TO CONFIRM ELIGIBILITY.
Charter Representative Signature:_______________________________________________________________
Date:_____________________
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Special Exclusions Form

Arizona State Board for Charter Schools
Special Exclusions for Associated Charters and Schools
Choose the appropriate option that describes why an Associated Charter and/or Associated School should be
excluded from the academic and/or financial performance eligibility review. Once completed, include this form
with the completed Replication Eligibility form.
Charter Holder Information
Name of Charter Holder Entity
Replication Model School
An Associated School may be excluded for academic performance purposes when one or more of the
following conditions are met:
A1. An Associated School is in its 1st year of operation.
A2. An Associated School has a distinct learning environment (philosophy, population, program of instruction,
schedule) that is clearly documented in its charter which is significantly different from the schools operated by
the charter holder that will be impacted by the expansion request.
An Associated Charter may be excluded for financial performance purposes when the following condition is
met:
F1. An Associated Charter is in its 1st year of operation and has not yet submitted its first audit reporting
package to the Board.
For each Associated Charter or School listed in the Charter Holder Information section of the Replication Eligibility
form that meets one or more of the conditions above, list the name of the Associated Charter or School and the
corresponding code for exclusion.
Charter or School Name

Exclusion Code(s) (include as
many codes as applicable)

ABC School

A2

XYZ Charter, Inc.

F1
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Affidavit, Disclosure, and Consent for Background and Credit Check

Arizona State Board for Charter Schools
Affidavit, Disclosure, and Consent for Background and Credit Check
Complete this form for each Charter Representative and Principal listed in the replication application package. Duplicate
as needed and print each form separately. Have each form signed and dated by the Charter Representative or Principal
and notarized.
Name:

Social Security Number*:

Street Address:
City:
Phone:

State:
Date of Birth:

Zip:
Place of Birth:

With my signature below, permission is hereby granted to the Arizona State Board for Charter Schools or its charter
representative bearing this release or a copy thereof, to conduct a background and credit check to obtain information
about me in connection with an application of the following charter holder(s): _________________________________
Please check the appropriate answer to each question below.
1. Have you ever been convicted of or pled “no contest” for any violation of law other than
minor traffic offenses? If either event has occurred, you must answer YES. If the conviction has
been set aside, the charges must be disclosed. Please give details on a separate signed,
notarized and dated sheet.

Yes 

No 

2. Have you ever been convicted of, admitted committing, or are you awaiting trial on any of the
following criminal offenses in this state or similar offenses in another jurisdiction: (1) Sexual
abuse of a minor, (2) Incest, (3) First or second degree murder, (4) Kidnapping, (5) Arson, (6)
Sexual assault, (7) Sexual exploitation of a minor, (8) Contributing to the delinquency of a minor,
(9) Commercial sexual exploitation of a minor, (10) Felony offenses involving sale, distribution or
transportation of, offer to sell, transport or distribute marijuana or dangerous or narcotic drugs,
(11) Felony offenses involving the possession or use of marijuana or dangerous or narcotic drugs,
(12) Misdemeanor offenses involving the possession or use of marijuana or dangerous drugs,
(13) Burglary in the first degree, (14) Burglary in the second or third degree, (15) Aggravated or
armed robbery, (16) Robbery, (17) A dangerous crime against children as defined in A.R.S. § 13705, (18) Child abuse, (19) Sexual conduct with a minor, (20) Molestation of a child, (21)
Manslaughter, (22) Aggravated assault, (23) Assault, or (24) Exploitation of minors involving drug
offenses? If YES, submit certified court record and details of incident(s), signed, notarized and
dated.

Yes 

No 

3. Have you ever declared bankruptcy? Please give details on a separate signed, notarized and
dated sheet.

Yes 

No 

I DO SOLEMNLY SWEAR OR AFFIRM THAT THE FOREGOING INFORMATION IS TRUE AND CORRECT TO THE BEST OF MY
KNOWLEDGE. FURTHERMORE, SHOULD ANY PART OF THE INFORMATION HEREIN PROVIDED PROVE TO BE FALSE, I
RECOGNIZE THAT IT SHALL BE JUST CAUSE FOR THE ARIZONA STATE BOARD FOR CHARTER SCHOOLS TO DENY THE
APPLICATION SUBMITTED BY THE ABOVE LISTED CHARTER HOLDER(S).
Signature __________________________________________________________________________
Notary: Subscribed and sworn before me this _______

day of _____________ Year _________

County of _____________________________________

State of _________________________

Notary Public Signature__________________________

My Commission Expires ____________

*Disclosure of your social security number is voluntary and is requested by the Arizona State Board for Charter Schools pursuant to its legislative
authorization under A.R.S. § 15-182(E) in order to verify the information supplied in your application package and to determine your qualifications to
operate a charter school. No statute or other authority requires that you disclose your social security number for that purpose. Failure to disclosure
your social security number may, however, result in a denial of the application.
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Background Information Sheet

Arizona State Board for Charter Schools
Background Information Sheet
Provide the following information for each Charter Representative or Principal listed in the application package.
This form may be duplicated as many times as necessary.
Full Name (First, Middle, Last)

Other Names Used (Maiden names, AKA, etc.)

Social Security Number (xxx-xx-xxxx)*

Date of Birth (Month/Day/Year)

Residential Address

City

State

Zip

Phone Number

State

Zip

Phone Number

Mailing Address (if different from above)

City

Email Address

List each CITY, STATE and ZIP CODE you have lived in within the past seven years, including your current
address.

City

State

Zip Code

From Mo/Yr

To Mo/Yr

* The voluntary disclosure of your social security number is requested by the Arizona State Board for Charter Schools
pursuant to its legislative authorization under A.R.S. § 15-182(E) in order to verify the information supplied in your
application package and to determine your qualifications to operate a charter school. No statute or other authority
requires that you disclose your social security number for that purpose. Failure to disclose your social security number
may, however, result in a denial of the application.

Continue on page 2
Rev. December 2017
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Background Information Sheet

Background Information Sheet, Page 2
Charter Representative/Principal Name: ___________________________________________________
If applicable, list the highest-level post-secondary institution attended and degree earned or coursework/certification
completed. If no post-secondary education is indicated on your resume, write N/A in “Institution Name”. Ensure that this
information is consistent with that contained in the résumé and transcript information provided with this application
package.
Institution Name

Dates Attended

Degree Earned

Major

List the last FIVE YEARS of employment. List and describe any gaps in employment within the last five years.
Company Name

Position Held

Address

City

Date Employed From: (Month/Year)

Date Employed To: (Month/Year)

Company Name

State

Zip Code

Phone Number
Supervisor/Contact:

Position Held

Address

City

Date Employed From: (Month/Year)

Date Employed To: (Month/Year)

Company Name

State

Zip Code

Phone Number
Supervisor/Contact:

Position Held

Address

City

Date Employed From: (Month/Year)

Date Employed To: (Month/Year)

Company Name

State

Zip Code

Phone Number
Supervisor/Contact:

Position Held

Address

City

State

Date Employed From: (Month/Year)

Date Employed To: (Month/Year)

Zip Code

Phone Number
Supervisor/Contact:

Duplicate and add employment fields as necessary.
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No Postsecondary Transcript Form

Arizona State Board for Charter Schools
No Postsecondary Transcript
Complete this form for each charter principal that has not received, or cannot retrieve, his or her postsecondary
degree transcripts. The information provided on this form should be consistent with that contained in the Background
Information Sheet and résumé provided with the application package.
Charter Holder Information
Name of Charter Holder Entity
Name of Charter Principal

Check box below to indicate what statement applies
☐

I have not received a degree from a postsecondary education institution.

☐

I am currently attending a postsecondary education institution; therefore, I have not yet received a
postsecondary degree.

☐

I have received a degree from a postsecondary education institution. However, I have attempted to obtain the
requested information, but am unable to retrieve my transcripts or degree verification due to the following
circumstances.
Explain:
__________________________________________________________________________________________
__________________________________________________________________________________________
__________________________________________________________________________________________
__________________________________________________________________________________________
__________________________________________________________________________________________
__________________________________________________________________________________________
____________
(If more space is needed for this explanation, please upload an additional page)

Signature
Signature:_________________________________________________
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Enrollment Matrix

Arizona State Board for Charter Schools
Enrollment Matrix
Complete the table to provide the target enrollment, indicating the timeline for the proposed school.
Directions:
•
•

In each box under the “Number of Students” columns, identify the number of students served per
grade for the first three fiscal years the proposed school will be in operation.
In the “Total Enrollment” row, provide the total enrollment for each fiscal year.

Proposed School Name:
Grade Level
Kindergarten
1st
2nd
3rd
4th
5th
6th
7th
8th
9th
10th
11th
12th
Total Enrollment
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Staffing Chart

Arizona State Board for Charter Schools
Staffing Chart
Complete the table to provide the anticipated staffing for the proposed school.
Directions:
•

In each box under the “Number of Staff Members” columns, identify the number of staff members
for each position/category for the first three fiscal years the school will be in operation.

Proposed School Name:
Position
Administration
Teachers/Instructional Staff
Kindergarten
1st
2nd
3rd
4th
5th
6th
7th
8th
9th
10th
11th
12th
Specialty Staff (Music, Art,
PE, etc.)
Special Education
Paraprofessional
Additional Staff
List title:
_______________
List title:
_______________
List title:
_______________
List title:
_______________
Total Number of Staff
Members
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Budget Templates
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Budget Templates
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Budget Templates

Rev. December 2017

Page 35

School Characteristics Definitions

C. School Characteristics Definitions
•

Alternative/At Risk: A school that has a mission that states that the school is to serve a specific
student population that will benefit from an alternative school setting, including those in one or
more of the following categories:
o

Students who have a documented history of disruptive behavior issues.

o

Students who have dropped out of school and are now returning,

o

Students in poor academic standing as demonstrated by being at least one year behind on
grade level performance or academic credits.

o

Students who are primary caregivers or are financially responsible for dependents.

o

Students who are adjudicated.

o

Students who are wards of the state and are in need of an alternative school setting.

•

Back to Basics: A school that provides a program of instruction that incorporates teacher-centered
instruction focusing on Reading, Writing, and Math.

•

Blended Learning: A school that provides a program of instruction that combines online lab-based
or computer-centered instruction and face-to-face classroom instruction as part of their student’s
daily schedule.

•

Cambridge/ACT Quality Core: A school that provides curriculum-driven instruction and uses the
Cambridge IGCSE or ACT Quality Core board examinations.

•

College Preparatory: A school that provides instruction designed to prepare students for a college
or university education.

•

Computer-based: A school site that provides on-site instruction primarily through computer-based
lessons and assessment (not the same as Online/Virtual).

•

Core Knowledge: A school that is recognized as a Core Knowledge School of Distinction, has
received the Core Knowledge Official School designation, or is identified as a “Friend” of Core
Knowledge by teaching all of the topics included in the Core Knowledge Sequence and exemplifying
the Core Implementation Practices (http://coreknowledge.org).

•

Dual Language: A school that provides core content instruction in English and one other language.

•

Equine/Agricultural Studies: A school that provides a program of instruction that explicitly
emphasizes equine and/or agricultural studies as part of classroom instruction and courses
provided.

•

Expeditionary Learning: A school with a model based on the Expeditionary Learning Core Practices
(http://eleducation.org).

•

Extended Day/Year: A school that provides either a daily calendar that exceeds 200 days or a daily
schedule that exceeds 78,000 instructional minutes (390 minutes/day x 200 days) during the school
year.

•

Fine Arts focus: A school that provides a program of instruction that explicitly emphasizes the visual
and performing arts as part of classroom instruction and courses provided.

•

International Baccalaureate: A school that has completed the IB authorization process and is
recognized by the International Baccalaureate (http://www.ibo.org).
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•

Math and Science/STEM: A school that provides a program of instruction that explicitly emphasizes
math, science, and/or technology and engineering as part of classroom instruction and courses
provided.

•

Montessori: A school with a model based on the educational approach originated by Maria
Montessori.

•

Multi-age: A school that has intentionally designed its classroom instruction for mixed-age groups
of children, which may include but not be limited to the use of academic looping within a
classroom.

•

Multiple Intelligences: A school that provides instruction that incorporates Howard Gardner’s
theory of Multiple Intelligences into the design of classroom instruction.

•

Online/Virtual: An approved distance learning school that provides remote instruction through
computer-based lessons and/or resource materials assessments.

•

Project-based: A school that provides a program of instruction incorporating inquiry based
processes around a complex question or problem.

•

Special Populations: A school with a model designed to meets the specialized needs of a specific
target population (deaf/ hard of hearing, blind, autism, etc.).

•

Traditional: A school that is focused on teaching the basics of mathematics, reading, and writing.
Students are taught using direct instruction techniques.
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Application for Transfer Charter
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Application for Transfer
Charter
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Arizona State Board for Charter Schools
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Transfer Application Instructions

Introduction
The mission statement of the Arizona State Board for Charter Schools (“Board” or “ASBCS”) is “To improve
public education in Arizona by sponsoring charter schools that provide quality educational choices.”
The purpose of the Transfer Application is to transfer a charter school that has operated under and existing
charter for at least three years to its own charter with the same educational program and financial and
operational processes. The transfer application process is open to any charter holder that meets the
eligibility criteria and is in accordance with Arizona Administrative Code R7-5-302 (A)(2).
Pursuant to Arizona Revised Statutes (A.R.S.) § 15-183 (V), a transfer of a charter school to a separate
charter shall be completed before the beginning of the fiscal year in which the transfer is scheduled to
become effective.

Eligibility
Eligibility to expand using the transfer process is based on the academic, financial, and operational
performance of the charter holder, its Associated Schools, and Associated Charters. The transfer process is
open to any charter holder that meets the eligibility criteria described below.
Academic Performance Criteria
• An academic dashboard for each school operated by the charter holder is available through the ASBCS
online system.
• Eligibility to use the transfer application process is based on the following:
• The school being transferred must currently be open and have a minimum Overall Rating of “Above
Standard” on the academic dashboard in each of the last two years. completed at least three years of
operation prior to submitting a transfer application package,
• 75 percent or more of the schools operated by the charter holder must have a minimum Overall Rating
of “Meets Standard” in the most recent fiscal year presented on each school’s academic dashboard.
•

Either 75 percent or more of all Associated Schools must have a minimum Overall Rating of “Meets
Standard”, or if one or more Associated Schools are excluded1 for academic purposes, then 100 percent
of the remaining Associated Schools must have a minimum Overall Rating of “Meets Standard”.

Financial Performance Criteria
• A financial dashboard for the charter holder is available through ASBCS Online2.
• The charter holder has no measure rated “Falls Far Below Standard” for the most recent fiscal year
presented on the charter holder’s dashboard.
• 75 percent or more of all Associated Charters have no measure rated “Falls Far Below Standard” for the
most recent fiscal year presented on the Associated Charters’ dashboards. If one or more Associated
Charters are excluded for financial performance purposes, then 100 percent of the remaining
1

The Board determined that certain Associated Schools could be excluded from the academic eligibility criteria. To be excluded,
the Special Exclusions form found in Appendix B must be submitted. The submission of the Special Exclusions form may extend the
staff eligibility review timeframe by up to three weeks.
2 The Board must have received the charter holder’s first audit reporting package for the charter holder to be eligible to submit an
expansion request. If the audit reporting package has been submitted but a dashboard is not available through ASBCS Online,
please contact your Education Program Manager.
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Associated Charters must have no measure rated “Falls Far Below Standard” for the most recent fiscal
year presented on the Associated Charters’ dashboards.
Operational Performance Criteria
• An operational dashboard for the charter holder is available through ASBCS Online.
• The charter holder meets the operational performance standard for the most recent completed fiscal
year.
• The charter holder meets the operational performance standard for the current evaluated year.
• 75 percent or more of its Associated Charters meets the operational performance standard for the
most recently completed fiscal year and the current evaluated year.
Compliance Criteria
The charter holder requesting a transfer and its Associated Charters must be in compliance with its charter,
other contractual agreements with the Board, and all applicable federal and state laws. Please refer to the
Board’s Conducting Compliance Checks Policy Statement for more information on this process.
•

•

The charter holder requesting a transfer, its Associated Schools, and Associated Charters must meet
eligibility criteria based on performance on the academic, financial, and operational dashboards (see
Appendix A), and
The charter holder requesting a transfer must be in compliance as described in the Board’s Policy
Statement for Conducting Compliance Checks.

Determining Eligibility
To determine whether a charter is eligible to transfer a charter school currently operating under the
existing charter to its own charter using the transfer school application process, the following steps must be
completed by the applicant:
☐ Review the most current academic, financial and operational dashboards for all schools operated by the
charter holder as well as all Associated Schools and Associated Charters to determine if all schools meet the
eligibility criteria (see Appendix A). For further information about the dashboards and Performance
Frameworks, see the guidance documents, available on the Board’s website.
☐ Confirm operational compliance per the Board’s Conducting Compliance Checks Policy Statement.
☐ Complete the Letter of Intent form (see Appendix B).
☐ Fill out the Special Exclusions form (see Appendix B) to determine if all or some of the Associated Schools
and/or Associated Charters can be excluded from the eligibility criteria review.
☐ Submit the Letter of Intent form and Special Exclusions form (if applicable) electronically to your
assigned EPM or to the Charter Board office at charterschoolboard@asbcs.az.gov, by the close of business
on the last business day in November of the fiscal year prior to the intended transfer.
Maintaining Eligibility
If a charter holder is eligible to submit a transfer application, it must maintain eligibility through Board
consideration of the application.
Eligibility may be impacted during the review process if any of the following occur:
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•

•

•

The Board develops new academic dashboards for the schools operated by the charter holder,
Associated School(s), or both. Board staff will reevaluate the charter holder’s eligibility based on
the most recent fiscal year academic dashboard.
The Board receives the next audit reporting package for the charter holder, Associated Charter(s),
or both. Board staff will update the applicable dashboard(s) and reevaluate the charter holder’s
eligibility based on the most recent audit reporting package(s).
The Board receives new operational data for the charter holder, Associated Charter(s), or both.
Board staff will update the applicable dashboard(s) and reevaluate the charter holder’s eligibility
based on the most recent fiscal year operational dashboard.

If the charter holder is determined to no longer be eligible based on any of the above, Board staff will notify
the charter holder and close the application.
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Timeframes
The table below provides an overview of the processes and deadlines of the Transfer Application 3.
Process Stage
Deadline
Letter of Intent
The charter holder submits the Letter of Intent to your
assigned EPM or to charterschoolboard@asbcs.az.gov.

By the close of business on the last business
day of November of the fiscal year prior to the
intended transfer

Eligibility Review
Staff will confirm eligibility and notify the charter holder
within the timeframe.

Completed within 15 business days of
submission

Transfer Application Submission
The charter holder must submit a complete application
package via ASBCS Online. The application package must
adhere to the requirements set forth in these instructions.

By close of business on the last business day of
February for a transfer effective on July 1 of
the next fiscal year

Staff Administrative Review
Staff will confirm that the application package contains all
information and necessary documentation. The charter
holder will be notified of the results.
•
•

An Administratively Incomplete application will be
closed.
An Administratively Complete application will move
forward to the Substantive Review process.

Completed within 15 business days of
submission.

Staff Substantive Review
Staff will evaluate the content of all responses and
documentation.
If the application package is deemed Substantively
Incomplete, the charter holder will have 10 business days to
submit the requested information.
•

If the requested information is not submitted within 10
business days or if the submitted information does not
sufficiently address the deficiencies identified by staff,
the application will be closed.

•

If the submitted information addresses the deficiencies
identified by staff, the application will be deemed
Substantively Complete.

A Substantively Complete Transfer Application package will
be forwarded to the Board. A notification is sent to the
charter holder providing the scheduled meeting date for the
Board’s consideration of the Transfer Application. The Board
will make a decision about whether or not to grant the
transfer charter.

The Board will consider the application within
75 business days of submission.

See above.

After Board Consideration
Once approved, the charter for the transferred school will
become effective on July 1 of the next fiscal year following
Board approval.
3

July 1 of the next fiscal year.

Process and timeframes are pursuant to Arizona Administrative Code R7-5-302.
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Submission Process
Upon written acknowledgment of eligibility from Board staff, a charter holder may proceed with the
application process detailed below. In order to ensure appropriate processing times, a complete application
package must be received by close of business on the last business day of February for a transfer effective
on July 1 of the subsequent fiscal year.
Accessing the Application
The Transfer Application is an online form completed through the ASBCS Online system. Upon
determination that a charter holder is eligible to participate in the transfer process, Board staff will make
the Transfer Application available on the Charter Representative’s dashboard on ASBCS Online.
Once the eligibility notification has been received, log in to the charter holder’s ASBCS Online
(http://online.asbcs.az.gov) account using the Charter Representative’s user name (email address) and
password.
From the Dashboard, choose “Submit Form” from the Charter Holder Menu. On the Submit Form screen,
choose “Transfer School Application” from the Applications Menu.

Completing the Application
This document contains the instructions for filling out the online form and should be used while entering
information into the system. Some areas of the online form require information to be entered into a form
field and others require the upload of a narrative or document.
As you complete this application, please keep in mind the importance of overall consistency of the
application package. All information presented in the application package, if approved, becomes part of
the charter contract and will be used for accountability purposes throughout the term of the charter.
1. Complete the entire application package, including all relevant sections, according to the instructions in
this document.
2. Ensure that the checkbox next to each statement of consistency is checked.
3. Use only forms or templates approved for the current version of the Transfer Application. Forms can be
found in Appendix C of these instructions.
4. Complete the checklist in this document to ensure you have completed all the required sections.
5. For attached documents, follow the Formatting Requirements outlined below.
6. Submit the application package by clicking the “Submit to ASBCS” button at the bottom of the form.
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Formatting Requirements
• Only the following file types will be accepted: .pdf, .doc, .docx, .xls, .xlsx.
•

Create a three-letter abbreviation for the entity/school name and use it at the beginning of each
filename when saving documents (e.g. use “ECS” for applicant Excelling Charter School).

•

Name files as follows:
o

For required exhibits, a brief description of the document’s content (e.g. for floor plan #2 for
Excelling Charter School, name the file ECSfloorplan2.pdf); and

o

For files relating to individuals (e.g. affidavit, résumé), end each file name with the initials of the
individual or the full first and last names (e.g. for Jane Doe’s résumé for the Excelling Charter School
application, name the file ECSrésuméJD.pdf or ECSresume_Jane Doe.pdf).

•

Fonts must be no less than 11 point.

•

The application calls for certain official documents to be scanned. Scanned documents must be no less
than 100% of the original size, except for building floor plans or maps.
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1. Applicant Agreement
The Applicant Agreement certifies that the Charter Representative has read and understands all policies and
requirements related to the Transfer Application. Read the Agreement carefully and sign the online
application. Should the Agreement be signed by someone other than the Charter Representative, the
application package will be deemed Administratively Incomplete.
I certify that all information contained in this application package is complete and accurate, realizing that any
misrepresentation could result in disqualification from the transfer application process or revocation after
award. I understand that incomplete applications will not be considered.
The Applicant acknowledges that all information presented in the application package, if approved, becomes
part of the charter and will be used for accountability purposes throughout the term of the charter, and that
the charter may be amended or modified by mutual agreement, in writing, of the parties pursuant to the
terms of the charter contract when signed.
The Applicant acknowledges that the officers, directors, members, or partners are aware of their
responsibilities in the operation of a charter school as described in Arizona statute and that the Applicant is
subject to, and will ensure compliance with, all relevant federal, state, and local laws and requirements.
The Applicant acknowledges that if approved to operate a charter school, the Applicant must execute a
charter contract with the Arizona State Board for Charter Schools before the beginning of the fiscal year the
transfer is scheduled to become effective. If a charter is not timely signed, the Board’s decision to grant the
transfer charter expires.
The Applicant acknowledges that if approved to operate a charter school, the Applicant must begin providing
educational services no later than the following fiscal year after the Board’s decision to grant the charter.
Failure to begin providing educational instruction accordingly may result in the revocation of the charter.
The Applicant acknowledges that if approved to operate a charter school, the Applicant must provide the
number of days of instruction as approved in the application package within the State’s fiscal year that begins
July 1st and ends June 30th. Failure to do so may result in revocation of the charter.
To sign the application package and indicate understanding and agreement with the above information, the
Charter Representative needs to enter the personal ASBCS Online password in the box. Then, click “Save
and Continue to Next Page”.

A good-cause extension to execute a new charter and a good-cause suspension of a new charter do not
apply to transfer charters.
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2. New Entity Information I
Existing Entity
Provide information about the charter holder eligible for transfer, as well as information about the entity
that will hold the transfer charter.
Form Fields
Field

Instructions and Response

Name of Charter Holder
Entity Eligible for
Transfer*4

Provide the name of the existing charter holder requesting transfer.

School Name*

Provide the name of the charter school that will transfer to its own charter if
the application is approved.

Will the transfer charter
be held by the existing
entity?*

Select the button that accurately represents the entity that will hold the
transfer charter:
☐Yes, the existing entity will hold the transfer charter.
☐No, a new entity will hold the transfer charter and will have the
characteristics of an Associated Charter.

New Entity
Provide information regarding the consistency in the corporate structure between the existing entity and the
new entity.
Below, identify any individuals that will serve as a Charter Representative and/or Charter Principal.
Documentation is required for each individual, as indicated in the directions below. If a Charter
Representative and/or Principal is a current Charter Representative or Principal of an operating charter and
current information is already on file with the Board, email Board staff at
charterschoolboard@asbcs.az.gov. Staff will provide an email response confirming that current information
is on file. Attach the confirmation email listing the documents currently on file in the appropriate
attachment areas of the form.
Form Fields
Field

4

Instructions and Response

Statement of
Consistency*

Check the box to confirm the following statement:

Name of New Entity*

Provide the name of the public body, private person, or private organization,
in accordance with A.R.S. §15-183(B), that will hold the transfer charter.

Authorized
Representative for New
Entity*

Click the “Add Authorized Representative” link. When the window pops up,
enter the last 4 Digits of the individual’s Social Security Number and the
individual’s Date of Birth. Then, click the “Add Authorized Representative”
button.

☐I understand and agree that the Transfer Application process requires the
organizational structure of the new entity to be similar to the organizational
structure of the existing entity.

An asterisk by an item requires the applicant to fill in all the required fields and uploads denoted by “*”.
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The window will expand. When that happens, complete the following:
First Name: Enter the individual’s first name.
Last Name: Enter the individual’s last name.
Email Address: Enter the individual’s email address.
Fingerprint Clearance Card (“FCC”): Click “Choose File” and upload a PDF of a
copy of the front and back of the individual’s valid FCC issued by DPS.
Affidavit: Click “Choose File” and upload a PDF of a completed, signed, and
notarized Affidavit, Disclosure, and Consent for Background and Credit Check
form (see Appendix C).
Résumé: Click “Choose File” and upload a PDF of the résumé.
Repeat this process for each individual being added as an authorized
representative.
Authorized
Representative
Mailing Address*

Enter the Mailing Address for the authorized representative.

County*

Enter the county for the authorized representative.

Day Time Phone*

Enter the day time phone of the authorized representative.

Fax (optional)

Enter the fax number of the authorized representative.

Date Chartered*

Enter the date the original charter was executed.

First Fiscal Year*

Enter the fiscal year in which instruction will begin as a transfer charter.

Form of Organization*

Check the box that accurately represents the form of the entity organization.
☐
☐
☐
☐

Entity Type*

☐
☐

Government Entity
Tribal Entity

Check the box that accurately represents the type of entity that will hold the
charter.
☐
☐
☐
☐
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Non-Profit Corporation
For-Profit Corporation
Partnership
Sole Proprietor

Partnership
Sole Proprietorship
Tribal Entity
Limited Liability Company

☐
☐
☐

Government Entity
Domestic Corporation
Other: ___________________
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Charter Principals Background Information
Provide the names of all Principals (officers, members, directors, or partners) of the new entity.
Documentation is required for each individual, as indicated in the directions below.
Below, identify the individuals that will serve as Charter Representatives and/or Charter Principals.
Documentation is required for each individual, as indicated in the directions below. If a Charter
Representative and/or Principal is a current Charter Representative and/or Principal of an operating charter
and you believe current information is already on file with the Board, email Board staff at
charterschoolboard@asbcs.az.gov. Staff will provide an email response confirming that current information
is on file. Attach the confirmation email listing the documents currently on file in the appropriate
attachment areas of the form.
Charter Principals*

Click the “Add Officer, Director, Member or Partner” link. When the window
pops up, enter the last 4 Digits of the individual’s Social Security Number and
the individual’s Date of Birth. Then, click the “Add Officer, Director, Member,
or Partner” button.
The window will expand. When that happens, complete the following:
First Name: Enter the individual’s first name.
Last Name: Enter the individual’s last name.
Email Address: Enter the individual’s email address.
Fingerprint Clearance Card: Click “Choose File” and upload a PDF of a copy of
the front and back of the individual’s valid FCC issued by DPS.
Affidavit: Click “Choose File” and upload a PDF of a completed, signed, and
notarized Affidavit, Disclosure, and Consent for Background and Credit Check
form.
Résumé: Click “Choose File” and upload a PDF of the résumé.
Current Charter Affiliations: Click “Choose File” and upload a PDF of a
document listing current charter affiliations for the individual.
Repeat this process for each individual being added as a Charter Principal.

Required Exhibits for Section 2*:
• Minutes of the board of the existing entity authorizing the transfer a charter school currently
operating under an existing charter to its own charter.
•

A copy of Arizona filing required to conduct business in Arizona by the Arizona Corporation
Commission or Arizona Secretary of State.

•

A copy of the most recent annual report on file with the Arizona Corporation Commission.

•

A copy of current Corporate Bylaws/Operating Agreement, as applicable.

•

An organizational chart that provides a graphic representation of the structure of the new entity
that clearly delineates the roles, responsibilities and reporting structure.
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3. New Entity Information II
New Entity
Provide information about the school being transferred.
Form Fields
Field

Instructions and Response

Mission Statement*

Provide the mission statement of the school being transferred.

Grades Served*

Check the box for each grade that the school will serve and ensure the
selected grades are currently approved and being served at the school being
transferred.

Enrollment Cap*

Enter the enrollment cap requested for the transfer charter.

School Calendar*

Check the box that accurately represents the type of calendar the school will
use.
☐Standard
☐Extended School Year

School Characteristics*

Check the boxes to indicate the characteristics that will apply to the school
being transferred. You may choose up to three (definitions of these
characteristics can be found in Appendix D).
☐ Alternative/At-Risk
☐ Extended Day/Year
☐ Back to Basics
☐ Fine Arts Focus
☐ Blended Learning
☐ International Baccalaureate
Cambridge/ACT
Quality
Core
☐
☐ Math and Science/STEM
☐ Classical Education
☐ Montessori
☐ College Preparatory
☐ Multi-Age
☐ Computer-Based
☐ Multiple Intelligences
☐ Core Knowledge
☐ Online/Virtual
☐ Dual Language
☐ Dropout Recovery Program
☐ Equine/Agricultural Studies
☐ Project-Based
Expeditionary
Learning
☐
☐ Special Populations
☐ Traditional

Instructional Days*

Enter the number of instructional days the school being transferred will be in
session.

Target Start Date*

Enter the target start date of the school being transferred.
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School Governing Body
Provide information regarding the consistency in the governance structure between the existing entity and
the new entity for the school being transferred. Pursuant to A.R.S. §15-183(E)(8), the school governing body
of a charter school is responsible for the policy decisions of the school.
Form Fields
Field

Instructions and Response

Statement of
Consistency*

Check the box to confirm the following statement:

What is the governance
structure of the school
being transferred?*

Check the box of the statement that accurately represents the governance
structure of the school being transferred.

☐I understand and agree that the Transfer Application process requires the
governance structure to be consistent for the school being transferred.

☐The corporate board and the school governing body are one in the same.
☐The corporate board is separate from the school governing body.
(complete the type and name/number for each school governing body
member)

Type

From the pull-down menu, identify the type of member that will comprise the
school governing body.
Options: Charter Organization, School Staff, Parents, Community, Other, ExOfficio Member, Non-Voting Member, Non-Voting Advisory Member,
Alternate Member, Honorary Member.

Name/Number

Enter the first and last name of the individual that will serve as the member
type identified in the previous field, then click “Add Member”.
Repeat this process for each member that will serve on the school governing
body.
If the individual member names are not known, provide the number of
members that will serve for each type identified, then click “Add Member”.
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4. School Information
School
Provide specific information about the school being transferred.
Form Fields
Field

Instructions and Response

Name of School*

Enter the name of the school being transferred.

Grade Levels Served by
the school*

Check the boxes for the grades that will be served by the school.

First Day of Operation*

Enter the proposed first day of school.

School Site Contact*

Enter the first name and last name of the contact person for the school.

Contact Title*

Enter the title of the position held by the contact person for the school.

Mailing Address*

Enter the mailing address of the school. If it is the same as the physical
address, check the box.

Physical Address*

Enter the physical street address of the school.

County*

Enter the name of the county of where the school resides.

Physical Phone #*

Enter the telephone number of the school.

Physical Fax #

Enter the fax number of the school, if applicable.

School Contact Email*

Enter the email address of the contact person for the school.

Site Administrator FCC*

Upload a scanned copy of both sides of the valid FCC issued by the Arizona
Department of Public Safety for the site administrator.

Occupancy
Documentation*

Liability Insurance
Coverage*
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Upload a copy of the Certificate of Occupancy and
current Fire Marshal’s Inspection Report, both approved for educational use.
• If a Certificate of Occupancy and/or Fire Marshal’s Report are not
available at the time of submission, an Occupancy Compliance
Assurance and Understanding form, signed by a charter
representative, may be submitted in its place.
• Lease Agreement, Proof of Purchase, or Builder Contract for the
school facility.
• Agricultural Land Regulation Assurance: Upload a completed
Agricultural Land Regulation Assurance and Understanding form
signed by a Charter Representative.
•

Current Liability Insurance Coverage: Upload a copy of the current
insurance policy with the charter holder’s name as
policyholder/insured.
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5. Educational Plan
Program of Instruction
Form Fields
Field
Statement of
Consistency*

Instructions and Response
Check the box to confirm the following statement:
☐I understand and agree that the Transfer Application process requires that
the Program of Instruction of the new entity and the school being transferred
is consistent with the Program of Instruction of the existing entity.

Narrative*
To ensure that the charter contract for the transfer charter includes the current practices of the existing
entity, provide a clear, specific, and concise response regarding the existing Program of Instruction, as it
supports the transfer.
1. School Community: Provide a description of the community/population served at the school
being transferred.
2. Educational Philosophy: Identify the principles or concepts fundamental to the school’s
instructional strategies.
3. Methods of Instruction: Describe the methods of instruction utilized by teachers at the school.
This must reflect the mission and philosophy. Also include a rationale for using such methods
with the target population.
4. Curriculum: Describe the curriculum for the core academic content areas, supporting the
philosophy and aligning with Arizona Academic Standards.
5. Methods of Assessment: Describe how the school assesses student academic gain and how
those methods reflect the methods of instruction and philosophy of the school. Provide a clear
picture of the process for monitoring academic achievement throughout an academic year.
Include the process of using assessments to guide instructional decisions.
6. Promotion and Retention Plan: Identify criteria for determining grade level promotion and
retention. The criteria identified must include proficiency levels for academic subject areas and
all criteria that the school uses to determine promotion and retention.
7. Class Size: Identify the target class size for each grade level you serve. Include the rationale for
the identified class size and how that supports the methods of instruction, the target
population, and the facility description.
Required Exhibit (for schools offering high school grades only):
•

Menu of course offerings including course titles and brief descriptions.
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6. Operational and Business Plan
Provide information about the future, past, and present operational plans and financial performance of the
organization, as it relates to the transfer charter.
Operational Plan Narrative*:
Attach a clear, specific and concise response regarding the operational plan for the entity requesting
transfer. The expected page length for all three questions is no more than one page.
1. Describe the organization’s strategic growth plan and desired outcomes in Arizona over the next
five years, including:
•

Number of schools and grades served, including expansion progression;

•

Projected opening dates; and

•

Projected number of students served.

2. Discuss the operational capacity to open and operate schools successfully, including:
•

Lessons learned from past expansion; and

•

A plan to avoid or minimize challenges in the transfer school.

3. Summarize the organization’s plan to support:
•

The quality and long-term academic success of the transfer school;

•

The quality and long-term operational success of the transfer school; and

•

The financial viability of the transfer school.

Required Exhibits*:
•

A completed Enrollment Matrix (see Appendix B: Forms) that provides a summary of the proposed
operation of the transfer school over the next three years.

•

A completed Staffing Chart (see Appendix B: Forms) that provides a summary of staffing that
supports the proposed operation of the transfer school over the next three years.
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Business Plan
Provide information about the charter holder’s financial performance, if applicable.
The Financial Performance Framework gauges both near-term financial health and longer term financial
sustainability, and is described in the Financial Performance Framework and Guidance document available
on the Board’s website. A charter holder’s financial performance is considered by the Board when a
Transfer Application package is submitted. A charter holder that meets the Board’s financial performance
expectations is waived from submitting a financial performance response. A charter holder that does not
meet the Board’s financial performance expectations will be required to submit a financial performance
response, as described in the Financial Performance Framework and Guidance document.
Form Fields
Field
Does the financial
performance of the
charter holder meet the
Board’s performance
expectations?*

Instructions
Select the button that accurately represents the Charter Holder’s financial
performance.
☐ Yes (Skip this section)
☐ No (Complete required exhibit)

Required Exhibit5:
• Financial Performance Response: As described in Appendix C of the Financial Performance
Framework and Guidance document, address each Financial Performance Framework measure
where the charter holder received a “Does Not Meet Standard” for the most recent audited fiscal
year presented in the dashboard.

5

Submissions will be available for public review. If references will be made to or include any sensitive information
(e.g., bank account numbers), redact that information prior to submission.
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7. Education Service Provider
Provide information regarding the relationship with Education Service Providers concerning the new entity
by checking the appropriate box and completing any additional information requested.
An Education Service Provider (“ESP”) is an organization that contracts with or has a governance
relationship with the charter holder entity to provide comprehensive services.
Form Fields
Field
Does the existing entity
have a relationship with
an ESP?*

Instructions
☐ Yes – Contractual (Complete Section 1)
☐ Yes – Governance (Complete Section 2)
☐ No (Skip this section)

Section 1: Education Service Providers—Contractual Relationship
Form Fields
Field

Instructions

Statement of
Consistency

Check the box to confirm the following statement:

What is the name of the
ESP?

Enter the name of the ESP that will have a contractual relationship with the
transfer charter.

☐I understand and agree the Transfer Application process requires that the
contractual relationship of the transfer charter with an ESP to be consistent
with the contractual relationship of the existing entity with an ESP.

Required Exhibits:
• Copy of the signed service agreement as executed between the existing entity and the ESP.
Section 2: Education Service Providers—Governance Relationship
Form Fields
Field

Instructions

Statement of
Consistency

Check the box to confirm the following statement:

What is the name of the
ESP?

Enter the name of the ESP that will have a governance relationship with the
transfer charter.

Describe the nature of
the governance
relationship

Explain whether the charter holder is a subsidiary of the ESP, the charter
holder board has members that are members or employees of the ESP,
and/or the ESP has ultimate executive authority over the charter holder,
including the power to appoint board members and/or close the school.

☐I understand and agree the Transfer Application process requires that any
governance relationship of the transfer charter with an ESP be consistent
with the governance relationship of the existing entity with an ESP.

Required Exhibits:
•

List of all Arizona schools that the ESP currently manages.
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Checklist
Ensure you have completed all these steps before submitting your application package to the Board.
☐
☐

☐
☐
☐
☐

☐
☐
☐
☐
☐

Read and sign the “Applicant Agreement” form
Complete “New Entity Information I” section, including all required exhibits:
• Board minutes or resolution
• A copy of Arizona filing required to conduct business in Arizona by the Arizona Corporation
Commission or Arizona Secretary of State
• A copy of current Corporate Bylaws/Operating Agreement, as applicable
• An organizational chart
Complete and attach all documents specified in the “Charter Principals Background Information”
section for all Principals
Complete “New Entity Information II” section
Complete “School Governing Body” section
Complete and attach all documents specified in the “School Information” section, including:
• School Administrator Fingerprint Clearance Card
• A current Certificate of Occupancy and Fire Marshal’s Inspection Report, approved for
educational use.
o If a Certificate of Occupancy and/or Fire Marshal’s Report are not available at the
time of submission, an Occupancy Compliance Assurance and Understanding form.
• Current Liability Insurance Coverage
• Lease Agreement, Proof of Purchase, or Builder Contract for the school facility
• Agricultural Land Regulation Assurance form
Complete “Program of Instruction” section with an uploaded narrative that responds to the seven
prompts; and attach the menu of course offerings (if applicable).
Complete “Operational and Business Plan” section, including the narrative, required exhibits, and
financial performance response (if applicable).
Complete “Education Service Provider” section.
Check all “Statement of Consistency” boxes in each section.
Name all files according to the “Formatting Requirements” described in these instructions.
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Appendices
A. Eligibility for Expansion
B. Terms to Know
C. Forms
D. School Characteristics Definitions
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A. Eligibility for Expansion (refer to page 3 for eligibility)
Eligibility to expand using the transfer application process is based on the academic, financial, and
operational performance of the charter holder, its Associated Schools, and Associated Charters. The
transfer application process is open to any charter holder that meets the eligibility criteria described below.
Academic Performance Criteria
• An academic dashboard for each school operated by the charter holder is available through ASBCS.
•

Each school operated by the charter holder requesting a transfer application that is eligible to receive
an Overall Rating must have a minimum Overall Rating of “Meets Standard” in the most recent fiscal
year academic dashboard.

•

Either 75% or more of all Associated Schools eligible to receive an Overall Rating must have a minimum
Overall Rating of “Meets Standard”, or if one or more Associated Schools are excluded6 for academic
purposes, then 100% of the remaining Associated Schools eligible to receive an Overall Rating must
have a minimum Overall Rating of “Meets Standard” in the most recent fiscal year academic dashboard.

Financial Performance Criteria
• A financial dashboard for the charter holder is available through ASBCS Online7.
• The charter holder has no measure rated “Falls Far Below Standard” for the most recent fiscal year
presented on the charter holder’s dashboard.
• 75 percent or more of all Associated Charters have no measure rated “Falls Far Below Standard” for the
most recent fiscal year presented on the Associated Charters’ dashboards. If one or more Associated
Charters are excluded for financial performance purposes, then 100 percent of the remaining
Associated Charters must have no measure rated “Falls Far Below Standard” for the most recent fiscal
year presented on the Associated Charters’ dashboards.
Operational Performance Criteria
• An operational dashboard for the charter holder is available through ASBCS Online.
• The charter holder meets the operational performance standard for the most recent completed fiscal
year.
• The charter holder meets the operational performance standard for the current evaluated year.
• 75 percent or more of its Associated Charters meets the operational performance standard for the
most recently completed fiscal year and the current evaluated year.

6

The Board determined that certain Associated Schools could be excluded from the academic eligibility criteria. To be excluded, the
Special Exclusions form found in Appendix B must be submitted. The submission of the Special Exclusions form may extend the
staff eligibility review timeframe by up to three weeks.
7 The Board must have received the charter holder’s first audit reporting package for the charter holder to be eligible to submit an
expansion request. If the audit reporting package has been submitted but a dashboard is not available through ASBCS Online,
please contact your Education Program Manager.
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B. Terms to Know
•

Associated Charter: A charter operated by a charter that contracts with the same Education Service
Provider; a charter operated by the same charter holder; or a charter operated by a charter holder
with at least 50% of the officers, directors, members or partners in common, as reflected in the
charter contract.

•

Associated School: A school operated by a charter holder that operates one or more other charter
schools that contract with the same education service provider; a school operated by the same
charter holder but under different charter contracts; or a school operated by a charter holder with
at least fifty 50% of corporate board officers, directors, members, or partners in common, as
reflected by the charter contract.

•

Charter Representative: An individual with the power to bind a charter holder contractually
according to the charter holder's Articles of Incorporation, operating agreement, or by-laws. This
individual will be the point-of-contact for purposes of communication and accountability to charter
terms and conditions.

•

Education Service Provider (ESP): Any number of organizations that contract with or have a
governance relationship with the entity to provide comprehensive services. The major types of ESPs
that serve charter schools are the education management organization (“EMO”) and charter
management organization (“CMO”). For the purposes of a request:
o

o

•
•
•
•

•

An ESP is considered a CMO if it has a governance relationship with the charter holder in
which the charter holder is a subsidiary of the ESP, the charter holder board has members
that are members or employees of the ESP, and/or the ESP has ultimate executive authority
over the charter holder, including the power to appoint board members and/or close a
school operated by the charter holder.
An ESP is considered an EMO if it will contractually provide operations and management to
the charter holder, but the charter holder chooses the affiliation and is independent of the
ESP.

Fingerprint Clearance Card: A card issued by the Arizona Department of Public Safety after a state
and federal criminal records check has been conducted.
Organizational Structure: a system used to define a hierarchy within an organization that outlines
how work roles and responsibilities are delegated, controlled, and coordinated.
Principal: Any officer, director, member, partner or board of the applicant or charter holder
applying for a charter at the time the application package is submitted.
School Calendar: A school may choose between two types of school calendar. Instruction must
begin on or after July 1 and end no later than June 30.
o

Standard: A standard calendar, as described by A.R.S. § 15-341.01, may consist of a
traditional school calendar of one session per day meeting 4-5 days per week; or

o

Extended: An extended calendar, as described by A.R.S. § 15-902.04, provides two hundred
days of instruction, with the annual instructional hours increased by 10%.

School Governing Body: The body responsible for the policy decisions of the school, as described in
A.R.S. § 15-183 (E)(8).
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C. Forms
A Transfer Application package may be deemed Administratively Incomplete if it contains modifications to
the content, format, or sequence of the templates or forms or if it contains templates or forms that were
approved for use in a prior fiscal year.
This appendix provides the forms that are required throughout the application.
•

Print, copy, complete, and scan forms as needed.

•

Refer to the Formatting Requirements when creating, saving, and uploading files.

The following forms are included in this section:
•
•
•

•
•
•
•

Letter of Intent
Special Exclusions for Associated Charters and Schools
Affidavit, Disclosure, and Consent for Background and Credit Check
Agricultural Land Regulation Assurance and Understanding
Enrollment Matrix
Occupancy Compliance Assurance and Understanding
Staffing Chart

Revised January 2018

Page 24

Transfer Application Instructions

Arizona State Board for Charter Schools
Letter of Intent
Review the criteria for eligibility, confirm eligibility, fill out the following information, and sign at bottom. Board staff
will provide notification of eligibility within 15 business days of receipt.
Charter Holder Information
Name of Charter Holder Entity
Associated Charters and/or Schools
Charter Representative Name
Charter Representative Email
Rationale for the transfer
School Information
Name of school that intends to transfer to
its own charter
Grades currently served
Target start date for implementing transfer
Check box below to indicate completion of eligibility review by charter holder
☐ I understand that to be eligible to apply for a Transfer Charter, the following criteria must be met by the
school being transferred to its own charter, each school operated by the Charter Holder requesting a transfer,
and all Associated Schools and Associated Charters. I have reviewed all relevant dashboards and operational
compliance, and found that these criteria have been met.
• The school being transferred is currently operating and has completed three years of operationa
minimum Overall Rating of “Above Standard” on the academic dashboard in each of the last two years,
• Each 75% percent or more of the schools operated by the Charter Holder requesting a transfer that is
eligible to receive an Overall Rating hasmust have a minimum Overall Rating of “Meets Standard” on the
most recent Academic Dashboard,
• The Either 75% or more of all Associated Schools meet the academic performance criteria, or if one or
more Associated Schools are excluded for academic purposes, then 100% of the remaining Associated
Schools must meet the academic performance criteria,
• The Charter Holder and its Associated Charters meet the financial performance criteria,
• The Charter Holder and its Associated Charters meet the operational performance criteria, and
• The Charter Holder is in compliance as specified in the Conducting Compliance Checks Policy Statement.
*If an Associated School or Associated Charter is being excluded from the eligibility criteria review, attach a complete Special Exclusions form.

Signature
BY SIGNING BELOW, I AFFIRM THAT I AM ACTING ON BEHALF OF THE ABOVE LISTED CHARTER HOLDER TO REQUEST
TO PARTICIPATE IN THE TRANSFER APPLICATION PROCESS. I BELIEVE THAT THE ABOVE LISTED CHARTER HOLDER
MEETS THE ELIGIBILITY REQUIREMENTS OUTLINED ABOVE AND UNDERSTAND THAT BOARD STAFF WILL REVIEW
THE ACADEMIC, OPERATIONAL, AND FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE OF THE CHARTER HOLDER TO CONFIRM
ELIGIBILITY.
Charter Representative Signature:_______________________________________________________________
Date:_____________________
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Arizona State Board for Charter Schools
Special Exclusions for Associated Charters and Schools
Choose the appropriate option that describes why an Associated Charter and/or Associated School should be excluded
from the academic and/or financial performance eligibility review. Once completed, include this form with the
completed Letter of Intent form.
Charter Holder Information
Name of charter holder entity
Name of school that intends to transfer to its
own charter
An Associated School may be excluded for academic performance purposes when one or more of the following
conditions are met:
A1. An Associated School is in its 1st year of operation.
A2. An Associated School has a distinct learning environment (philosophy, population, program of instruction,
schedule) that is clearly documented in its charter which is significantly different from the schools operated by the
charter holder that will be impacted by the expansion request.
An Associated Charter may be excluded for financial performance purposes when the following condition is met:
F1. An Associated Charter is in its 1st year of operation and has not yet submitted its first audit reporting package to
the Board.
For each Associated Charter or School listed in the charter holder Information section of the Transfer Eligibility form
that meets one or more of the conditions above, list the name of the Associated Charter or School and the
corresponding code for exclusion.
Charter or School Name

Exclusion Code(s) (include as
many codes as applicable)

ABC School

A2

XYZ Charter, Inc.

F1
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Arizona State Board for Charter Schools
Affidavit, Disclosure, and Consent for Background and Credit Check
Complete this form for each Charter Representative and Principal listed in the transfer application package. Duplicate
as needed and print each form separately. Have each form signed and dated by the Charter Representative or
Principal and notarized.
Name:
Social Security Number*:
Street Address:
City:
Phone:

State:
Date of Birth:

Zip:
Place of Birth:

With my signature below, permission is hereby granted to the Arizona State Board for Charter Schools or its charter
representative bearing this release or a copy thereof, to conduct a background and credit check to obtain
information about me in connection with an application of the following Charter Holder(s): ___________________
Please check the appropriate answer to each question below.
1. Have you ever been convicted of or pled “no contest” for any violation of law other than
minor traffic offenses? If either event has occurred, you must answer YES. If the conviction
has been set aside, the charges must be disclosed. Please give details on a separate signed,
notarized and dated sheet.
2. Have you ever been convicted of, admitted committing, or are you awaiting trial on any of
the following criminal offenses in this state or similar offenses in another jurisdiction: (1)
Sexual abuse of a minor, (2) Incest, (3) First or second degree murder, (4) Kidnapping, (5)
Arson, (6) Sexual assault, (7) Sexual exploitation of a minor, (8) Contributing to the
delinquency of a minor, (9) Commercial sexual exploitation of a minor, (10) Felony offenses
involving sale, distribution or transportation of, offer to sell, transport or distribute marijuana
or dangerous or narcotic drugs, (11) Felony offenses involving the possession or use of
marijuana or dangerous or narcotic drugs, (12) Misdemeanor offenses involving the
possession or use of marijuana or dangerous drugs, (13) Burglary in the first degree, (14)
Burglary in the second or third degree, (15) Aggravated or armed robbery, (16) Robbery, (17)
A dangerous crime against children as defined in A.R.S. § 13-705, (18) Child abuse, (19) Sexual
conduct with a minor, (20) Molestation of a child, (21) Manslaughter, (22) Aggravated assault,
(23) Assault, or (24) Exploitation of minors involving drug offenses? If YES, submit certified
court record and details of incident(s), signed, notarized and dated.

Yes 

No 

Yes 

No 

3. Have you ever declared bankruptcy? Please give details on a separate signed, notarized
Yes  No 
and dated sheet.
I DO SOLEMNLY SWEAR OR AFFIRM THAT THE FOREGOING INFORMATION IS TRUE AND CORRECT TO THE BEST OF
MY KNOWLEDGE. FURTHERMORE, SHOULD ANY PART OF THE INFORMATION HEREIN PROVIDED PROVE TO BE
FALSE, I RECOGNIZE THAT IT SHALL BE JUST CAUSE FOR THE ARIZONA STATE BOARD FOR CHARTER SCHOOLS TO
DENY THE APPLICATION SUBMITTED BY THE ABOVE LISTED CHARTER HOLDER(S).
Signature __________________________________________________________________________
Notary: Subscribed and sworn before me this _______

day of _____________ Year _________

County of _____________________________________

State of _________________________

Notary Public Signature__________________________

My Commission Expires ____________

*Disclosure of your social security number is voluntary and is requested by the Arizona State Board for Charter Schools pursuant to its legislative
authorization under A.R.S. § 15-182(E) in order to verify the information supplied in your application package and to determine your qualifications
to operate a charter school. No statute or other authority requires that you disclose your social security number for that p urpose. Failure to
disclosure your social security number may, however, result in a denial of the application.

Revised January 2018

Page 27

Transfer Application Instructions

Arizona State Board for Charter Schools
Agricultural Land Regulation Assurance and Understanding
Arizona Revised Statute §15-183 (U) states, “Charter schools may not locate a school on property that is
less than one-fourth mile from agricultural land regulated pursuant to section 3-365, except that the owner
of the agricultural land may agree to comply with the buffer zone requirements of section 3-365. If the
owner agrees in writing to comply with the buffer zone requirements and records the agreement in the
office of the county recorder as a restrictive covenant running with the title to the land, the charter school
may locate a school within the affected buffer zone. The agreement may include any stipulations regarding
the charter school, including conditions for future expansion of the school and changes in the operational
status of the school that will result in a breach of the agreement.”
Charter Holder Information
Name of Charter Holder Entity
Name of Charter School
Check one box below to indicate which statement applies
☐

The charter school is not located less than one-fourth mile from agricultural land.

☐

The charter school site is located less than one-fourth mile from agricultural land; the charter school site
complies with Arizona law regarding the location of schools on a property that is less than one-fourth
mile from agricultural land.

Signature
BY SIGNING BELOW, I UNDERSTAND AND AFFIRM THAT THE FOREGOING INFORMATION PROVIDED BY ME FOR
THE ABOVE LISTED CHARTER HOLDER IS TRUE AND CORRECT. FURTHERMORE, IF ANY PART OF THE
INFORMATION PROVIDED PROVES TO BE FALSE, I RECOGNIZE THAT IT SHALL BE JUST CAUSE FOR REVOCATION
OF THE CHARTER BY THE ARIZONA STATE BOARD FOR CHARTER SCHOOLS.
Charter Representative Signature:
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Arizona State Board for Charter Schools
Enrollment Matrix
Complete the table to provide the current and target enrollment for the school being transferred to its own
charter.
Directions*:
•

In each box under the “Number of Students” columns, identify the number of students served per
grade for the current and upcoming three fiscal years.
• In the “Total Enrollment” row, provide the total enrollment for each fiscal year.
School Name:
Number of Students
Grade Level
Current—FY__
Target—FY__
Target—FY__
Target—FY__
Kindergarten
1st
2nd
3rd
4th
5th
6th
7th
8th
9th
10th
11th
12th
Total
Enrollment
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Arizona State Board for Charter Schools
Occupancy Compliance Assurance and Understanding
The Arizona State Board for Charter Schools (“Board”), at a meeting held on November 21, 2017, approved
a revised policy that requires new and existing charter holders to submit a copy of a valid Certificate of
Occupancy and current Fire Marshal’s Inspection Report for each location where educational services will
be provided prior to the initiation of State equalization payments.
The Board will request that the Arizona Department of Education (“ADE”) withhold State equalization
assistance payments for 1) new charter schools that have signed a charter contract, 2) new schools under
existing charter contracts, 3) schools under existing charter contracts moving from one location to another,
and 4) new buildings/structures added to an existing school, until the school has submitted valid copies of
the required Certificate of Occupancy and current Fire Marshal’s Inspection Report for the new educational
facility.
Once Board staff has verified that the appropriate documents for each school location have been received,
the Board office will notify the Charter Holder and the ADE School Finance Unit’s Charter School Payment
Manager that the school is eligible for payment. The ADE School Finance Unit will mark the school eligible
for payment and a payment will generate in the next payment cycle if all other requirements of ADE School
Finance have been met. Schools eligible for payment by the 20th of any month will generate a payment for
the next month’s payment cycle. Schools marked eligible after the 20th of any month will not generate a
payment in next month’s payment cycle. No off-system payments will be made.
Charter Holder Information
Name of Charter Holder Entity
School Location(s) for which the request
applies
Signature
By signing below, I understand the Board’s policy and that I am required to submit an educational use Certificate of
Occupancy and a current Fire Marshal’s Inspection Report to the Board office for each school facility operated by the
Charter Holder. These documents must be verified by Board staff prior to occupancy of the building and prior to receipt
of equalization payments for students enrolled at this school.
I acknowledge that if these documents are not submitted prior to occupancy, the school’s opening date may be
postponed and/or the Board may take action as allowed by statute and the charter contract.

Charter Representative Signature:
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Arizona State Board for Charter Schools
Staffing Chart
Complete the table to provide the anticipated staffing for the school being transferred to its own charter.
Directions:
•

In each box under the “Number of Staff Members” columns, identify the number of staff members
for each position/category for the first three fiscal years the school will be in operation under its
own charter.

Proposed School Name:
Position
Administration
Teachers/Instructional Staff
Kindergarten
1st
2nd
3rd
4th
5th
6th
7th
8th
9th
10th
11th
12th
Specialty Staff (Music, Art,
PE, etc.)
Special Education
Paraprofessional
Additional Staff
List title:
_______________
List title:
_______________
List title:
_______________
List title:
_______________
Total Number of Staff
Members
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D. School Characteristics Definitions
•

Alternative/At Risk: A school that has a mission that states that the school is to serve a specific
student population that will benefit from an alternative school setting, including those in one or
more of the following categories:
o

Students who have a documented history of disruptive behavior issues.

o

Students who have dropped out of school and are now returning,

o

Students in poor academic standing as demonstrated by being at least one year behind on
grade level performance or academic credits.

o

Students who are primary caregivers or are financially responsible for dependents.

o

Students who are adjudicated.

o

Students who are wards of the state and are in need of an alternative school setting.

•

Back to Basics: A school that provides a program of instruction that incorporates teacher-centered
instruction focusing on Reading, Writing, and Math.

•

Blended Learning: A school that provides a program of instruction that combines online lab-based
or computer-centered instruction and face-to-face classroom instruction as part of their student’s
daily schedule.

•

Cambridge/ACT Quality Core: A school that provides curriculum-driven instruction and uses the
Cambridge IGCSE or ACT Quality Core board examinations.

•

College Preparatory: A school that provides instruction designed to prepare students for a college
or university education.

•

Computer-based: A school site that provides on-site instruction primarily through computer-based
lessons and assessment. (not the same as Online/Virtual)

•

Core Knowledge: A school that has received the Core Knowledge Official School designation or one
that teaches all the topics included in the Core Knowledge Sequence and exemplifies the Core
Implementation Practices (http://coreknowledge.org).

•

Dual Language: A school that provides core content instruction in English and one other language.

•

Equine/Agricultural Studies: A school that provides a program of instruction that explicitly
emphasizes equine and/or agricultural studies as part of classroom instruction and courses
provided.

•

Expeditionary Learning: A school with a model based on the Expeditionary Learning Core Practices
(http://eleducation.org).

•

Extended Day/Year: A school that provides either a daily calendar that exceeds 200 days or a daily
schedule that exceeds 78,000 instructional minutes (390 minutes/day x 200 days) during the school
year.

•

Fine Arts focus: A school that provides a program of instruction that explicitly emphasizes the visual
and performing arts as part of classroom instruction and courses provided.

•

International Baccalaureate: A school that has completed the IB authorization process and is
recognized by the International Baccalaureate (http://www.ibo.org).
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•

Math and Science/STEM: A school that provides a program of instruction that explicitly emphasizes
math, science, and/or technology and engineering as part of classroom instruction and courses
provided.

•

Montessori: A school with a model based on the educational approach originated by Maria
Montessori.

•

Multi-age: A school that has intentionally designed its classroom instruction for mixed-age groups
of children, which may include but not be limited to the use of academic looping within a
classroom.

•

Multiple Intelligences: A school that provides instruction that incorporates Howard Gardner’s
theory of Multiple Intelligences into the design of classroom instruction.

•

Online/Virtual: An approved distance learning school that provides remote instruction through
computer-based lessons and/or resource materials assessments.

•

Project-based: A school that provides a program of instruction incorporating inquiry based
processes around a complex question or problem.

•

Special Populations: A school with a model designed to meets the specialized needs of a specific
target population (deaf/ hard of hearing, blind, autism, etc.)

•

Traditional: A school that is focused on teaching the basics of mathematics, reading, and writing.
Students are taught using direct instruction techniques.
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